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C ITY OF SHREVEPORT 

March 31, 2004 
Mayor Keith Hightower Members of the City Council City of Shreveport, Louisiana 

P.O. BOX31109 SI-IREVE~:IRT, LA 71130 web site: www.ci.~.la.~ 

Mayor and Members of the City Council: In accordance with Section 10.02, paragraph (j), of the City Charter, I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2003. The financial statements were prepared in conformity With generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. I believe this report presents comprehensive information about the City's financial and operating activities during 2003 that is useful to taxpayers, citizens, and other interested persons. This report was prepared by the Accounting Division of the Finance Department and consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. In addition to internal controls established by management and those built into the accounting system, the Office of Internal Audit periodically reviews the adequacy of imernal controls. The Internal Auditor and her staff are independent of the Finance Department. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. In accordance with Section 4.28 of the City Charter, the City Council is required to provide for an annual independent audit of the accounts and financial transactions of the City by a firm of 



independent certified public accountants duly licensed to practice in the State of Louisiana. The accounting firm of KPMG LLP was selected by the City to conduct its annual audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component ofthe financial section of this report. The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the City's separately issued Single Audit Report. GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
The City of Shreveport was incorporated in 1839. It is located on the west bank of the Red River in Northwest Louisiana, approximately thirty miles south of Arkansas and fifteen miles east of Texas. Shreveport is the seat of Caddo Parish and the center of a metropolitan area that includes Bossier, Caddo, and Webster Parishes. Although located primarily in Caddo Parish, a small portion of the City extends into Bossier Parish. The current area of the City is approximately 120 square miles. 
The City of Shreveport has been organized under a mayor-council form of government since 1978, when the current City charter was adopted by the voters. The charter provides for a seven member council, with each member selected for four-year terms from separate districts of the City. The mayor is elected at-large for a four-year term, is not a member of the council, but has veto power over council action. The City provides a wide range of services including public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, water and sewer services, airports, transportation, recreational activities, general administration functions and others. 



These financial statements present the City of Shreveport (the primary government) and its component units. The component units are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. Included as discretely presented component units is the financial data for the City Courts, City Marshal, the Downtown Development Authority, Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority, Metropohtan Planning Commission and the Shreveport Convention Center Hotel Authority. They are reported separately within the City's financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate fi~om the City. Additional information on these legally separate entities can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
Budgetary Control The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's finandai planning and control. Prior to October 1, the Mayor files with the Clerk of Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and related financing sources. The City Council conducts public hearings and proposes adoption of the various budget ordinances. Prior to December 15, the City Council adopts the final budgets controlling the financial operations of the City for the ensuing fiscal year. Legal budgetary control for operating budgets is exercised at the department/object class with the exception of the Community Devalopraent Department where control is exercised at the division/object class. The ordinances provide lump sum appropriation at the object level. The City Charter allows the Mayor to authorize the transfer of budgeted amounts from one activity to another within the same lump sum appropriation, within the same department with the exception of the Community Devdopment Department where funds must be spent within the same division. The City Charter provides that expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations. Formal budgetary integration and encumbrance accounting are employed as management control devices during the year. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget as been adopted. Local economy. The continued historic low mortgage interest rates have caused housing starts to continue to increase. Shreveport's housing starts permit valuation of $107.3 million was 48.4% higher than 2002. The City's new commercial and industrial construction permit valuation was $125.1 million, a 23.9% increase over 2002. The laxgest project was the Shreveport Convention Center and parking garage which was issued at a valuation of $65 million. The City had other projects in excess of $1 million which were issued permits. They include the water treatment plant, a jail, and a central fire station. Several other commercial projects were in excess orS1 million. The casino industry felt the impact of the economy in 2003. Shreveport's revenues decreased in 2002. There were some shifts in the local market. However, overall, the adjusted gross revenues kept pace with 2(/02. The casino industry continues to be a vital part of the local economy. Retail sales decreased slightly over 2002 when adjusted for the tax increase approved beginning in 2003. Sales taxes are an essential part of the General Fund revenues. For the most part, retail sales have been static for the past three years. 



Leng-term financial planning. Early in 2003, it became apparent that revenues, in particular, sales taxes were not going to meet the projection. To close that gap, there were budget cuts and fee increases. These were done without adversely affecting services or laying off employees. Until the economy improves, the City cannot expect any real growth in our largest general revenue source which is sales taxes. In the General Fund, sales tax represents 57% of the revenues. There is an imbalance between the growth in revenues and expenditures. Revenues are projected to grow by 1.4"/0 per year, while expenditures are projected to grow about 3.4%. Long-term, in order to fill the gap between revenues and expenditures, the City will need to make some hard choices in reducing expenditures. The business-type activities also face a challenge in generating additional revenue or reducing expenses. Long-term, the City must determine what are the true needs, what are the priorities, what do citizens want, etc. The forward look has generated some issues. We must now seek solutions. Cash management policies and practices. The City maintains a pooled cash and investment account that is available for use by all funds, except those restricted by statutes or other legal reasons. At the end of each business day, collected balances in all City bank accounts are deposited into a SWEEP Account. These funds are invested in U.S. Government and U.S. Agency securities under the terms of an overnight repurchase agreement. In addition, the City invests in other open repurchase agreements and U.S. treasury bills and notes. The average yield on investments at December 31, 2003 was 1.63% as compared to .92% for three- month U.S. Treasury bills. The City's investment policy is to exercise that judgraent and care which men of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own agfairs. Investments are selected as investments, not for speculation, considering the probably safety of the capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. Accordingly, deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. Approximately 48.9*/0 of the investments held by the City are classified in the category of lowest risk. Remaining investments were held by the fiscal agency bank as trustee for pension funds or in accordance with bond indentures. State statutes require that all public funds should be insured or collateralized. The City's policy is not to have uninsured/uncollateralized funds which it controls. Risk management. The City retains the risk for property, liability, workers compensation, and dental insurance. As part of this comprehensive plan, resources are being accumulated in internal service funds to meet potential losses. In addition, various risk control techniques including an employee safety program, drug free workplace program with mandatory drug screening for new employees, and pre-employment physicals have been implemented to minimize accident-related losses. The City has third-party coverages subject to self-insured retentions which are more fi.dly described in the notes. 



Pension and other postemployment benefits. The City administers three defined benefit pension plans: the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPRF), the Polieemen's Pension and Relief Fund (PPRF), and the Employee's Retirement System (ELLS). Each year, an independent actuary calculates the mount of the annual contribution the City must make to the pension plan. In 2003, the City funded 100.0% of the FPRF, 100,0% of the PPRF, and 41.5% of the ERS. The current percents funded are FPRF 55.2%, PPRF 46.6%, and ERS 71.4%. The unfunded amounts for FPRF and PPRF are being amortized over 12 years and the ElLS is 30 years open. 
The City also provides pension benefits for firemen and policemen hired atter July 12, 1977 through the Statewide Fkefighters Retirement System and the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System. The City has no obligations in connection with employee benefits offered through this plan beyond its annual required payment to the pension boards. The City also provides postretirement health and dental care benefits for retirees and their dependents. As of the end of the current fiscal year, there were 1,355 retirees eligible to receive benefits, which are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. GAAP do not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection with an employer's obligation to provide these benefits. Additional information on the City's pension arrangements and postemployment benefits can be found in the notes to the financial statements. Awards and Acknowledgments The Govelnrnent Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Ceafificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Shreveport for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by the City and its management. We are proud to have received this award each year for the past twenty-four years (beginning with our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1979). In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the contents of which conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe our current report continues to conform to Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. The GFOA has given an Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting to the City of Shreveport, Louisiana for its Popular Annual Financial l~port for the fiscal 



year ended December 31, 2002. We have received this award for the past eight years. The Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting is a prestigious national award recogni~g conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government popular reports. In order to receive an Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting, a government unit must publish a Popular Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to program standards of creativity, presentation, understandability and reader appeal. An Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Reporting is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Popular Annual Financial Reporting requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA. Sincere appreciation is expressed to the entire staff in the Finance Department and especially to the professional accounting staff whose dedicated and efficient services have made the timely preparation of this report possible. Thanks to the Mayor and City Council for your support of excellence in financial reporting and fiscal integrity. 
Sincerely, 
Director of Finance 



Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Presented to 
City of Shreveport, Louisiana For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002 A Certificate of Ach/evement for Excellence in Fmaneial Reporting is presemed by the Govemmeat Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada to govermnent units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFP~) achieve the highest standards in government accounting and financial reporting. f 
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KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report 
To the Members of the CRy Council and Honorable Keith Hightower, Mayor City of Shreveport, Louisiana: We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discr~ely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Shreveport, Louisiana (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying Table of Contents. We also have audited the financial statements of each of the City's nonmajor govemmantal, nonmajor enterprise, internal service, fiduciary, and Metropolitan Planning Commission funds presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the component unit financial statements of the City Courts, City Marshal, and Downtown Development Authority, which represent 24% and 69%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the City Courts, City Marshal, and Downtown Development Authority is based on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of Deeamber31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Community Development Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
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financial position of each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, internal service, fiduciary, and Metropolitan Planning Commission funds of the City, as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 26, 2004, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance wi~h certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. The Managemant's Discussion and Analysis, schedules of employee contributions, schedules of funding progress and related notes identified as Required Supplementary Information in the Table of Contents is not a required part of the basic financial stalemants but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of managemant regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying financial information in the Introductory and Statistical Sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying financial information in the Introductory and Statistical sections has not been subjected the to the auditing procedures applied by us In the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

March 26, 2004 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) offers the readers oftha City of Shrevepon's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Shreveport for the fiscal year ended December 3 I, 2003. This information presented here should be considered in conjunction with additional information provided in the letter of transmittal which is found on pages 1-6 of this report. 
Financial Highlights The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2003 by $760.9 million (net assets). Governmental activities' unrestricted assets are a deficit of $4.6 million. This is primarily the result of the City financing certain long-term liabilities that would have been paid over future years to take advantage of available lower interest rates. The City's total net assets increased $41.2 million. Net assets of governmental activities increased $30.7 million and net assets of business-type activities increased $10.5 million. As of December 31, 2003, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $238.1 million, anincreaseof$26.2millionfromtheptioryear. Ofthisamount, $7.8 million for the General Fund was unreserved, undesignated, and available for spending. The unreserved, undesignated fund balances for the General Fund represented 5.9% of total General Fund expenditures. The City's total debt increased $21 million primarily due to an increase in long-term debt. Overview of the Financial Statements The management discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements which are the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. Also included in the report is required supplementary information. 
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements report information about the overall finances of the City similar to a business enterprise. These statements combine and consolidate short-term, spendable resources with capital assets and long-term obligations. The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets less liabilities which results in net assets. The statement is designed to display the financial position of the City. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets help determine whether the City's financial position is improving or deteriorating. The statement of activities provides information which shows how the City's net assets changed as a result of the year's activities. The statement uses the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by private-sector businesses. All of the revenues and expenses are reported regardless of the timing of when cash is received or paid. 



The Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the City that are financed primarily by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and charges for services (governmental activities) from functions where user fees and charges to customers help to cover all or most of the cost of services (business-type activities). The City's governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, community development, economic development, and econonfic opportunity. The business-type activities ofthe City include airports, water and sewer systems, transit, golf, and parking operations. Not only do the government-wide financial statements include the City itself which is the primary government, but also its component units, Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority, City Courts, City Marshal, Downtown Development Authority, Metropohtan Planning Commission, and the Shreveport Convention Center Hotel Authority. Although these component units are legally separate, thek operational or financial relationship with the City makes the City financially accountable. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 29-31 ofthis report. Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate fiscal accountability. The City uses governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements to provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds rather than the City as a whole. Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to report most of the City's basic services. The funds focus on the inflows and outflows of current resources and the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Governmental fund statements provide a near- or short-term view of the City's operations. A reconciliation is prepared of the governmental funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of governmental funds to the Statement of Activities. Fii~vvn governmental funds are used by the City. There are five major funds which have separately presented information in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and Statement of P, eveunes, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. The major funds are the General Fund, Community Development, Debt Service,1999A General Obligation Bonds, and 2003A General Obligation Bonds. The ten nonmajor funds are presented in the aggregate in the governmental fund financial statements. The individual fund information is presented in combining statements. The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and certain special revenue funds. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided to demonstrate enmpfiance with these budgets. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 32-43 of this report. Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide fmanciai statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its airports, water and sewer, and other operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account 
16 



for its health care, retained risk, and fleet services. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the airports and water and sewer operations, both of which are considered to be major fimds of the City. Conversely, internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 44-49 of this report. Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for others. Activities from fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets for its operations. The accounting for fiduciary funds is much like that used in proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary aggregated fund financial statements can be found on pages 50-51 of this report. 
Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 57-102 of this report. Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 103-105 of this report. The combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds, enterprise fimds, internal service fimds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining andindividualfund statements and schedules canbe found on pages 108-112 for governmental funds, pages 114-117 for enterprise funds, and pages 120-123 for internal service funds and pages 126-127 for fiduciary funds. 
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Government-wide Financial Analysis Net assets. The following table reflects condensed information on the City's net assets Net Assets (in millions) 

Current and other assets Capital assets Total assets Long-term debt outstanding Other liabilities Total liabilities Net assets Invested in capital assets, net of related debt Restricted Unrestricted Total net assets 

Governmemal Business-type Activities Activities Total 
_2002 $275.8 583.4 859.2 399.2 21.6 420.8 

2003 $ 45.1 410.2 455,3 145.7 17.8 163.5 

2002 $ 53.2 379.2 432.4 137.1 14.0 151.1 

2003 $ 346.7 1,013.1 1,359~8 556.8 42A 598.9 
401.5 285.7 266.4 714.9 667.9 40.2 1.8 1,9 46,3 42.1 (3.3) 4.3 13 0 ( .3) 9.7 $438.4 $291.8 $2gl.___33 $ 760.ffiffi~9 $ 719..~7 At December 31, 2003, the City as a whole had assets greater than its liabilities by $760.9 million compared to $719.7 million at December 31, 2002 due primarily to an increase in capital assets. The majority (91%) of the City's net assets of governmental activities are iwcested in capital assets (streets, drainage, construction in progress, buildings, equipment, etc.). The capital assets are net of the outstanding principal of the debt associated with their acquisition. These assets are not available for future expenditures since they will not be sold. Restrictions by outside organizations are imposed upon 9.4% of the net assets. Therefore, these assets are unavailable for general expenditures but must be used for the intended purposes. Unrestricted net assets of governmental activities are a deficit of $4.6 million at the end of the year, an increase from a $3.3 million deficit in 2002. The deficit does not mean that the City has insufficient resources to pay bills for the next year. However, it does show that on a long-term basis, the City has enmmitraents beyond which it has current resources to fund the obligation. The largest of these commitments, besides the general obligation bonds are certificates of indebtedness which were issued to fund state pension obligations and notes issued for remodeling of the Independence Stadium. The net assets of the City's business-type activities are $291_8 million, an increase of $I0.5 million from 2002. The increase is primarily the result of capital contributions, including forgiveness of $4.5 million debt to the Municipal and Regional Airports from the State. As with the governmental activities, the majority (97.9%) of the net assets are invested in capital assets. The City uses these assets to provide services to the citizens. The unrestricted net assets of the business-type activities are $4.3 million at December 31, 2003 compared to $13.0 million in the prior year. There was a corresponding increase in the investment in capital assets, net of related debt. 
18 



Changes in net assets. The City's total revenues and expenses for governmental and business-type activities are reflected in the following chart: 

Revenues: Program revenues: Charges for services Operating grants and contributions Capital grants and contributions General revenues: Property taxes Sales taxes Other taxes Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs Other Total revenues Expenses: General government Public safety Public works Culture and recreation Health and welfare Community development Economic development .Economic opportunity Interest on long-term debt Municipal and regional airports Water and sewerage Shreveport area transit Golf 

Changes in Net Assets (in millions) Governmental Activities 2003 2002 
$18.3 $16.9 15.6 15.5 
13.5 5.7 48.9 47.9 82.3 76.0 12.6 12.2 
1.6 28.9 221.7 
27.9 77.4 38.1 13.5 .4 5.3 4.8 2.9 17.8 

Downtown parking Total expenses ! 88.1 Increase (Decrease) in net assets before transfers 33.6 Transfers (2.9) Increase in net assets 30.7 Net assets January 1, 2003 438.4 Net assets December 31, 2003 $469.1 

1,7 25.5 201,4 
26.4 69.8 36.8 13.1 .5 4.2 4.7 3.5 19.4 

178.4 
23.0 ( 2.9"} 20.1 418.3 $438.4 

Business-type Activities Total 2003 2002 2003 2002 
$48.9 $47.1 2.9 3.0 
15.7 6.9 

1.0 1,6 68.5 58.6 

$ 67.2 $64.0 18.5 18.5 
29.2 12.6 
48.9 82.3 12.6 
1.6 29.9 290.2 - - 27.9 - 77.4 - - 38,1 - - 13.5 -- .4 - - 5,3 - - 4.8 - - 2.9 - - 17.8 10.4 9.3 10.4 39.8 39.3 39.8 8.9 8.6 8.9 1.4 1.5 1.4 .4 .4 .4 60.9 59.1 249.0 

7.6 2.9 10.5 281.3 $291==,~8 

47.9 76.0 12.2 
1.7 27.1 260.0 
26.4 69.8 36.8 13.1 .5 4.2 4.7 3.5 19.4 9.3 39.3 8.6 1.5 .4 23..7,.5 41.2 22.5 41.2 7197 $760.9 
22.5 697.2 $719.7 



Revenues for the City's governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 were $221.7 million compared to $201.4 million in 2002. Program revenues increased $9.3 million in 2003 compared to 2002 primarily as a result of an increase in operating and capital grants and contributions. Capital grants and contributions were up $7.8 million due to an increase in the contribution &property through donations and annexations. Major additions were the armexation of the Agurs industrial and residential area and contribution of Brunswick Place, Hidden Trace, and St. Charles Place residential developments. General revenues are, for the most part, comprised of sales and property taxes (77.3%). Property tax revenues represent 28.8% at $48.9 million compared to $47.9 million in 2002. Revenue increased over the prior year due to increased property values and collection of delinquent taxes. Effective January 2003, the City hired a collection agency that has been successful in collecting taxes on properties which had been adjudicated. ~ Sales taxes represent 48.5% &revenues at $82.3 million compared to $76 million for 2002. While initially it appears sales taxes increased during the year compared to the prior year, that has to be considered in light of the fact there was a .25% rate increase in 2003. Adjusting for the rate increase, sales taxes decreased approximately 1.4%. Retail sales are stable. ~ Other revenues increased $3.4 million primarily due to a $4.5 million contractor settlement for the Convention Center. Investment earnings were lower due to current market conditions. 
Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

The cost of providing all governmental activities this year was $188.1 million, an increase of $9.7 million from the prior year. The key factors for the increase were: General government expenses increased by $1.5 million. This was mainly due to the decrease in the employee retirement system pension net asset. Market conditions caused assets to depreciate. 



- Public safety expenses increased by $7.6 million. Most of the increase relates to an increase in salaries. The 2003 sales tax increase of .25% was approved by voters for the purpose of increasing the salaries of fire and police personnel. - Public works expenses increased by $1.3 million due to increased depreciation expense. Major additions of projects were capitalized during the year. The City's five largest programs are public safety, public works, general government, interest on long-term debt and cultural and recreation. The graph below shows the expenses and program revenues generated by governmental activities: Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 

9O 8O 7O 60 .o 50 
3O 20 10 0 
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Capital grants and contributions increased $8.8 million over 2002. The majority of the increase was new buses for the Shreveport Area Transit System and forgiveness of $4.5 million of debt to the Municipal and Regional Airports from the State. Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 

Operating Grants and Cor~J~ution$ 4.2% Grants and Coe~ribut~omt. 23.0% I~t Earnings 1.4% 

The costs of these business-type activities were $60.9 million for 2003, an increase of $1.8 million from 2002 primarily due to increased depreciation expenses. Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 
5O 4O o 30 ~E 20 10 0 j / / / 



Financial Analysis of the City's Funds Governmental funds. The analysis of governmental funds serves the purpose of looking at what resources came into the funds, how they were spent and what is available for future expenditures. Did the government generate enough revenue to pay for current obligatioas? What is available for spending at the end of the year7. The City's goveanmental funds for the year ended December 31, 2003 reflect combined fund balances of $238,061,037, an increase of $26,236,361 compared to the prior year. Fifty-four percent of the fund balances are reserved to pay for debt service $42,480,003 and to pay for contracts and purchase orders which have been committed to in the prior year(s) $84,891,930. Management has an actual plan for forty-three percent of the fund balances $101,816,112 which are reported as unreserved, designated. This is primarily for capital projects. The remainder of the fund balances are available for spending except amounts reserved for inventories and endowments and assets held for sale. The General Fund is the City's operating fund which provides most basic services. Its fund balance had an increase of $1,195,761 from the prior year. Revenues were up for the year, increasing by $10,231,366. The major revenue sources are property taxes, sales taxes, and charges for services. - Property taxes increased $1,009,985 in the G-enerai Fund. Property valuations were grenter in 2003. The City increased its collection efforts for delinquent taxes on adjudicated properties. - Retail sales are stable. For the past three years, there has been little or no growth in sales tax revenue. During 2003, there was a .25% increase in the sales tax rate. - Charges for services increased $1,177,223 in 2003 from $16,298,248 in 2002. The increase in charges for services was primarily in landfill and engineering fees. - Total expenditures of the General Fund increased $2,572,331 from the prior year due primarily to increased pay for Public Safety employees. The increase in the sales tax rate was for the purpose of giving these employees increases in pay. The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $42,480,003 which is reserved for payment of principal and interest on debt outstanding. The fund balance for 2003 increased by $5.2 million during the year. The assessed value of property increased for 2003 while debt is being paid off. Also, debt payment on the Convention Center is being paid for by casino revenues rather than through the debt service millage. Proprietary funds. Net assets for the Municipal and Regional Airports increased $8 million primarily as a result of capital contributions from the FAA for the noise abatement program and a $4.5 million forgiveness of debt by the State. Property surrounding the Regional Airport was purchased in connection with the noise abatement program. Water and Sewerage's net assets decreased by $.2 million. Revenues were up but an increase in expenses and a decrease in investment earnings resulted in a decrease in net assets. 



General Fund Budgetary Highlights During the year, the City Council revised the City's budget several times. After the first quarter, amendments and supplemental appropriations were approved to reflect the actual beginning fund balances estimated during the budget process which mu~ be submitted by October 1 for the next year. Additional changes were made as new information indicated a need. The major differences between the original budget and the final budget were primarily the reduction of $4.7 million for sales taxes and a $2.7 million reduction in personnel costs. The decrease in appropriations were spread throughout all funds. During the year, revemues came in morein line with the revised budget. Departments kept their expenditures under control which resulted in a minimum decrease in fund balance. Overruns in appropriations at the legal level of budgetary controls were experienced by: - Office of Mayor Contractual services exceeded the budget by $1,363 due to increased communication costs. - Other unclassified Materials and supplies exceeded the budget by $963 due to increased office supplies usage. Contractual services exceeded the budget by $77,931 due to increased advertising costs and professional services. Interest and civic appropriations exceeded the budget by $109,014 due to lower than anticipated operating funds. No amounts were budgeted for interest expense. Claims exceeded the budget by $1,377,635. The budget had been reduced during the year in anticipation of a lower claims experience. - Public Safety Personnel costs exceeded the budget by $408,075 due to an increase in pension costs. During the year, a decision was made to pay the increase in contribution rate for the state police pension. Materials and supplies exceeded the budget by $8,884 due to increased photo and reproduction expenses. - Public Works Personnel costs exceeded the budget by $50,991 due to reduced budget projections during the year. - Culture and recreation Contractual services exceeded the budget by $155,809 due to increased utility costs. Capital Assets and Debt Administration Capital assets. The.City's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2003 for its governmental and business-type activities was $I billion, net of depreciation as reflected in the following schedule. 



Land Construction in progress Buildings Improvement other than buildings Equipment Dism"oution and collection systems Infrastructure Total 

Capital Assets (net of depreciation in millions) Governmental Activities 
2003 $ 84.7 92.8 109.5 
30.8 21.3 

2002 $ 78.6 183.0 63.7 
19.2 24.5 

263.8 214,4 $602.___99 $583.__._44 

Business-type Activities 
200____33 2002 $ 25.4 $ 22.8 63.3 66.3 41.3 40.4 20.0 20.8 6.5 4.0 253.6 225.0 $41d~0.1 $379.3 

Total 
2003 2002 $ 110.1 $101.4 156.1 249.3 150.8 104.1 50.8 27.8 40.0 28.5 253.6 225.0 263.____~8 214.4 $1.013.0 $962,7 Major additions to capital assets during the current fiscal year included the following (in millions) Street Projects for Economic Developments predominantly funded with general obligation bonds and Louisiana State Grants Fern Avenue Extension - 70~ and Pierremont paid with general obligation bonds Fire equipment replacement paid with general obfigation bonds Curbs and gutters project funded with Community Development Block Grants Riverffont Park, Plaza and Riverwalk predominantly funded with Louisiana State Grams Street Overlay Project funded with Community Development Block Grants Red River Marina Barge predominantly paid for with riverfront development funds Airport PART I50 property acquisition program paid for with Federal Aviation Authority revenue and State grants Improvement for Continental Airline Facility paid with State grants and Airport revenue Purchase of City transit buses paid with Federal Transportation Administration and local general revenues Water main distribution system replacement central region paid with revenue bonds and operating revenues Geographic Information System network - water distribution system paid for with revenue bonds and operating revenues Sanitary sewer overflow control management program paid for with revenue bonds and operating revenues Wastewater infrastructure assets life-cycle management program paid for with revenue bonds and operating revenues 

4.7 1.8 1.4 1.9 1.8 1.4 1.1 2.6 
2.1 2.8 
2.0 2.0 
2.6 2.6 $3o,8 



Current amoums commitled call for spending an additional $67. ! million on the convention center. Resources on hand from bond proceeds will be used to ftmd this project, The water and sewer system plans to spend an additional $39.4 million on the Amiss Water and the Lucas Wastewater Treatment Plants. The water and sewer system plans to borrow the funds to complete the projects. Detailed information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note HI E on pages 74-77 of the report. Long-term debt. At year end, the City had $548.3 million in bonds and other lending agreements as shown in the following table. 

General obligation bonds Revenue bonds Other lending agreements Total 

Outstanding Debt General Obligation and Revenue Bonds (in millions) Governmental Activities 
2003 $305.8 2002 $286.2 
89..__.~1 97.2 $394.9 $383)4 

Business-type Activities 
2003 2002 $ .3 152.9 .22 S~53.4 
$ .5 138.9 4.7 $144ffi.~1 

Total 
2003 2002 $306.1 $286.7 152.9 138.9 89,3 101.9 $548.3 $527.5 New debt was added during the fiscal year. In governmental activities, $37 million of new general obligations debt was issued and $28 million in refunding bonds were issued. The new debt was issued for Public Works projects and Police and Fire improvements. In business activities, new debt of $21.3 million was issued and $72 million in refunding debt was issued. The new debt was issued for improvements to the water and sewer systems. The City's general obligation bonds were downgraded by Moody's Investors Service to an A3 rating. The City continues to maintain an A+ rating from Standard and Poor's Rating Service. State statutes limit the amount of government obligation debt a municipality may issue at a maximum of 10% of the assessed valuation for any purpose. The maximum may be exceeded if the aggregate issued for all purposes does not exceed 35*/, of the total assessed valuation. The City's outstanding general obligation debt is below the state limit. Approximately $50 million of additional general obligation bonded debt is available for issuance. Detailed information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note HI H on pages 79-92 of the report. 



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates The economy is an issue which had to be taken into consideration when developing next year's budget. The local economy is stable. Retail sales are projected to grow 1.5% annually. This assumes that the local economy will grow at ~ moderate rate. Unemployment is expected to gradually decrease in 2004. Employment in services and in the retail/wholesale sectors are growing the fastest which mirrors the national trend. In setting the budgets for 2004, the City dealt with a number of issues with City-wide impact. Among the issues was the need to provide equipment to complete jobs and provide for infrastructure needs. The City has millions of dollars invested in its infrastructure (streets, drainage, utility systems, etc.) It was very difficult to balance the need to renew equipment and maintain infrastructure with the other needs of the City. Fire and police employees are members ofthe respective State retirement systems. The systems have changed the required contribution rates for employers from 9% of employee pay to 21% for fire and 15.25% for police. The City has refused to pay the fire increase and has joined other cities across the State in a lawsuit against the Fire system which challenges the increase. Similar action may occur later with the police system. For setting the budget, the City's increased contributions of approximately $5 million per year was not included. If these funds have to be paid, major adjustments may have to be made to next year's budget. The nationwide problem of health care costs continue to have an impact on City budgets. After a 20% increase in the 2003 budget, no increase was included for 2004. Changes in the benefits will be made to try to avoid the kinds of increases experienced in the past couple of years. A rate increase of 6.5% for water and sewer charges will be reflected in next year's budget. The increase takes effect on January 1, 2004. Overall, there are no major new programs contemplated in the 2004 budget. Requests for Information This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financialinfort~tion should be addressed to the Director of Finance, City of Shreveport, 505 Travis Street, Suite 670, Shreveport, LA 71101. 



 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATRMEIqT OF ~IET ASSETS DECEMBER 31, 2003 

ASSETS Cash and cash equivalenlS Invealmcnts Rcocivablc, net Due from component unit Due from primap/govemmant Internal batanccs Inven~ries Prq~d Reins Mortgage and ttotes ~eeeivabk Other assets Resh'ictsd ~sets: Cash and cash equivalents Inv~stmants Capital ass~: Land and construction in progress Ot/x~ capital e~, n~ of depce~.tian Total assets ~LmES Accounts payable Accrued liabilities Accrued interest payable Due to component unit Due to other governments Due to primacy govommellt Deferred revvnu~ Liabilities payable from restricted assets Deposits and deferred charges Non-currant fiabil~es: Due within one year Due in more than one year Total liabilities NET ASSETS Invested in capital 8,$$~,r Hct Of I'GIO, ted debt Restricted for: Debt service Community development Oth~ purposes Umestdcted (deficit) Total net asseB 

Goveramental Activities 
76,162,384 $ 158,544,040 36,043,375 73 1,756,915 1,]53,318 248,807 21,054,416 6,637,851 
177,572,604 425,365,974 904,539,757 
5,713,498 323,407 3,582,813 49,001 1,722,457 12,133,610 738.295 36,481,554 374,725,959 435,470,594 

Bual~e~-type Activities Total 
3,050,023 $ 4,883,259 7,404,318 
(1356,915) 1,394,841 122,259 
2,888,012 6,352,877 20,788,538 88,724~57 321,430,847 455,282,116 
5,214,428 2,804,480 352,510 33,334 
103,033 8,561,246 549,543 5]5,360 145,280,080 163AI4~14 

79,212,407 $ 163,427,299 43,447,693 73 
2,548,159 371,066 21,054,416 9,525,863 6~52~77 20,788,538 266,296,661 746396,~t 1059,821,873 
10,927,926 3,127,887 3,935,323 82,335 1,722,457 12.236,643 8,561.246 1.287,838 36,996,914 520,006,039 598,884,608 

429,187.376 285.700,991 714,888,367 40,747,2.01 1,926,168 1,870,771 (4,662,353) $ 469.069,163 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial ststemants. 
! ,770,036 
4,397,075 $ -- 291,868~102 

42,517,237 1,926,168 1,870,771 (265,278) $ 760,937,265 

Component Units 
6,651,103 8,260,048 1,124,762 82,335 
17~44 402,531 
704,514 2,315,835 31,174,834 
84,548 10,607 202,882 39,555 73 
1,898,156 17,791,821. 20,027,642 
2,550,049 2,199,829 50,0O0 6,347,314 $ 11 ~147~192 



Functinns/Progrmns Primary Government: Governmental A~tivifies: Gczmral government PuNic safety Public works Culture and recreation Health and wdfa~ Community development Economic d~we]Ol~l~4rtt Economic opportunity hsterest on long-term debt Total govemmenlal activities Business-type a~fivities Municipal and gegiottat Airports Water and Scwems~ Shreveport Arca Transit System Golf Downtown Parking Total buslnesa-type aotivilies Total primary g0vemm~at Cmnpouent units: Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority City Courts CRy Marshal Downtown Development Authority Mctropolilan planning Commission Total component units 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMEIqr OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

$ 27,937,299 77,375,85 ! 38,137,157 13,448,883 359,725 5,344,620 4,770,448 2,940,163 17,811,208 188,125,354 
lo~8,44t 39,781,854 8,907,815 1,419,103 400,008 60,877,221 $ PA9,002r575 
$ 1,104,358 2,631.266 1,587,955 1,269,781 I,]35,481 $ 7 728~841 O~eral R~wnues: Taxes: 

Program Re,~enues Operattug Grants and Centrlbutlons Charges for Services 
- $ 7,258,684 10,257,092 587,409 
231,501 
]8,334,686 6,63s,o56 38,420,146 1,987,715 1,197,848 676 890 48,917,655 $ 67,252,34.1 
s Lo23,~58 528,889 259,574 666,415 112~03 $ 2,590r339_ 

Capital Grants mild Contributions 
- $ - 6,364,465 545,870 13,521,203 35,174 312,122 4,802,633 7W2,069 2,817,628 15,579,961 216~51 91,255 2,553~01 
2,861,410 

13,521.203 11,264,146 1,219)91 3,241,]46 I0 15324~93 $ 29~245,896 
$ 471,691 $ 
50,000 160,000 $ -- 681:691_~ $ 

Property taxes levied for general p~ Property taxes levied for debt service Sates taxes Franchise taxes Occupa~onai ficcnses Gaming Grants ~nd contributions not resh, k't~l to specific programs Investment earnings Payment from City of Shrevepor~ Miscellmleous Transfers "f~.,d geue~ tevea~ and ~az~fcrs Changc in Net Assets Net asses - begiealng Net assvts - ending The accompany'rag notes are an integral part of the finane'ml statements. 3O 



Net (Expenses) Revenue and Chanees in Net Assets Governments] Activities 
(27,937,299) $ (63,752,702) (13,812,992) (12,826,300) (47,603) (310.486) (4,068,379) (122,535) (17,811,2O8) (140,689,504) 

(140,689,504) 

20,130,775 28,798,772 82,343,007 6,858,781 5,752,899 13,754,595 1,614,228 5,094,309 10,004,905 (2,941,669) 171,410,602 30,721,098 438.348,065. 469,069,163 

Business-type Aclivlfies Total 

7,747,512 (51,059) (1,125,553) (221,245) 276,882 6,626,537 6,626,537 

972,706 
2,941,669 3,9~4,375 10,540,912 281,327,190 $ 291,868,102 

$ (27,937,299) $ (63,752,702) (13,812,992) (12,826,300) (47,603) (310,486) (4,068,379) (122,535) (17,811,208) (140,689,504) 7,747,512 (51,059) (1,125,553) (221,245) 276,882 6,626,537 (134,062,967) 

20,130,775 28,798,772 82,343,007 6,858,781 5,752,899 13,754,595 1,614,228 6,067,015 10,004,905 
175,324,977 41,262D10 719,675,255 $ 760,937~65 $ 

Component Uni~ 

390,491 (2,102,377) (1,328,381) (553,366) (863,178) (4,456,811 ) 
845,208 

133,738 4,099,090 49,286 
5327322 670,511 10376~81 1t347.192 



ASSIRTS Cash and cash equlvalcnts Investment~ Property taxcs receivable, net Franchise taxes receivabl~ Accounts receivable, net Due from component unit Dun from otbxt governments Due from other funds laventoties, at cost Notes receivable, net Assets held for resale Total a~sets LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE Liabil~: Aecount~ payable Accrued liabilities Dun to other governments Due to other funds Due to component imit Defend r~v~a~e DeI~its and deferred chorges Note~ payable 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA BALAIqC]~ SHEET GOVERNMF.4NTAL FUNDS DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Fund balance: Reserved for: Debt service Encumbran~s Atmcts held for re'~~ Inventories Endowmenta Unre~n~, dcsigtmed for: Subsequent y~er~ cxl~nditurcs Landfill closure Unreaerved, undesignated Unreserved, designated reported in nonmajor: Special tcwune funds Capital projo~t funds Unreserved, undesignated reportrM in nonmajor: Special revenue funds Total fund balance Total liabilities and fund balance 

1,528,897 $ 2,608,358 4,436,944 1,567,032 1,376,905 10,251,135 16,451 962,035 

1,648,429 323,407 1,327,104 4,045,513 49,001 1,599,594 724,877 

ColmnuD|/y Develolanent 
56,485 $ 96,745 
456,091 
7,252,9a5 15,451 15,515,535 15,523 s :~:os37s 

Debt Serv~e 
13,776,373 23,679381 6,524,607 
364,918 

773,128 $ 2,247 395,353 
11,722,563 8:64,0OO 1,850,011 13,418 9,717,925 21,355,044 1,865,676 

2,115,845 962,035 14,719 
1~60,151 15,523 

2,112~98 7.824,635 78~57 

]3,029,832 
The accompanying notes me an integral part of the financial statements. 32 

2,o53331 $ 23,408)775 

42,480,003 

42,48o,OO3 



$ 30337316 52,146,903 
1 D00D00 

2003A General Obligation Bonds 
$ 127,779 38~75,821 
364,357 

$ 111,745 $ 

Other Governmental Funds 
$ 17,700,269 32,559,320 
1,239,029 73 1,003,598 19,521,853 
68,206 $ 72,092,348 

Total Governmental Funds 
$ 63,527,719 149,166,928 10,961,551 1,567,032 3A36,382 73 18,872,596 20,553,755 962,035 15,515,535 83.729 $ 2~,~7,335 

2,819~25 $ 
10,605~82 69,137 

5396,838 323~07 1,722A57 14~50~95 49,001 15,241305 738,295 8A64,ooo 

13~88,141 6~206 

6~34,16d 38,598D76 (90,183) 58,598~04 

42A80~03 84,891~30 83~29 962,035 14,719 
54,771,274 2,112,598 7,9O2,692 6~34,164 38,598D76 
238,061&37 $ 284,647~35 



 
CITY OF S~IRlgVEPORT, LOUISIANA RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3,1, 2003 

Amounts reported for governmcaltel activities in ~~ statement of net assets are different because: 
Capital as,~ts used in govemn~tal activities are not financial resources and therefore arc not reported in the Sovc~mmental funds. Governmental capital assets Less accumulated depreciation Other assets used in governmental activities that an: not financial re*ources and therefore are not t~porteJ in the governmental funds Bond msuan~ en~ Leas amortization Net pemion assets r~pre~nt the exes"~ cumulative coutributiens to pensien plans and ave not consldcted as finan~d J~somcvs for govemmentel funds Polieemem pension and Mef fund Employees retirement system Some ofth~ City's property ~ will be collected after yanr-end but are not available soon enough to pay for tl~ current pm'iod's expenditures and therefore am defened in the govemmeutal funds. Long-term liabilitic~ including bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not repoAed in the governmental funds. Bonds, notes, and loans payable Ummortized bond discount Dcfsrred charge on refunding Uanmortized bond p~minm Accrued interest payable Net pension obligation Landfdl posteinsme care Compcmsated absences Internal service funds are used by manascment to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of~c internal service funds are reported with governmental activities. Net assets of governmental activities. 
The accompanying notes arc an integral part ofthc financial statements. 

238,061,037 

797,967,731 (195,649,857) 602,317.874 
1,412,833 (117,474) 1,295,359 
877,948 4,380,815 5,258,763 

3,107,695 

(392,126,782) 5,370,363 1,357,504 (1,066,984) (3,582,813) (231,868) (2,112,598) (1,866,013) (394,259,191) 
13,287,626 



35 



 
CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMEI~I" OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

REVENUES Taxes: Pro~rty Sale~ Franc, h~ Licenses and permits Intergo~entul Cherge~ for ~rvices Fines and forfeitures Gaming Inve~en/earnings ~fiscellaneous Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current: General government Public safety Public works Culture and recreation Health ~nd welfare Community development Econo~c development Economic opportunity Debt se~vise: Principal lntermt and other charges Bond issuance costs Advance refunding escrow Capital outlay Total expenditm es Exee~ (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Transfers i~ Trmnsfers out Bonds i~w.d Refunding bonds issued Premium on bonds issued Loan proceeds Paymems to refunded bond e~row agent Tntal other financing ~ and (uses) Net change in fund balances Fund bsiances-beginning Fund balances-ending 

General 
20,315,853 S 82,343,007 6,858~781 6,905,770 6,907,773 17,475,471 2,839,434 

25,407,052 70,238,220 25,992,785 10,707,704 

132,345,761 12,418,068 
4,410,500 (15,632,807) 
(I 1,222,307) 1,195,76] 11,s34,071 

Conununity Development 

7'919148 231,501 
57,4O9 1,082,428 9,281,486 
2,057,0a2 
48,104 359,725 5,141,498 662,418 2'940,163 

11,208,950 
(1,927,464) 

Debt Service 
$ 29,071,015 

339,959 2,0oo,98s 31,411,962 

28,233~30 15,606,416 575.184 25267 44.44O.597 
(13.028,635) 

2,463,086 17.610.114 (1,132,599) 
1,330,4S7 (596~77) 2,tiSO3Og 

27,918.371 771.127 (28,088.967) 18,210,645 5,182.010 37.297.993. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part oflhc financial statements, 



1999A Genera/ Ob~gation Bonds 

2,020,263 4,500,000 6,520,.,263 

3,093,115 3.093,1 ] 5 3,427,148 
200,000 

20O,O0O 3,627,148 79,745,926 

2003A General Obligation Bonds Other Governmental Funds 
$ - $ - $ 

3p48,443 
13,754,595 1,320,594 1,104,162 I,,,14,945 1,320,594 19,522,145 

119,365 

295,483 2,098,927 24,894 
4,108,030 
30,300 24,101,700 119365 30~59,334 1,201,229 

37,0oo,000 324,764 
37,324,764 38,525,993 

(11,137,189) 
9,371,929 (20,231,892) 116,629 182,949 (10,560,385) (21,697,574) 

Total Governmental Funds 
49,386,868 82,343,007 6,858,781 6,905,770 18,066,364 17,706,972 2,839,434 13,754,595 4,953,583 10,0O4,905 
27,759~77 72,337,147 25,992,785 10,780,702 359,725 5,141,498 4,770,448 2,940,163 
28,233,630 15,6o6,416 724,849 25,367 27,194,815 221,867,122 
34,055,629 (36,997,298) 37,000,000 28,035,000 1,095,891 182,949 (28,088,967) 35,283,2o4 26,236,361 211,824,676 238,o61,o37 



 
CITY" OP SHRlgVEPORT, LOUISIANA RECONCILIATION OF THE Sqi'AT]glVl~ OF RlgVEHU]gS, EXPENDITURES AND CI[]ANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO TIlE STATEMENT OF Acrlv]TIES FOR THE YEAR EN]DgD DRC]gMB]gR 31, 2003 Net chansc in fund balances - total goveznmental funds $ 26,236,361 Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: Oovemmeotal funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the ~.atement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depr~iaficm expend. Capital outlay 27,892,750 Depreciation expense (20,866,875) Donations of capital assets incrca~ net assets in the Statement of Activities, but do not appear in the governmental funds be~mse they are not fiunncial revenues. Revenues repmtod in the Statenlent of Activities which are not reported in govemmt~tel funds because they do not provide cun~t financial resources. This adjus~nent is to recognize the net change in unavailable revenues. (Property tax~) The issuance of leng-term debt provides current financial rceo~ to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the c~t financial resources of governmental funds. Neither ~tion, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds rap~ the effect of i~unnce cost~, premiums, diseoan~, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amount~ are defarred and amortized in thc statc;nent of actlvities. The detail of these differences in the h'eatmeot of long-~rm debt and related items is as follows: Bonds issued Loan proc~ts Premium on bonds issued Issuance cests Pri~ipal paymum Payme*ds to refunded bond escrow agent The changes in other long-term assets and liabilities are reported in the Statement of Activities but do not effect current financial resources of governmental funds. The changes are as follows: Employees' retirement sys~m net asset Policemcn's pension and refief fund net amet Fixemet/s pension and relief fend net obllga~on 

7,025,875 12,588,072 
(457,321) 

(65,035,000) (182,949) 0,095,891) 724,849 28,233,630 28,114,334 (9,241,027) 
(5,196,~I) (39,991) " 10,562 (5.226,37o) Some expenses reported in the sta~meot of activities do not requiw the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expendituw~ in governmental funds. Interest acereted on capi~l appr~afion debt (2,338,881) Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (61,830) Amortization of bond prelmums 28,907 Dec~a~ in a~ued interest 170,803 Amortization of issuance costs (61,126) Increase in compensated abreue~ (5,313) Increase in landfill postcloanre care (240,972) Decrease in arbitrage 1,003,757 Internal service funds mrc ~ by mRns~ement to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. The elumse in net sssets of the internal serwca funds is reported with governmental activities. Change in uel assets of governmental activities. The ea~ompanyin8 notes are an integral part of the financial statemeota. 38 

(1,504,655) 
1,300,163 



REVENUIgS Taxes Licerses and Permits hitergoveromenhd Charges for services Fines and forfeitures lavcganent earnings Miseel]aneens Total r~vcaues 

OF SHRI~VEPORT) LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF R]gVENUES) EXPENI)ITURES, AND CIIANGRS IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY FOR TI~ YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

KXPENDITURES General govcxnment: Office of mayor. Sallies, ~ages and employee b~nefits I~t~.xials and supplies Co~ services Other charges Improvements and equipment Total office of mayor City counol: Salaries, wages and employee benefits Matsrials and supplies Coattaatmd services Improvements and equipment Total city council 

Orj~/nal 
$ 113,245,000 $ 7,180,000 2,826#00 17,466,200 2,787,600 (200,000) 457,900 143,762,700 
2,056~g~ 41,113 203,081 10,508 8,700 2.319,600 
919#03 15~8~ 231,671 19~55 1,186,111 Finsace: Salaries, wages and ~mployee benefits 4#22,783 Materials and supplies 271,933 Conh,'actual services 1,420,238 Other charges 374 Imtnoverava~ and equipment 218,945 Total finanes 5,934,273 Other- unclassified: Salaries, wages mad employee benef~ Materials and supplies Contr~ctnsl secvices Improvements and cquipmant Interest and civi~ appropriations Pa~nls to ~c~po~t u~its Claims Total other - uncl~aifi~l Total general government 

2,805,217 1#00 336,828 2,o80,380 4,076,443 7,000,000 16,299,868 25,739,942 

108,545,000 $ 7,449,500 3,326,~00 17,597,700 2,916,600 
1 #59,800 140,894,600 
1,997,o89 37,314 185,782 6,509 6,0O0 

Actual Amounts Budgetary Basts 
109,517,641 6,905,770 3,132,329 17,475,471 2,839,434 11t,196 1,oo6.544 140,988,385 
1,990,695 36,918 187,145 3,713 4,490 

875,503 15,582 228,169 21)855 
829.525 10.605 200,525 13.921 

Variance With Final Budget Positive (Negative) 
972,641 (543,730) (193,671) (122,229) (77.166) 111,196 (53,256) 93.785 
6,394 396 (1,363) 2,796 1,510 9,733 
45.978 4,977 27.644 7,934 1,141,109 1,054,5,76 86,533 

3564.585 284,935 374 363,447 
3,753,166 248.537 1,377,227 354,840 

2,942,217 1,000 376,828 500#00 2#5O,380 4,177,700 5,493.900 15,542,025 24,739,4(}9 39 

2,873,281 1 #63 454,759 5O0,000 2,159,394 3,998,481 6,871,535 16,859,413 25,870,720 

11,419 36,398 33,013 374 8,607 89,811 
68,936 (963) (77.931) 
(109,014) 179,219 (1.377.635) (1,317,388) 0,13t~u) (c~nucd) 



 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LC~ISIAIqA G]F~ERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Public ~fety: Puliee: Salaries, wages and employ~ ban~fits 33,340,441 Materiels and supplies 953,043 Conkactual services 1,645,438 Other charses 67,000 Improvements and equipment 2,186,863 Total police 38,192,785 Fire:: Sahuies, wages and employee benefits Materials and supplies Corm'actual servie,~ Other charges lmprovemenls and equipment Total fire Total public safety Public Works: Sah_,i~, wages and employee banefils Materials and supplies Con~aetual ~viees Other charges /mpzovemants and equipment Total public works Culture and recreation: . Salaries. wages and employee benefits Materials and supplies Contract~l services Other eludes Improvcmmats sad equipment Total culturc and t~reation Total expe,ditures Excess (deficiency) of revanues over (ander) expenditures 

34,269.317 988,099 1,432,337 6,3OO 90O362 37,596A15 75.789,200 
11,592,341 1,656,480 13,128,902 50O 4,350,541 3o.728.764 
7.183,977 892,328 2=909,474 268,165 245,331 11 A99,275 143,757,181 

32,404,742 958,844 1,679,239 67,000 1,898,863 37,008,688 
33.129,320 1.058.102 1A62,340 6,3oo 800,364 36.456,426 73.465.114 
11,412.541 1,696,482 12,933,904 5OO 4,350.543 30,393.970 
6,927,378 805,330 2.812.475 273.166 332,332 139.749.174 5,519 1,145,426 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCI~S (USES) Transfers in 3,476,800 Transfers out (5,90,1,500) Total other financing sources and us~ (2,427,700) 4,410,500 (5,900,0OO) (1,489,500) 

Actual Amotmts Budgetary ]hs~ 
32,812,8!7 967,728 1,532,498 57,3O4 1,898,389 37.268,736 
32,705,892 1,009,613 1,398,012 3,582 773,091 35,890,190 73,158,926 
11.463~532 1.644.873 12,390,510 464 4,232,693 29.732,072 
6,800,273 684,526 2.968,284 270,652 331,864 11,055,599 139,817,317 

(continued) 

Variance Wilh Ftnml Badger Positive (Negative) 
(408,075) (s,884) 146,741 9,696 474 
423,428 48,489 64,328 2.718 27,273 566536 306,188 
(5o,99D 51,609 543,394 36 117,850 661,898 
127.105 120,804 (]55.809) 2.514 468 95.082 (68.143) 

4:1o,50o (6~oL652) (2.091.152) (6ol,652) (6Ol,652) (contin~0~'d) 



 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Net change in fund belancc Fund balances -besiuniug ]~und balauc.es-endL-~g 
(2,422,181) l ! ,834,ff7l 

Fma| 
C3~,o74) 1 ] ,834,071 

Ac/ual Amount~ Budgetm.'y Basis 
(92o,o84) l 1,834,07 ] 

Vm'ianoe With Final Budge/ P~I/ve - Oqel~five) 
(576,olo) 

$ 9,4n,89o $ 1~,489,997 $ io,9i3,987 $ (576,oio) The aeeompanying noles ~c an in4egral part ofth~ fmandal statements. 



RgVENUES Imergovernmen~d Cha~g.~ for seTviees l~scegaeanus Total revenues 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA COMMUNIIT DEVELOPMENT STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

~flPENDITURES Admi~: Salaries, wages and employee benefits Materials mad supplies Contractual services Other charg~ Improvements and cquipment Total admhaistr~ion Community developsucnt projects: Grants Total community developesent projeets Housing and business development: Salaries, "erases and employee benef~ Materials and supplies Conb'ac~a] s~ices Other charges Improvements and equipment Total housing end business development tIou,~g and busin~~ development administration: Salalles, wages and employee beneffls Ma~ez~s and supplies Con1~'actual services O~er charges Implxwements and equipment Total housing and business development administration 
Workforee development Salaries, wages and employee benefits Materials and supplies Contractual s,~vices Other charges Improvements and equipment Total worlfforcc development 

Original Final 
At, teal Amounts Budgetary Basis 

11,417,000 $ 15,649,000 $ 7,910,148 175,000 2,150,000 13,742#00 
593,320 12,100 81,282 70,000 2,000 758302 
895,907 895,907 
17,000 31,270 ] 1,509,935 200,998 
470,600 11,800 256,729 129,404 295 868,828 
1,154,700 63,30O 1,292,721 193,900 54,252 2,758,873 
42 

175,000 2,550,00O 18,374,000 
565,22o 12,1oo 81,29o 70,000 2,000 730~I0 
938,907 938,907 
10#00 17,ooo 11,27o 13,505,435 554,198 14,097,903 
454,700 14,600 256,729 130,604 295 856,928 
2,251,000 121,800 2,763,621 328,900 115,752 5,581#73 

231,501 1,139,837 9,281,486 
561515 1l~22 70,448 68,128 1.146 713#59 
757329 757329 
23,455 767 6,718 4,888,063 353,228 5,272,231 
461,147 14,122 250,944 127,943 295 

Variance With I~al Budget Positive (Negative) (7,738,852) 56,501 (1~10,1631 (9D92,514) 
3305 278 10,842 1,872 854 17,551 
181,578 181,578 
(13,455) 16~33 4,552 8,617,372 200,970 8,825,672 
(6,447) 478 5,785 2,661 854~51 2~77 

1,164,433 15,760 1,588,242 236,262 8~15 3,013312 
1#86,567 106,040 1,175,379 92,638 107.137 2,567,761 (continued) 



 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Workforce development administration: Salarie% wages and employee benefits Materials and supplies Contractual u:tvices Other charges hnprovements and equipment Total wodfforee development admimstration 
Codes enforcement; Salaries, wages and employee ben~g~s Materials and supplies Contractual s~ces Other charges hnpmv~ments and equipment Total codes enforcement Total Expenditures Deficiency of revenues under expenditute~ 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Transfers in Tran~ers out Total other financing sources and uses Net change in fund balance Fund balances- beginning 

Budgeted Amounts 
253,100 IO,SO0 1s~82 15,600 4,00O 296,782 
827,675 88,855 1,100,468 440,659 36,500 2,494,157 

2,097,600 (350,0o0) 1,747,600 (4,342,852) 2,650,708 

Final 50830o 28,500 31,582 29,600 12,000 610,382 
797,675 118,855 905,468 410,659 186,500 2,419,157 25,234,960 
(6,86o,9~o) 
2,007,600 (350,000) 1,657,600 

Actual Amounts Budgetary Basis 22],628 2,941 7,995 26,264 
258,828 
772,557 119,748 876,038 372,852 158,696 2,299,891 13,169,101 
O,887,615) 
2,463,086 (1,132,599) 1,330,487 (5,203,360) (2,557,]2s) 

(continued) 

VarialzceWith F*m~Budget Positive (Negative) 287,072 25,559 23,587 3,336 12,000 35],554 
25,]18 (893) 29~3o 37,807 27,804 119~66 12,065,859 
2,973,345 
455,486 (782,599) (327,113) 2,646,232 

$ (1,692,144) $ (2,552~652) $ 93,580 $ ~2 646,232 The a~ompanyuig notes me an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS PROPRIETARY FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

OPERATI~G REVENUES Chases f~ services N~sesUsneom 
OPERATING EXPENSES Perstmal services Cure-actual services and <~er expenses Utilities Repairs and mainte~nce Ivlalerials and supplies Claims Depreciati~ 
Operating incc~ne (loss) NONOPERATING (EXPENSES) InvesUnent eamit~ Interest e',q~--nse lUergovemm~al Passenger facility charges Bcmd isstmuce costs N~ *m~ in f~r v~ of inv~m~en~ Total mvopeiating revenues (e~) luccanc (lo~s) bef~e c~aributions and tran~ers Capital contributions Transfers in Transfers cut Change in net assets Total net assets-~ Total net ~  

Businees-/ype Activities Enterprise Funds Municipal Water and Regional and Air~rts Sewerage Other Enterprise Funds Total 
$ 6,618,836 $ 37,578,012 $ 3,8(30,763 $ 47,997,611 $ 16,220 842.134 61,690 920,044 

Governmelttal AcUvifiei Internal Service l~nds 
29,425,043 1,995,577 6,635,056 38,420,146 3,862,453 48,917,655 31,420,.620 

4,161,976 842,702 719,521 371,053 268,145 2,707,568 
9,151,631 9,48'7,084 2,484,617 1,437,302 3,530,843 ~o3~s~ 

6,029,243 2,155,435 198,701 11,871 1,336,034 
19,342,850 12,485,221 3,402,839 1,820,226 5,135,022 

1,672,291 3,354,861 45,601 768,979 983,525 23,424,375 65,249 9,070,965 35,129,364 10,726,136 54,926,465 30,314,881 
111,998 (1,259.361) 216,751 1,172,165 (29,083) 3,230 (9,032) 206,66g (2,229,241) 10,091,981 153,529 8,016,269 59,597,703 $ 67,613,972 

842,918 (4,201,493) 91,258 (213,898) 5,418 (237,099) 43,712,896) (422,114) 1,219,391 (950,00O) (152,723) 208,050,692 $ 207,897,969 
The acc~npanying notes are an in~'.egral par t of the ~ statemevis. 

9,142 (67) 2,553,401 
(723) 2,561353 (4,301,930) 3,241,156 3,738,140 2,677,366 !.%678,795 $ 16,356,161 

964,058 (5,460,92]) 2,861,410 1,172,165 (242,981) 8,648 (246,854) (944,475) (6,953,285) ]4,552,528 3,891,669 (950,000) 10,540,912 281,327,190 $ 291,868 102 

1,105,739 
201,682 (3,791) 
(4,322) 193,569 1,299,308 855 
1,300,163 11,987.463 
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CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Bu~me~type Ac~i~es Enterm-i~ Fmtds M~tp~ and Rezimm| Airports Water and Sewerage O/her Enterprise Fuads 

Cash flows fre~ operating activities: Receipts from operalio~s 6,778,419 $ 38,374,590 $ 3,742,301 $ 48,895,310 $ Paymaats to suppliers (1,977,622) (12,844,706) (3,632,001) (18,454,329) Payments to employees (4,137,874) (9,141.594) (6,004,1)65) (19,283,533) Claims - - - Other ieceipts Other payments 16,220 (215.000) Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 464.143 Cash flows front noncapttal financing jctlvltles: Intergovemmental Subsidy from federal 8rant 216.751 Transfers in Transfers oul Interest paid c~ operati~ Cash bond 

842,134 (2.687.000) 38,353 (85,ooo2 896367 (2,987,0O0) 
30,35o,994 (5,000,31 I) (1,679,131) (20,077,917) 

14,543,424 (5,940,412~ 9,067,155 3,593,6:35__ 
91,258 
(950.000) 469 
2,516,017 3,738,140 91,258 2332368 3.738.140 (95o,000) (67) 469 (2,714) 

Net r.ash !~o.&ted by (used in) non~pitat financing activities 216,751 . (858,273) 6,254,090 5,612,568 (2~71,1) Cash flows ~ona capital and related fimmcig activities: Proceeds from issmace of d~bt Ae quisitic4a and ~on of caphal assets Principal p~l ~ debt Interest paid on debt Capledized lease debt payment Caped Stoats Capital contributed by (returned to) others Payment of debt issuance costs Refund of b~~l issuance costs Passe.gee facilily charges 

-- 21,605,204 (5,669,484) (28,736,300) (510,000) (8.170,924) (I.259,361) (5,148,359) - 04.655) 5,181,371 07o,ooo) 
1,172,165 (422,449) 20.857 

0,976,545) 
3,122,770 675,654 
21,605,204 (38,382,329) (8,680,924) (6.407.720) (44.655) 8.304.141 505,654 (422,449) 20,857 1,172,165 

(9.24 I) 02,600) (i.435) 

Nel cash used in capltal a~d related fmm~ing ac~i'vities (1,255,309) (20,896,626) (178,121).. (22,330,056) (43,276_) CaSh flows from h2vestlng =cttvili~: l~mlmsv of hvvs~neats Proceeds from sale and matmlty of investments htercst o~ invcstm~nts (8,339,219) 3,537,231 112,678 (21,432,358) 11,100,000 842,309 (614,971) (30.386.548) - 14.637,231 9.118 964.105 (9,377,112) 205,055_ Net cash used in iwcesting activities (4,689.310) (9.490.049) (605,853), (14,785,212) (9,172.05_7_) Net decrease in cash and cash eqeival~nts (5,263,725) (16,701,524) (470,296) (22,435,545) (5,624,412) 8,056,266 22,745.056 1,037,123 ~ ,31,838,445 18,259,077__ Cash and cash equivalenls, end of year $ 2 792 541 $ 6,043.532 $ 566 827 $ 9 402 900 $ 12 634 665 



 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF CASH bLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNDS FOR THE yEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2003 
Bu.~.-type Acd,~fi. Enterprise l~mm~ Mtmicipai and Regional Airports Water and Sewerage_ Oliter E~ttorpriJe Fe~h Rtcoacalatl~m of operaemgiacome Ooze) to net cash provided by (used ia) operatbtg ace#tits: Operatinglncome(loss) $ (2.435.909) $ 3,290.782 $ (6.863,683) $~.008~810) $ 

Govermnmltal Aceivai~ htternal Servke 
1,105.739 Adjustrmmts to reomcile operating income 0oss) to net cash provided by (esed in) operating activities: Depreciation and amostizatlon 2,707.568 9.037,887 994,852 12.740,307 65,249 (incrc*se)Decm in assets: Rcceiveblcs Due from other funds lnvmtories Prepaid items increeme(Decrease) in liabilkles: Accounts Imyeble Ae.c~ |iabili~,s Dee to other fends Deferred re, mine Customers' deposits Compe~mted ebseoces 

(29.176) (532) 
78.846 121.282 (373) (2,3 V0 652 24,[02 

691,657 05O.586) 
181.803 (14,489) 1.581.540 21.090 107.372 (3,632) 

(12,169) (~*,228) 4,756 (45,539) 
650,312 (84,228) (346,362) (45.539) 

(1,357.690) 288,064 22,086 (34,854) 25.823 286,472 64.089 11.027 117,820 1,262.951 -- 1.581,t67 2.184,841 12,823 31,596 -- 108,024 15.926 36,396 (6.840) 2,900,052, 11252.642 923,271 15,075,965 2,487,896 Nct cash provided by (used in) operatmg activltins $ 464143 $~  $ ~5.940.412) $ 9067155 $ 3593635 Non-cash iavesfi~g, capital and financing activities: The Municipal and Regional Airports had a net increva~ io the fair value of aivestmm~ of $3,230. The Municipal and Regional AirForts disposed of capital assets. The tmdeI~e~isted cost of the eqaipm~~ was ~rded as a lcss of $9,032. The Municipal end Rag~oal Airpotte b.sd a ncoca,sb item. Cs~ C~t~-~ for Forgiveness of Airports debt by the State of Lceisiana in the amount of $4.500,000. The Department of Water and Sewerage had a net ~'rease in the fair value of investmcats of $5.418 ]'he Depatlment of W&ter and Sewerage recaivcd noacash dotmto~l Water and Sewer capital of $1,219,391. The De~ of Water and Sewerage disposed of capits] assets. The undepJ~,'ciatccl cost of the equipment was recorded as a loss of $237.099. The De~ uf Water and Sewerage had bond mmmce costs of $1,041.921 which were ded~ted fsom the proceeds of various 2003 "A". "B*. mid "C" Re fu~ing Water and Sewer Revctme issues to pay bond issaance premaim md other iss~an~ cost and vail be mort~ ov~~ the "~atlm~ debt repayment periods. The aconmpanylag notes are an inteSnd part of the financial sthteme~ts, 49 



Cash and cash cquiwlents Receivables: Intctrcat rec~vab[~ Accounts receivable Due from other funds Prel~id items Inve.~menta, at fair value: U.S. government secmifies Mutual funds Domestic corporate bonds Domcstic common stock Total inveslments Other assets: Cash ~r~nder value of life insuran~ pofici~ Total assets 

OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ]NET ASSETS FIDUCIARY FUNDS DECEMBZR 31, 2003 

LIABILITIES Accoun*~ pa~d~le Due to other funds Employees' deposits held in escrow Total liabilities NET ASSETS Held m trust for pension benefits 
The accompanying no~s arc an integral pa~ of the financial statements. 

Employee Reth,ement Fuads 
302,736 614,424 25,167 140,131 611,793 38,424,828 9,195,265 43,572:54 96,156,715 187,349,262 
7,885,117 196,928,630 
1,942 S~40,075 1,204,984 6,447,001 $ 190~81~29 



ADDITIONS Con~bufions: Employer PI~ members 

CITY OF SItRgVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY IqET ASSETS FIDUCIARY FUNDS FOR THg YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Investment taming: Net appreeintiun in fair value ofinwstmcnts Interest Di~dm& 
Less investment expense Net investment income Miscellanums Total add/tions DEDUCTIONS Pensions Refund of member oolfaibulion Administrative expenses Life insurance 
Total deductions Change in net assets Net assets - beginning Net assets- ending 
The accompanying notes are an in~gral pert of the financial stetemenls. 

Employee Retirement Funds 
$ 5205,063 

~o2.4%9s9 3,858,788 1,894,126 26,OOO,9O3 871,777 25,129,126 457,420 
33A17~16 
12,512,388 1,031,371 173,603 236,607 13~53~69 19~3~7 171,018,182 



ASSETS Ca~ and cash eqmvaler~ $ Investmen~ Re~ivables, net Due from other ~ve~r.me~t~ Dee frem !mmary 8ewmner~t Prepa~ ~ns M~tgage and noies recdvable Oth~ assetJ Capi~ a.~ets: Land and ~W~cfion ia p~gre~ Other c~piud assets, net of deprecia~i~ Total assets LIABILITIES Accounts payable Accaled liabilitie~ Accrued iv~e~rest payable Due to ot~ govemme~ Doe Zo p.amaty govmwamt bler, cltrrem liabilities: Due within one year Due in mere lhan one year Total lia~iti~~ 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS COMPONENT UNITS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Shreveport Heine Mertga~e .Au~ray 
2.290,998 S,260,048 123.887 
11,616,062 402,531 

Ctty Cm Q~ Mar-.dlud Dewntewn Developmmt Aetbortty Metropolllan ~8 Cemmi~don 
$ 2,661.892 $ 1,555,192 $ 142~81 $ 40 $ 9,059 951,816 - - 40,000 - 82.335 - 1~644 -- 

704,514 -- 400.521 222,208 1,405,515 28'7,591 2~-~693,526 3,071.472 1,777,400 2.600.291 11032r145 
2O2,882 
1.777,898 17,441,779 19,422,559 NET ASSETS Inves~ in c, apltal assct~ net of related debt Resh.icted for: Debt sea.vice 2,199.829 Oth~pu~o~s Unrestricted 1,071,138 Total net ass~ $ 3,270r967 

The a,~ompanymg notes ~ an integral paa of the finaacial st.~nents. 

8,751 
"g,751 
400,521 
2,662,200 $ 3~062,721 
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1,148 

1,148 
222,208 
1.554,0~1 $ 1t776,252 

74.237 10,607 
120,258 350,042 555,144 
935,215 
50.OOO 1,039,932 $ 2t045t147 

412 39,535 73 
40.040 
992.105 

84,548 10,607 202.882 39.555 73 1,898,156 17t791t821 20.027,642 
~550,049 2,199,829 50,000 6.347,314 $ 11 147 192 
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CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA $TATgMENT OF Acrivrrlgs COMPONENT UNITS ]FOR 'r][~ Y]gAR ENDID D]g~g]tmElg 31, 2003 

Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority Mor~e operations City Courts Judicial C~y~ Judicial Downtown Development Attthodty Downtown development program Parking program Interest on long-term debt Total Downtown Development Authority Metmpoliten Planning Commission PlnnnlnS and zoning 

C~arges for Services 
$ 1,104,358 $ 1,023,158 $ 2,631,266 528,889 
575,197 252,724 434,474 7.386 
1,135,481 

259,574 35,923 201,804 428,688 666,415 112.303 

Operating Grants and Coamlbufions 
471~91 

50#00 
50,000 160,000 $ 7,728,841 $ 2r590r339 $ ,, 651~691 

The accompanying noteo are an integral part oft.he financial statement~. 

Oene'ra[ Revenues: Property taxes levied for gtmeral purposes Inveatment earnings Payment from City of Shreveport Miscellaneous Total general revenues Change in bier Assets Net assets- beginning Net ~-t~ - ending 



Net(FAtpenses) Revenues and Chan~es in Net Assets Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority 
$ 390A91 $ 

390,491 

75,943 
75,943 466,434 2,$04,533 $ 3~270,967 

City Courts 
(2,102,377) $ 

Marshal 

0,32S,3SD 

Downtown Develol~rn~t Authority 

(459274) (so,92o) (5,786) (7,386) 

$ 
Metropolitan Plannmg Commlmion 

$ 390,491 (2,102,377) (1,328,381) (489,274) (5o,92o) (5,786) (7,386) 
(863,178) (863,178) (2,102,37"7) (1,32~,3sD (5s3,366) (a63,178) (4As6,Su) 

29,254 2,182,995 2,212,249 109,872 2~952,849 $ 3,062,721 

21~5 1,115,855 1.137,2.00 (191,181) 1,967,433 s 1,776,2s2 

845,208 7,1~ 49,286 901~90 348,324 1,696,823 $ _ 2,045,147 
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800,240 800,240 (62#38) 1,o5s,o43 $ 992~105 $ 

845,208 193,738 4,099D90 49,286 5,127,322 67O,511 10,476,681 11.147.192 



 



I. 
CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

The accounting policies of the City of Shreveport conform to generally accepted accountm~ principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: A. The Financial Repertiug Entity The City of Shreveport (the "City") was incorporated in 1839, under the provisions of Louisiana R.S. 33:1. In May of 1978, the present City Charter was adopted which established a mayor-enuncil form of goveanment. The City provides a full range of municipal services as authorized by the charter. These include police and fire protection, emergency medical services, public works (streets and waste collection), public improveanents, water and sewer services, parks and recreation, planning and zoning, public transportation, social, cultural and ge~nal administrative services. The basic criterion for determining whether another goverranental organization should be melutled in a primary governmental unit's reporting entity for basic financial statements is financial aec, ountability. Financial accountability inelndes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing body and the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization, or if there is a financial benef~bordea relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary govervanent should be included in its reporting entity. The financial statements present the City of Shreveport (the pfana~j government) and its component units. The operations ofthe Shreveport Municipal and Regional Airports and the Shreveport Area Transit System are included as a part of the primary government. The discrete cc~mponent units discussed below are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. There are no blended component units in the City. Discretely Presented Component Units The component units columns in the govcrnme~-wide financial statements include the financial data of the City's component units. They are reported in a separate cohrmn to e~aphasize that they are legally separate from the City. City Courts The City Courts have jurisdiction over all -~iolations of City ordinances and state misdemeanor cases. The Courts were created by Special legislative act_ Their jurisdiction includes the incorporated area of the City of Shreveport plus the fourth ward of Caddo Parish. City judges are elected and ennnot be removed by City officials. The City Courts are fiscally dependent on the City of Shreveport. The City has the ability to modify or approve their budget which comes from the General Fund. There are certain funds collected by the CRy Courts, pursuant to state statute, which are under the 



control of the courts. The City Courts serve the citizenry of the City of Shreveport plus Ward Four of Caddo Parish. C~y Mar~ The City Marshal is the executive officer of the City Courts. The Marshal has the power of a sheriff in the execution of the courts' ordexs and mandates in making requests and preserving the peace. The City Marshal is an elected official. The City Marshal is fiscally dependent on the City of Shreveport. The City has the ability to modify or approve the budget which comes from the General Fund. Certain funds are collected such as court costs, pursuant to state statute, which are under the control of the City Marshal. The City Marshal serves the citizenry of the City of Shreveport plus Ward Four of Caddo Parish. 
The Downtown Development Authority was established by an ordinance of the City of Shreveport to provide for the revitalizaticm of downtown Shreveport. Its purpose is to coordinate the efforts of the public and private sectors for the economic and overall development of the Downtown Development District. The Downtown Develolunent District is a special taxing district within the City of Shreveport created by an act of the State legishture. The City Council appoints the seven voting members ofthe Authority. The Authority must submit to the City Council its proposals, programs and recommendations for the levy of special ad valorem taxes. The City has the ability to modify or approve the budget of the Authority and its plan of work. The Authority's governing body is not substantively the same as the City's. The Authority provides services for a limited area of the City of Shreveport, which consists basically of the downtown area. 
The MeUepolitan Planning Connnission is responsible for the orderly, physical development of the City of Shreveport and the surrounding planning area. The Commission makes re, commendations to the City Council and the Parish Commission. The Metropolitan Plarming Cornmissiou consists of nine members with four appointed by both the City of Shreveport and the Caddo Parish Commission and one member elected by joint action of the governing authorities. Although the Commission is legally separate, the City acts as its fiscal agent and has the authority to modify and approve its budget. The Metropolitan Planning Commission is fiscally dependent on the City. The Metropolitan Plaaning Ccanmission serves the citizenry of the City of Shreveport. 
The Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority is a public trust, created by state statute, with the City of Shreveport as beneficiary. The Authority is authorized to undertake various pro~'ams to assist in the fieancing of housing for pvrscam of low to moderate income in the City of Shicveport. There are five trustees that are appointed by the City Council for terms of five years, Per the terms of the trust indenture, the City has no power to transact business for the trustees norto control or direct the actions ofthe trustees. The City is ~itled solely to the benefits of the trust, and at the termination of the trust it shall receive the residual assets of the asst. The City cannot access the organization's 



funds at will, although there is some ability to access them at the discretion of the Authority. The City is financially accountable since it appoints all of the governing body and there is a potential for Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority to provide specific financial benefits to the City. The Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority serves the citizen~ of the City of Shreveport. 
The Shreveport Convention Center Hotel Authority is a public trust, created by state statute, with the City of Shreveport as beneficiary. The Authority is authorized to oversee the development and operation of the Shreveport Convention Center Hotel for the purpose of furthering economic development. There are five appoimcd trustees. The trustees are the Mayor, Chief Administrative Officer, City Council President, City Council Vice-President, and a citiz~ chosen at the discretion of the Mayor and approved by the City Council. The tenu of the Trustees shall be for as long as they hold the office enumerated, and flw term of the citizen shall run concurrently with the mayoral term. Pe~ the terms of the trust indenture, the City has no power to transact business for the trustees nor to control or direct the aeuous of the trustees. The City cannot access the Authority's resources but is the beneficiary of the residual assets of the termination of the must. The City may provide financial support in the form of i~terim financing or guarantor ofthc Authority's debt. The boards are not substantively the same as the City. The Authority serves the citizenry of the City of Shreveport. The ~ast was created in 2002 but has had no reportable transaction through the year ended ~ber 31, 2003. The Metropolitan Planning Commission does not issue separate financial statements. The government-wide financial stateanents are presented within the basic financial sta,~e~ments. The fired fmandal statements are included as supplementary infonnafien within the section entitled Discretely Presented Component Unit. Complete financial statements of the other individual componeat units may be obtained from their respective adiuinistmtive offices. 
City Courts 1244 Texas Avenue Shreveport, Louisiana 71101 City Marshal 1244 Texas Avenue Shreveport, Louisiana 71101 

Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority 1400 Youree Drive Shreveport, Louisiana 71101 Downtown Developnumt Authority 400 Edwards Street Shreveport, Louisiana 71101 Related Organization Shreveport Housing Authority The Authurity was created by State statute and it is legally separate from the City. "['he Mayor appoints the five commissioners; however, the City cannot impose its will on the Authority since it does not have the ability to modify or approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the cormmssioners. The Authority is fiscally independent and no financial benefat or burden relationship exists with the City. Therefore, it is not included in the City's financial statements. 



Jointly Governed Organization Caddo-Shr~eport Sales and Use Tax Cmmnission The Commission is an independent agency which collects sales lax~. It is legally separate from the City. The Commission is a jointly govem~ organization. Tim City does not retain an ongoing financial interest ol responsibility in its operations. It is not included in the City's financial statements. B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government aad its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfimd activity has been removed from these statements. Govemmcmal activities, which normally axe supported by taxes, intergovernmeatal revenues, and other nonexchange ~ransacOons, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. The statesuem of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function of governmental activities and different businees-type activities are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines, and charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or program and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or program. Taxes and other itesus not properly included among program revonues are reported instead as general revenues. Separate financial stat~xcnts are provided for gevermnemal funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the lattor arc ~luded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental fimds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fired financial statements. C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation The goveroment-wide financial ~ents are reported using the econmmc resources ncasurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciaxy fund financial statements. Revenues arc recorded when earned and expenses axe recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items arc recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been tact. Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measureraent focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and ava/lablc. Revenues are considered to be available when they are colleet]~ole within the carrent period or soen enough therea~r to pay liabilities of the current period. For property taxes, the City considers revenues to be available if they arc collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. For revenues other than property taxes, the City considers thean to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of 



the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability, is recurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual end so bare been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue itcans except landfill fees are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. The City reports the following major governmental funds: The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general governmenl, except those requ~ed to be accounted for in enother fund. The Comraunity Devdopment Fund is responsible for programs to increase housing opportunities, assist in the creation of employme~, dovelop business expansion and regulate codes enforcement. The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general obfigafion debt of governmental funds. The 1999A General Obligation Bond Fund accounts for proceeds of bonds issued for construction of a new convention center and multieultural museum. The 2003A General Obligation Bond Fund accounts for prccecds of bends issued for the purpose of constructing, acquiring and improving works of neighborhood public improvemc~, recreation facilities, and police and fire facililies. The City reports the following major proprietary funds: The Water and Sewerage Fund accounts for the activities mvolved in operating the sewerage treatment plant, sewerage pumping stations and collection systems, and the water distribution system. The Municipal and Regional Airports Fund accounts for the activities involved in operating the city's two airports. Additionally, the City reports the following fund types Internal Service Funds accotmt for health care, risk marmgeraent, and fleet management services provided to other departments on a cost reimbursement basis. The Fiduciary Funds account for the activities of the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemen' s Pensien and Relief Fund and the Employee's Retirement System, which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees. Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the goventment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not ennflict with or contradict guidance of the Govenunental Accounting SlandsJds Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent ptivate-seetor guidance. 
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As a general rule the effect of interfimd activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lien of taxes and other charges between the govermnent's water and sewera~ function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. The City does not use an indirect cost allocatic~ system. However, the General Fund charges certain funds an administrative overhead charge based on a cost allocation plan. This is eliminated like a reimbursement and reduces the revenue and expense in the General Fund. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revcaues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and the internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for en~aprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All reveaues and ~es not menimg this definitic~ are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. When both restricted and mnestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity 
The City maintains a pooled cash and invesmamt account that is available for use by all funds, except those restricted by state statutes or other legal requirements. Each fund's positive equity in the pooled cash and investment account is presented as cash and cash equivakags and investments on the balance sheets. Negative equity balances have been reclassified and are reflected as due to/from other funds. Interest income and expense are allocated to the various funds based upon their average daily equity balances. Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instnanent could be exchanged in a enrrent transaction between will/n~ parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Interest is accrued as earned. For purposes of the Statmnm~ of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investmo~ (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or loss when purchased to be cash equivalents. The Smtcmcm of Investment Policy approved by the Mayor and Chief Adimnistmtive Officer authorizes the City to invest in the following types of scenrities: Direct obligations of the U.S. government, including such insmanents as treasury bills, txeasu~ notes and treasury bonds. Money market mutual funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Fully-collat~ certificates of deposit issued by qualified conmmrcial banks and savings and loan associatiens located within the State of Louisiana (classified as deposits for this footnote). 



Repurchase agreements in government securities made with the primary dealers that report and ate regulaled by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. Louisiana Asset Management Pool which is authorized under Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1321. The City is prohibited from investing in derivatives In addition to the above types of s~curities, the pension trust funds are authorized by the City's Statement of Investment Policies to invest in the following types of seenrities: 
Investm~ contracts and pooled accounts maintained by trust companies, bmfl~s and invesUnent managers. 

Investment policies require that se~ifies underlying repurchase agreements must have a minimum excess of market value of securities over the principal amount of the investment. Securities must have a maturity of less than 3 years. 2. Receivables and Payables All outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other fmuis." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and bosin~s-rype activities are reported in the govemment-wicle financial statements as "internal balances." Within the City's Water and Sewerage Fund, an estimated amount has been recorded for services rendered but not yet billed as of the close of the year. The receivable was computed by taking the cycle billings the City sent to its customers in January and prorating the amount of days applicable to the current year. All Wade and property tax receivables ate shown net of an allowance for unenlleetibles. 3. Inventories and Prepaid Items Invemories are valued at cost using the first in, first out (FIFO) method. Inventory in the Genexal Fund consists of materials and supplies held for consumption, Reported inventories in the General Fund are equally offset by a reservation of fund balance with indicates that although inventories are a c~uponent of assets, they do not constitute '~available spendable resources". Inventories in the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds consist of pipes, meters, fittings and valves, repair materials, spare parts and ite~ns held for sale at the Municipal Golf Courses. Inventories ate accounted for using the consumption method. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and ate recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 



4. Restricted Assets Certain process of the enterprise ~nd revenue bonds, as ~ell as certain resources set aside for their repaym~t, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The bond construction funds are used to report those proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The bond and interest sinking funds are used m segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months. The debt service reserve funds are used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond current debt service account. 5. Capital Assets Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the gove~ment-wide financial statem~ts. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Debated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
The total interest expense incurred by Water and Sewerage was $5,838,902. Of this amount $1,637,409 was inelud~l as th~ cost of capital assets in construction in progress. Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line method over th~ following estimated useful lives: 
Buildings Improvements other than buildings Infrastructure Distribution and collccfen systems Equipment 

10-50 10-50 20-75 10-50 3-20 
It is the City' s policy to permit employees to aecurnulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the City. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is repoffed in goverranental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 



Vacation earned is based on the number of years of services as follows 
Less than five years Five to ten years Ten to fifteen years Fifteen to twenty years Twenty or more years 

Days Earned Per Year 10 12 15 18 21 
For classified employees, a maximum of 240 hours of accrued vacation leave can be vested and carried forward to sueeeeding calendar years. For non-classified employees, the maximum is 320 hours. All accrued sick leave credited to an employee can be carried forward to succeeding calendar years without limitatio~a. Aeenmulated sick leave is forfeited at the time an employee t~ninates employment. However, accumulated sick leave is counted as creditable service at retirement if lhe employee has accumulated at least 175 hours. 
In the government-wide financial statements, end proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable gov~nnmaal activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums, discounts, issuance costs, and gains (losses) on refunding are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount or deferred amount on refunding. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. In the fund financial statements, goverranental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. Fund Equity In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for accounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The following list describes the reservations governmental fund financial statements: 
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amount the City intends 10 honor as a eommilment regardless of the lapse m the appropriation. 



Reserved for Inventories This amount represents the portion of fund balance that is not available spendable resources even though the inventories are a componem of net current assets. 
Certain assets have been reserved m the Debt Service Fund for future payment of debt service. Reserved for Endo~cracots This is an accoont to segregate momes donated for a City zoo. The City functions in a trustee capacity; however, due to the immaterial mnount involved, it is carried in the General Fund. 
The maroserved portion of fund balance dosignated for subsequent years' expcoditures is the amount that has been set aside for futm~ year's budgets. 
The unreserved portion of fund balance deaignated for hmdfi]! closure is to provide for amounts to be required when the landfill closes. 

A. Budgetary Information 
Prior to October 1, the Mayor files with the Clerk of Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year comm~ing the following JanRary. The operating budget includes proposed oxpeadituros and reaat~d financing sources. The City Ccroncil conducts public hearings and proposes adoption of the various budget ordinanCeS. Prior to Dec~nber 15, the City Council adopts the fma] budgets controlling the finandal operations of the City for the ensuing fiscal year. Legal budgetary comzol for operating budgets is exercised at the departmem/obje~ class with the exception of the Community D*velopmcot Dopamneat where control is exercised at the division/object class. Tim ordinances provide lump sum appropriation at the object level. The City Charter allows the Mayor to authorize the t~,msfer of budgetad amounts from one activity to another within the same lump sum appropriation, within the same dspartmeat with the exception of the Community Development Department whore funds must be spent within the same division. Budgetary transfers across depastnmnt lines or between classes of lump sum appropriations must ho approved by tim City Council. During the year, the City Council approves several amco&acots to the budget. The City Charter provides that expenditures may not legally oxcocd appropriations. Formal budgetary inmgration and cocumbran~ accounting arc esuployad as management torero1 devices during the year for the General, certain Special Revenue Funds (Community Developmcot and Riverfront Developme~), Capital Projcots and Proprietary Funds. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for Debt Service Funds because effective budgetary control is altm~tatively achieved through gemTal obligation bond ~edcoture provisions. The capital project funds adopt project length budg~ts. The budgets for governmental funds are adopted on a basis substantially consistcot with generally accepted accounting principles with the following exceptions: (1) encumbrances (e.g. purchase orders, contracts)" are treated as budgeted expeaulitules in the year of the commitmcot to purchase and (2) capital leases are not budgeted as ~p~lituros at the ia~~tion ofth~ leas~. 



All appropriations which are not expanded or encumbered lapse at year end. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and are carried for, yard. Revisions were made to the following govemme~al funds original budgets as follows 
General Fund Community Development 

Ongh~ 8udget including Carry Forwards $t49,661,681 20,182,452 
Final Revised Revisions Budget $(4,012,507) 5,402,508 $145,649,174 25,584,960 Adjustments necessary to reexmeile the excess (defieiea~ey) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses: 

Net change in fund balance (Budget Basis) Adjustments: Encumbrances Net change in ~nd balunc~ (GAAP Basis) B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

Cunnnunity Development 
$(2,557,128) 

During 2003, based on the legally adopted level of cuntrol for budgetary purposes, the following funds had excess expenditures over appropriaticms: General Fund Office of Mayor Cun~xaetoal services Other unclassified Materials and supplies Contractual services Interest and civic appropriations Claims Police Salaries, wages and employee benefits Materials and supplies 
Public works Salaries, wages and employee benefits Culture and rcereatiun Contractual services 

$ 1,363 
963 77,931 109,014 1,377,635 
408,075 8,884 
50,991 
155,809 



Housing and business development Salaries, wages and employee benefits Housing and business development administration Salaries, wages and employee benefits Codes enforcement Materials and supplies C. Deficit Fund Balance 

13,455 
6,447 
893 

Within the nonmajor capital project funds, under the heading of Miscellaneous General Obligation Bond Funds, there was one fund with a deficit fund balance. The 1983 General Obligation Bond Fund had a deficit of $1,443,184_ Budgeted reveames have not been fully funded to offset budgeted exp~ditures to date. 
All deposits of the City are held by one financial institution. At year-end, the carrying amount oft he City's deposits was $17,099,343 and the bank balances were $13,135,231. The difference is due to deposits in transit_ Of the cash balance, $13,135,231 was categorized as being insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized with securities held by the City's agent in the City's name. 
Money market funds in the remount of $28,580,660 were invested by the City's trustee and was held by the trustees agent in the trustees' name. Banks holding deposits and/or investments of the City are required to pledge seomities to fully collateralize these transactions. The pledged securities are held by another bank or through book entry in a custodial account in the federal reserve system. The City must authorize in writing the release or substitution of the pledged securities. The City's investments are categorized below to give an mdieaUon of the level of risk assumed by the City at year-end. Category I includes investments that are insured, registered, or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered inveslanents for which the securities are held by the eounterparty's t~ust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and ~ered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City's name. 



Repurchase agreements U.S. Governmeart securities C0xrunon stock Corporate bonds Mutual fimds 

Cam~orv 2 3 $ 54,054,781 $ - 161,334,977 
Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) Money maxket funds Total investments Total deposits 
Cash, cash equivalents and investme~ats including restricted assets The investments in category 3 are owned by the following funds: 
2001 General Obligation Bond Capihal Project Municipal and Regional Airports 

$ 42,238,154 96,156,715 43.572,454 $181,967,323 

$164,712,851 15,485,385 1,769,087 

ReportedAmormff FairValne $ 54,054,781 203,573,131 96,156,715 43.572.454 397,357,081 9,195,265 5,200,770 28,580.660 440,333,776 17,099.343 

90.5% 8.5 1.0 100.0% The Pension Trust fund inv~s are held by the City's fiscal agent bank as trustee. The pension trust funds are managed by fixed income and equity managers. The Department of Water and Sewerage and Municipal and Regional Airports' investments are the result of bond indentures which outline the requirements of accounts which hold funds for the benefit of bondholders. The Capital Projects' investments are held by a bank as trustee. Investments in mutual funds and LAMP are not categorized above because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. LAMP, a local government investment pool, is administered by LAMP, lue., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. While LAMP is not required to be a registered investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, its investment policies are similar to those established by Rule 2a-7, which governs registered money market funds. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations m which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess 0f397 days. The fair value of investments is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any variances between amortized oost and fair value. For purposes of determining participants' shares, inv~ are valued at amortized cost. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give participants rmrnediate access to their account balances. 



Discretely Presented Component Units - Deposits 
Deposits - Carrying Amount Deposits - Bank Balances h~ured by federal depository msulanc~ Collateralized with securities held by pledging financial institution's trust department in the City Court's/City Marshal's name Uncollateralized Total Deposits-Bank Balances 

City City Shreveport Home Courts Marshal Mortgage Authority 
476,898 436,180 
3,274,232 100 000 $3 851 130 1,710,201 $2 146 381 2,290,998 $2 290998 

Shreveport Home Mortgage Authority had the following Categcny 2 invesUneaCs: 
Reported Amount/ ,, Fair Value 1984 Issue (Single Family) - Bank One, MBank Investment Agreements $ 67,404 1995 Issue (Single Family - Refunding) - Bayerische Landeshank hvesmmm Agreements 692,644 2003 Issue (Single Family) - XL Asset Funding Company Investment Agreements 7,500,000 $8,260,048 B. Property Taxes The City levies taxes on real and business perstmal property located within its bowndaries. Property taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Bossier Parish and Caddo Parish Tax Assessors and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Corcanission. Prooertv Tax C Assessment date Levy date Tax bills mailed Total taxes are due Penalties and interest are added Lien date Tax sale - 2003 delinquent property 

Januaiy 1, 2003 Not later than June 1, 2003 On or about Novcanber t5, 2003 Describer 31, 2003 Janumy 1, 2004 January 1, 2004 JRly |, 2004 Property taxes levied for the current year are recognized as revenueS, even though a portion is collectible in the period subsequem to the levy. The City's property tax collection records show that 93.7% of the property taxes due were collected within 60 days after the due date. Assessed values are established by the Bossier Parish and Caddo Parish Tax Assessors each year on a uniform basis at the following ratios to fair market value. 
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I0% Land 10% Residential Improvements 15% Industrial Improvements 15% Machinery 15% Conanercial lmproverneras 25% Public Service properties, excluding land A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than every 4 years. A revaluation was completed for the tax roll of January ], 2000. 
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Governmental funds rq~ort deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in con~ction with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the cad of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and uneameA revenue rq~lzd in the governmental funds were as follows: 
Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) Delinqucat property taxes receivable (Debt Service Fund) Other deferrals including program notes receivable Total deferred revcauo for govermnemal funds D. Federal and State lrmancial Assistance 

$ 1,257,684 

Federal and Stat~ govemmemal units lopresent an important source of supplementary funding to finance housing, employment and construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the community. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are re*orded in the C-eneral, Special Revonue, Capital Projects and Enterprise Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement under the related grant. The grants normally specify the purpose for which the funds may be used and are audited annually under the Single Audit as mandatzd by OMB Circular A-133. The following amotmts under various grants and catiflemonts axe recorded as reveaues, subsidies or contributions in the aeeompanymg financial statements: 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Cxmuuuulty Development Police Grants Environmental C.wants Capital Projects Funds: Miscellaneous General Obligation Bond Funds Enterprise Funds: Municipal and Regional Airports Shreveport Area Transit System Water and Sewerage 

$ 5,293,545 7,910,148 L613,243 702,069 
933,131 5,808,721 5,467,890 91.258 

Supplementary salary payracats are made by the State to certain groups of employees. The City is not legally responsible for these salaries. Therefore, the basis for recognizing the revenue and expenditure payraents is the actual contribution from the State. The State paid supplemental salaries to the following groups of employees: Fire Departnaent $1,889,013, Police Department $1,731,013 and City Marshal (a component unit) $155,418. 



E. Capital Assets Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2003 was as follows Primary Government 
Governmeatal activities: Capital assets, not being depreciated: Land Construction in progress Total capital assets, not being depreciated Capital assets, being depreciated: Buildings Improvcraents other than buildings Equipment Infi'astructurc Total capital assets being depreciated Less accumulated depseciation for: 

Beginning Ending Balance increases Decreases Balance 
$ 78,644,045 182,966,623 $ 6,091,055 27.194.815 $ -- (117,323,934) $ 84,735,100 92,837,504 
94,599,040 33,086,675 63,277,961 317,984,618 508,948,294 
48,114,652 12,830,413 3,709,196 59,874~719 124,528,980 
( 706,375) ( 175,225) (t0,640,283) (11,521,883) 

Buildings (30,871,802) (2,397,315) 706,375 Improvementsotberthanlmildings (13,897,232) (1,228,834) 175,225 Equipmem (38,753,340) (6,910,324) 10,635,961 Infrastructure (103,652,480) (10,395,651) - Total accumulated depreciation (187,174,854) (20,932,124) 11,517,561 Total capital assets, being deprecated, net 321,773,440 Governmental activities capital assets, net $583,384,108 

142,007,317 45,741,863 56,346,874 377,859,337 621,955,391 
(32,562,742) (14,950,841) (35,027,703) (114,048,131) (196,589,417) 

lmemal servace funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, their capital assets are included as part of the above totals for govetranontal activities. 
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~nnmg Ending Balance Increases Decreases , Balance Business-type activities: Municipal and Regional Airports: Capital assets, not being depreciated: Land $ 19,840,384 Construction in progress 3,043,778 Total calfital assets.not being depreciated 224884.162 Cat~tal assets, being depreciated: Buildings Improvements other than buildings Equipment Total capital assets being depreciated Less ac~omulated depm:iation for: 
54,252,698 53,222,328 6,867,834 

$ 2,576,085 $ - $ 22,416,469 4,608,542 ( 5,369,1921 2.283.128 
2,189,830 699,888 153 250 56,442,528 ( 5,127) 53,917,089 ( 356.121) 6,664,963 114,342,860 3,042,968 ( 361,248) 117,024,580 Buildings (20,385,390) Improvements other tlmnbuildings (32,855,195) Equipment ( 6,215,4911 Total accamulaled depredation (59,456,076) Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 54,886,784 Municipal and Regional Airports capilal assets, net 

(1,146,940) ( 1,403,8051 (2.707.56_8) 
- (21,532,330) 3,848 ( 34,255,152 348,368 (6,023,946) 352,216 f 61.811.428) 

Water and Sewerage: Capital assets, not being depreciated: Land 1,032,277 - Constm~on in progress 62,913,750 33.239.978 Total capital assets, not being depreciated 63,946,027 33.239.978 
1.032,277 60,805,717 

Capital assets, being depreciated: Equipme~ 10,414,414 231,856 (2,785,075) 7,861,195 Dism~otrdon and collection SysIem$ Total capital assets being dqareciated Less accumulated depreciated for: Equipment Distribution and collection 
341.444.158 36,858,032_ ( . 950,0451 377,352,145 
( 9,686,606) ( 784,613) systems (116,389,3131 Total accumulated de~n~:iation f126.075.9191 Total capital assgts, being depreciated, net 225,782,653 Water and sewerage capital assets, 

(3,735,120) 385,213.340 
(8.253.274) 847,957 (123,794,630) ( 9.037.88~ 3.463.901 (131,649,905) 
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Begh~ng Balance Other bminess-type activity programs: Capital assets, net being deprccialed: Land } ,940,408 Construction in l~OyCSS 282,8.85 Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,223,293 Capital assets, being depreciated: Buildings Improveaneats other than buildings ~lmpmem Total capital assets being depreciated Less ac~,nnulated depreciated for: Buildings lmprovemeats other than buildings F~ipment Total accumulated depreciation Total capital assets, being depreciated, net Other enterprise funds capital assets, net Business-type activities capital assets, net 

8,480,922 548,665 11,202,975 
6,258,413 6,258,413 71,127 3 4,020,270 

Ending Balance 
1,940,408 246,058 (6,295,240) 2,186,466 8,552,049 548,668 (738,334) 14,484,991 ! 20,232,562 4,091,400 ( 738,334) 23,585,628 (1,929,338) ( 149,161) (8,595,628) (10,674,127) 9,558,435 11,781,727 

(200,000) ( 23,476) (771.286) (994,852) 3,096,548 9,354.961 
737,611 737,611 
(2,129,428) ( 172,637) (8,629,303) (10,931,368) ( 723) 12,654t260 6,295,963 14,840,726 

Depreciation expense was charged to funetion~programs of the ptima~ government as follows: Govenmaentai activities: Goneral govermnent Public safety Public works, including depredation of general infraslxueture assets Community developmera Culture and recreation Capital assets held by the City's internal service funds are charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 
Business-type activities: Municipal and Regional Airports Water and Sewerage Shreveport Area Transit System Golf Total depreciation expexlse-business-type activities 
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$ 724,778 4,713,805 12,027,713 203,063 3,197,516 

$ 2,707~68 9,037,887 930,069 _64,783 



Construction commitments The government has active major construction projects as of December 31, 2003. The projects include the Convention Complex, various public works projects, Airport additions, and improvements to Water and Sewerage facilities. At year end, the government's eormnitments with contractors are as follows: Remaining Proiect Comrmtmont Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion $33,902,361 
AMISS Water Trealmem Plant,Plants I & II Filter Improvements 5,551,710 Far Part 150 Property Aequisitioas 2,741,888 Taxiway "C" and "A" North Lights 540,500 Construct West Parallel Taxiway 4/22 6,385,777 New City Jail 3,954,751 Fire Station Number 13 Relocation 836,680 Lakeshore Drive Extension and Widening 3,553,837 Riverfront Convention Complex 67,052,362 New Cemtral Fire Station Concrete Street Panel Replacement Slack Industrial Park Roadway 792,337 728,050 1,110,216 

Water and Sewerage Operating and Revenue Bonds 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds FAA Grants and LADOT Grants FAA Grants and LADOT Grants FAA Grants and LADOT Grants General Obligations Bonds General Obligations Bonds General Obligations Bonds General Obligations Bonds and American Tower Proceeds General Obligations Bonds General Obligations Bonds General Obligatioas Bonds 

Activity for the Metropolitan Planning C(nnmission for the year ended December 31, 2003 was as follows: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: Land Capital assets, being depreciated: Improvements other than buildings Equipment Totals, capital assets being depreciated Less accumulated depreciation for: Improvements other than buildings Equipment Total accumulated depreciation Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Beginning Balance Increases $ 704,514 $ 999,234 207~332 1,206,566 (731,581) (124,456) (856,037) 350,529 $1,055,043 and zoning. 

(43,062) (19~876) (62,938) (62,938) ($62,938) 

Ending Decreases Balance $ - $ 704,514 - 999,234 (26~854) 180,478 ( 26,854) 1,179,712 - (774,643) 26,854 (117,478) 26,854 (892,121) 287 591 s992,~05 



F. lnterfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers The composition of interfimd balances as of December 31, 2003 is as follows: 
~ceivable Fund Comanunity Development General Fund 1999A General Obligation Bonds Nonmajor governmental funds 
Municipal and Regional Airport Nonmajor enterprise funds Internal se~ce fm,.ds 
Fiduciary funds Total 

Pa~able Fund General Fund Municipal and Regional Airport Noranajor governmental fimds Noranajor govc~ funds Fleet services CJ~era] Fund N~mmjor governmental funds Fiduc~try funds Water and Sewer Employees Health Care Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund Water and Sewerage Municipal and Regional Airpoa General Fund 

$ 15,451 16,450 1 1,000,000 225,353 180,470 9,605,481 5,240,075 2,186,967 2,083,507 153,529 512,543 3,043,389 199,260 20,310 ,140,131 
These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) irgerfond goods and services are provided or reimbursable exponditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds arc made. 

Nollallaj ol- General Community Governmental Water and Fund Development Fund Sewer Total General Fund $ $ - $ 3,460,500 $950,000 $ 4,410,500 Conllnunity Development 2,463,086 Debt Service 9,228,652 1999A General Obligation Bonds N~aunajor govenanental 49,400 Mumcipal and Regional Airport 153,529 Nonmajor enterprise 3.738.140 Total transfers 

- 8,381,462 200,000 1,132,599 8,189,930 
- 2,463,086 - 17,610,114 - 200,000 - 9,371,929 153,529 3,738,140 



Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect thera to the fund that statute or budget reqmres to expend thegn, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs aceounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. G. Capital Leases 
In December 2002 and Deceanber 2001, the City entered into lease agreements for fmaneing the aequisificaa of equipment. The lease agreements qualified as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the figure minimum lease payments as of the inenlrtion date. The assets acquired through the capital leases follow: Oovemm~ Aetivities Equipme~rt Less: Accumulated depreciation $6,181,074 3,500,809 

Water and Sewerage 
$254,642 (254,642) 

The fitture minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of Deceanber 3 I, 2003 were as follows: 
Ending December 31, 2OO4 2005 2006 2007 
Total minimum lease payments Less: amount represenlin~ interest Present value of minimum lease payments H. Long-term Debt Changes in long-term liabilities 

Govemmmtal ,, ,Activities $1,360,183 1,360,183 1,360,183 1.360.185 5,440,734 (481,927) 

Water and Sewerage $ 59,628 59,628 59,628 59,629 238,513 (28,516) 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended Deecmber 31, 2003 was as follows (in thousands of dollars) 



Goveramontal activities: General obligation bonds Less unamo~zed discount Less deferred amounts on refimding Plus deferred premium Total bonds payable Certificate of indebtedness Installment purchase agreement Capital lease Notes Arbitrage Net pension obligation Landfill postclosm'e c.are Claims and judgments Compansmnd absences Govemmen~ activity (Less: Community Development) Community Development notes Total long-term liabilities 

Bcginmng Balance 
$293.945 (7,709) 
286,236 43,225 1,517 6,181 37,001 1,004 242 1,872 10,715 1.957 
389,950 9,238. s399.ns 
Beginning Balance Business-type activities: Municipal and Regional Airports: Revanuc bonds $ 24,175 Notes 4,500 Compensated absonces 125 Muradpal and Regional Airports - long-term 1/abilities 28,800 Water and Sewerage: General obligation bonds 530 Unamortized discount - General obligationbonds ( 49) Revemm bonds 121,194 Unamortized discount - Revenue bonds (4,868) Less deferred amounts on refanding (1,773) Plus deferred premium 173 Total bonds payable 115,207 Capital lease 255 Compensated absences 429 Water and Sewerage - long-term liabilities 115,891 Other business-type activity programs: Compensated absences Bes/nees-t~e activity long-term liabilities 

$65,035 
(1,419) 1,096. 64,712 
183 
241 23,424 417 
88,977 $88,977 

($47.469) 2,339 
( 29) (45,098) (4,440) (1,ooo) (1,222) ( 830) (1,004) ( 10) (22,162) ( 418) 

Ending Due Within Balance One Year 
$311,511 ( 5,370) ( 1,358) 1,067 305,850 38,785 517 4,959 36,354 232 2,113 11,977 1,956 

$17,893 (26) ( 120) 97 17,844 2,970 517 1,171 871 
11,977 333 

(76,184) 402,743 35,683 (774) 8,464 799 $411 207 $36,482 

$ 47 47 
31 93,309 
(4,506) 3.931 92.765 89 92~854 

($ 510) (4,500) ( 23) (5,o33) ( 176) 
(79,346) 539 779 ( 231) (78,435) ( 45) ( 93) 

Ending Due Within Balance . One Year 
$ 23,665 149 23,814 354 ( 18) 135,157 (4,329) (5,500) 3,873 129,537 210 425 

$ - 23 23 177 ( 1) 8,600 
(532) 358 8,602 48 76 



Internal service fends predominantly serve the govemmcutal funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for goverraneatal activities. The claims and judgmo~Is liability will be liquidated through the City's Employees Health Care Fund and the Retained Risk Fond. These funds will finance the payment of these claims by charging other funds based on the origination of the elaira~. The G~neral Fund normally bears approximately 82% of these costs. At year end $89,656 of internal service funds compensated abscuces are included in the above amounts. Fur the govermncutal activities, the balance of eompemated absences are generally liquidated bythe General Fund. Net pension obligation and landfill post- closure care will also be liquidated by the General Fond. There are a nomber of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in substantial compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions except for the Airport debt coverage eovenara discussed in Note liD. Stat~ law allows a maximum of 10% of the assessed valuation for general obfigntion bonded debt for any purpose. However, the 10% maximum can be exceeded if the aggregate issued for all purposes does not exceed 35% of the total assessed vahiation. A total of approximately $49,966,593 of additional general obligation bonded debt is available for issuance on a total assessed valuation of $964,939,480 pursuant to the 35 % limitation. Included in the total assessed valuation of property within the City is $6,727,040 of assessed valuation which has been adjudicated to Caddo Parish. The table below shows the computation of the City's legal debt margin calculated at 10% of assessed valuation as of December 3 l, 2003. 
Street Improvmmnts Police and Fire Water and Sewer Improvements Parks and Recreation Public Buildings Drainage Sanitation and Incinerator Industrial Bond Airports Sporb'an Riverfront Park 

Debt limit - 10% of assessed value for any one purpose $96,493,948 96,493,948 96,493,948 96~493,948 96,493,948 96,493,948 96,493,948 96,493,948 96,493,948 96,493,948 96,493,948 
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Deduct - Amount of debt applicable Legal to debt limit Debt mar#n $101,265,121 30,745,378 64,148 18,241,030 78,591,387 53,892,514 82,551 9,464 40,618 606,086 4,223~28 

$(4,771,173) 65,74~570 96,429,800 78,252,918 17,902,561 42,601,434 96,411,397 96,484,484 96,453,330 95,887,862 92,270,020 



The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2003, including interest requirements are as follows: Maturities (thousands of dollars) 
PRINCIPAL REQUIREMENTS: GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT: General Obligation Bonds Applicable to: All Purposes other than Water and Sewerage: 1985A Refunding Issue - 5.00-9.375% Less: Unam~tized Discount 
1987A Refunding Issue - 5.00-8.30% Less: Unamertized Discount 
1995 Refunding Issue - 3.90-5.20% 1996 Issue - 5.20-8.00% 1997 Issue - 4.70-8.00% 1998 Issue - 4.30-8.00% 1998 Refunding Issue - 3.65-4.85% 1999 Issue - 4.10-5.00% . 1999A Issue - 5.00-6.125% 1999 Refunding Issue - 4.00-5.00% 2001A Issues - 3.45-5.50% 2003A Refimding Issue - 2.375-5.00% Less: I)eferred Amount on Refunding Plus Unamortizcd Premium 
2003B Issue - 2.00-5.25% Less: Defeaxed Amount on Refunding Plus: Unamortized Premium 
2003A Issue - 3.00-6.00% Plus: Unamortized Preanium 
Water and Sewerage 1985A Refunding Issue - 5.00-9.375% Less: Unamortizcd Discount Total General Obligation Bonds General Obligntioa Notes 1998A Cmificate of Indebtedness - 4.65-5.25% 1998B Certificate of Indebtedness - 5.79-6.48% 1999 C~itieate of Indebtodness - 4.75-7.00% Installment pu~ehese agreement - 4.4% 1999 City Hall Project Notes - 4.75-7.00% Property Acquisition - 4.77% 2000 Independence Stadium - Variable 2000A Independence Stadium - Variable Capital Lease - 5.29% Smmust Leas~ase - 3.68% Conv~atinn Center Hotel Note - Variable Capital Lease - Water and Sewerage - 5.29% Total General Obligation Debt 

Tot~ 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 
$6,891 (351) 6,540 
10,085 1,965 20,230 21,055 9,105 34,830 78,530 10,545 30,910 17~45 (502) 186 
10,515 (856) 559 
37,000 322 
354 (18) 336 
30,270 8,415 100 517 6,260 238 24,730 4,945 372 4,587 181 210 

$3,448 (26) 3,422 
1,185 615 970 930 940 1,455 3,145 850 1,120 1,860 (50) 19 
190 (70) 46 ------Y6-C 1,185 32 
177 ~2 176 -qK0~ 
2,870 100 517 645 52 140 30 86 1,085 4 48 

$3,443 (325) 3,118 -- $ -- $ - 

1,260 655 1,025 980 1,000 1,530 3225 890 1,175 1,925 19 
110 (70) 46 --g'6- 1,240 32 
177 (17) 160 
3,055 "680 57 145 30 91 1,125 4 51 

1,335 695 1,085 1,035 1,040 1,610 3,510 930 1,230 1,980 (50) 19 
110 (7O) 46 
1,295 32 

2,045 (50) 19 
840 (70) 46 
1,350 32 

760 2,490 ~. "~15 62 150 30 95 1,167 4 54 

3,445 -. "755 67 155 30 100 1,210 4 57 

1,220 1,160 1,155 1,780 3,920 1,015 1,350 

865 (70) 46 
1,410 32 
__ 
3,620 
--800 ~160 30 
4 



2009- 2013 2014- 2018 2019- 2023 2024- 2028 2029- 2033 
$ -- $ -- $ -- $ - $ -- 
6,460 (2,326) 3,380 
6,845 3,875 10,365 23,195 5,885 7,790 7,470 (252) 91 
4,865 (349) 230 
8,055 162 

17,840 
,665 i3oo 260 " 47 

~515 9,010 13,310 30,545 ~850 
3,535 (157) 99 
10,015 12,450 

4,605 
;~o45 610 
47 
.. ~75 l,llO 
47 

m 
~3o 1,825 .. 2O 
4,930 990 



Municipal and Regional Airports 1997A Issue - 5.375% 1997B PFC Issue - 4.20-5.375% Total Rcvoauc Bonds - Airports 
1993B Issue - 4.25-9.00% 1994A lssu~- 5.13-9.00% 1997A Refunding Issue - 4.00-5.40% Less: Defer'red Amount on Refunding 2000A Issue - 5.00-7.00~/, 2001A Issue - 3.95% 2001B Issue - 3.95% 2001C Issue - 3.95% 2002A Issue - 3.95% 2002B Issue - 3.95% 2003A Issue - 3.95% 2003B lssu~- 3.95 2002A Refunding Issue - 4.00-4.65% l_~ss: Unarnortized Discount Less- Defied Amount on R~f~dang Plus: Unamorfizcd Rcoffer Call Premium 
2003A Rcftmding Issue - 4.00-5.00% Less: Dcfcn-cd Amount on Refunding Plus: Unamortizcd Rcoffer Call Premitan 

2003C Refunding Issue - 4.00% Less: Defea'red Amount on Refimding Plus: Unamortizcd Rcoffer Call Preamtan 

Maturities (thousands of dollars Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 7,390 16,275 (2) 
6,660 1,3o5 5,765 (326) 9,290 6,765 4,424 140 6,087 1,569 347 50 20,815 (4,330) (931) 154 

500 1,305 230 (30) --2-60- 240 245 245 140 
4,090 (116) 19 

530 5"3W 
530 
905 (30) ------g75- 255 255 255 "491 347 50 
(116) 19 --0"5 

555 553- 
565 
950 (3O) --~20- 265 265 265 -51o 

580 --'-'--5g0- 
600 
845 (3O) 28O 275 275 "530 
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General obligation bonds are direct general obligations of the City. Principal and interest are payable from ad valorem taxes levied on all ~xabl~ property within the City. As discussed in the following paragraphs, certain of the bond issues are curr~tly being paid from sources other than ad valorean tax levies; however, ad valoresu taxes are pledged should payment not be made from those other sources. Certain of the general obligation bonds were issued for capita/improvements of the DeparUnent of Water and Sewerage. The entire amount of future debt service relating to these bond issues will be paid from the operations of the Department of Water and Sewerage. Accordingly, this debt has been included in the financial statesuents oftbe Enterprise Funds. On December 1, 1985, the City issued $125,781,623 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1985 of which $6,660,000 were recorded onthe financial statements of the Department of Water and Sewerage Fund. The proceeds, along with other monies from the City, were used to retired all prior outstanding general obligation Ixa~s except for one series of the 1962 bonds which were issued to fmance an industrial plant which was leased to a private entity. The refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and have beon removed from the City's financial statements. The principal outstanding at December 31, 2003 onthe bonds ~xtnded was $6,445,000. On July 17, 1987, the City issued $17,203,141 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1987 to advance refund $17,100,000 of outstanding 1986 Series A Be~ds. The City advance refimded the 1986 Series A Bonds to reorganize its debt structure in anticipation of future bond issues. The 1986 Series A Bonds are considered to be defeased and have been removed from the City's financial statements. The principal onlstanding at December 31, 2003 on the bonds refunded was $4,350,000. In December 2003, the City issued $37,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2003A. Included in the proceeds was a reoffering premium of $324,764. The bonds were issued for the purchase of constructing, acquiring, and improving works of neighborhood public improvemeaR of the City including roads, streets, drainage, parks, and recreation fazilRies and public facilities including facil~es for the Police Department and Fire Department and other public purposes, and acquiring the necessary land, equipment, and furnishings. This is the second and final issue of $70,000,000 which was authorized in an election held July 21, 2001. The bonds have maturity dates from 2004 through 2023 with principal payments from $1,185,000 to $2,710,000 and interest rates from 3.00% to 6.00%. In Janoal3z 2003, the City issued $17,520,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A to advance refund $4,865,000 of General Obligatien Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 and $11,995,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 1993B and to pay for the costs of issuance. Included in the proceeds was a reoffering premium of $204,843. The 2003A Refunding Bonds have matarity dates from 2003 through 2013 with principal payments from $275,000 to $2,045,000 and interest rates from 2.375% to 5.00%. ETosting sinking funds of $25,367 along with $17,386,716 of proceeds from the bonds were placed in an irrevocable trust for future debt service payments of the refunded bonds. These bonds were called for redemption in 2003 and have been removed front the governmental activities colonm of the statemeaa of net assets. The reaequlsilion price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $552,083. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the life of the new debt which is the same as the refunded debt. The refunding was undertaken to reduce the future debt service payments by $682,853 and resulted in on eeonormc gain of $649,049. In November 2003, the City issued $10,515,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B to advance refund a portion of the outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 1996 and to pay for the 



costs of issuance. Included in the proceeds was a rcoffering premium of $566,284. The amount refunded was $9,835,000 with matorities from 2007 through 2016. The refunding bonds have maturity datss from 2004 through 2016 with principal payments from $1 I0,000 to $1,245,000 and intexest rates from 2.00% to 5.00%. Of the refunding bonds issued, $10,398,371 has been recorded in the debt service fund and $116,629 was recorded to the original 1996 General Obligation Bond Fund due to excess ftmds generated by chan~ges in interest rates. Proceeds from the bonds of $10,702,251 were placed in an irrevocable trust for future debt service payments of the refunded bonds. These bonds will be called for redemption in 2006 and are considered defeased and have been removed from the governmental activities column of the Statement of Net Assets. The reaequisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $867,251. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the life of the new debt which is the same as the refunded debt. The refunding was undertaken to reduce the future debt service payme~s by $369,853 and resulted in an economic gain of $412,133. The principal outstanding at December 31, 2003 on the bonds refunded was $9,835,000. Cameral Obli2ation Note In July 2003, the State of Louisiana passed an act to redirect $4,500,000 in paymea~ due to the State from the City in order to further economic developro~at of the Shreveport Regional Airport. In December 2002, the City entered into a Loan Agreement fur $2,500,000 with the Ixatisiana Local Oovermneaa Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority. The loan was made to fund a portion of the cost of the Convention Center Hotel. The loan is made through advances as expenditures are incurred. The final maturity is March 2025. Interest is payable only on funds advanced against the loan. Interest is computed weekly based on the Bond Market Association index and is payable monthly along with an omorfized amount of principal outstanding. The total advances in 2003 and to date total $182,949 with principal payments of $1,800. Debt service is prorated through 2025 based on the outstanding principal at a rate of 2.67% which was the rate at year-end. In March 2000, the City entered into a Loan Agreement for $25,000,000 with the Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority. The Authority issued $25,000,000 of its ~ue Bonds (City of Shrevepoa/independence Stadium Project) Series 2000 for the purpose of constmetinlg ronova~ing and equipping improvements to Indepondonoc Stadium, including equipment, famishings, frgtures, and facilities incidental or necessary and paying the costs of issuance of 



2030. The bonds were initially issued in the weekly rate mode which shall be the lowest rate that would, in the opinion of the rcanarketing agent, result in the market value of the bonds being 100% of the principal amount on the interest deternfination date. Any bond may be converted to a different interest mode and different bonds may bc in different interest rate modes at tile same time. Through the loan agreement, the City agrees to make these payments from any lawfully available funds and to budget these amounts annually. The debt schedule for annual requirements assumes an interest rate of 1.53% which was the rate in effect at December 31, 2003 as determined by the remarketing agent. In October 2003, the City enten:d into an Interest Rate Swap Transaction with JP Morgan Chase Bank. The bank cen,#grt~l the bonds to a term rate made with the same maturities through September 1, 2008. The City will continue to pay variable rate interest based on the Bond Market Association (BMA) Municipal Swap Index plus .30 percent. If the bonds are not ron~rketed at tbe end of the term rate period, the term rate shall be 8.00% until remarketed. There arc no external events to change this transactions, and the City will pay a lower in, rest rate and will not require a standby parchase agreement or a rc~narketing agreement. 
The City has four Section I08 Housing and Urban Development (I-RJD) guaranteed loans created for the purpose of assisting in local development. The notes arc secured by a note receivable from the developer with a first ileal mortgage and a pledge of the City's current and future CDBG funds. The note receivable and note payable are recorded in the Community Development Fund due to the flow of funds betwcc~ the developer, the City, and HUD. The developer makes payments to the City and the City services the note to HUD. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided for two of the notes that were in the original amounts of $5,000,000 and $2,200,000. An amount of $5,000,000 and $1,145,000, respectively, has been recorded as due from HUD at December 31, 2003 in relation to these notes as well as $538,881 for interest paid but not drawn down at this date. The debt service requiremcaxts to matur/ty for these loans are as follows Year Ending Deceathe~ 31 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009-2013 2014-2018 2019 

Principal $ 799,000 814,000 839,000 859,000 549,000 2,820,000 1,654,000 130.000 

Interest $ 527,581 483,926 437,960 389,469 33~134 1,179,312 314,417 10,345 
The resolutions applicable to the Municipal and Regional Airports Revenue Bonds require the establishment of various bond principal and interest sinking funds and the establishment of a debt service reserve fund. For financial statement reporting, these funds have been consolidated within the Municipal and Regional Airport fund. Net assets of the Municipal and Regional Airport fund have been restricted in accordance with the provisions of the respective ber'.d indeatures in the amount of $I,770,036 at December 31, 2003, which represents the restricted assets included in the debt service funds at that date with no curomt liabilities payable from these restricted assets. The City has covenanted in the Gonerai Bond Resolution that it will at all times fix, prescribe and collect rears, fees and other charges for tbe services and facilities furnished by the Airport System sufficient to yield net revenues during each fiscal year equal to at least 125% of debt service for such fiscal year and to yield revenues during each fiscal year equal to at least 100% of the aggregate amounts required to be deposited during the first year in each account created by the General Bond Resolution. 



Restricted assets on the balance sheet of the Municipal and Regional Airport fund primarily represent amounts which are required to be maintained pursuant to ordinances relating to bonded indebtedness. A summary of restricted assets at December 31, 2003 follows: 
Debt Service Reserve Funds Other Miscellaneous Reserve Funds Bond and Interest Sinking Funds Total restricted assets 

$1,770,036 797,215 45,493 
During September 1986, the City issued $31,080,000 in Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 1986 Series B to advance refund $23,715,000 of the 1984 Series A Bonds. The 1984 Series A Bonds are considered to be released and have been removed from the City's financial statements. The principal outstanding at December 31, 2003 onthe bonds refunded was $1,525,166. In May 2003, the City authorized the issuaace of $16,000,000 of Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A. These bonds are the third to be issued as part of a total of $70,000,000 approved in 2001. This brings the total issued to $54,000,000.The bonds were issued through a Loan and Pledge Agreement with the Louisiana Department of Enviroranental Quality for the purpose of construetic~a, improvemant, rehabilitation, and expansion of the sewer plant and system (the "System") and paying the costs of issuance. Principal payments range from $540,000 to $1,127,000 with an interest rate of 3.45% and an wlmini~rative fee of 0.5% for a total of 3.95% and maturity dates from 2006 through 2025. In August 2003, the City authorized the issuance of $6,000,000 of Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B. The bonds were issued through a Loan and Pledge Agreement with the Louisiana Depaxtment of Environmental Quality for the purpose of construction, improvement, rehabil'rtation, and expmmion of the sewer plant and system (the "System'9 and paying the costs of issuance. Principal pa~ are $ 300,000 per year with an interest rate of 3.45 % and an adaninistrative fee of 0.5 % for a total of 3.95% and maturity dates from 2005 through 2024. The Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality, as the initial purchaser of the bonds will pay the purchase price of the bonds in installments as needed to pay the project costs, and interest shall be payable only on the amount purchased from the date of purchase. At December 31, 2003, the bonds authorized that have not been fully purchased and the amount purchased to date are the 2001B $7,000,000 ($4,659,330), 2001C $5,540,000 ($324,899), 2002A $25,000,000 ($18,300,975), 2002B $13,000,000 ($2,040,515), 2003A $16,000,000 ($347,120) and the 2003B $6,000,000 ($50,000). The amounts drawn down in 2003 were 2001B ($2,051,983), 2001C ($250,576), 2002A ($16,637,450), 2002B ($1,951,614), 2003A ($347,120), and 2003B ($50,000). In March 2003, the City issued $40,735,000 in Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refunding Series A to advance refund the 1986 Refunding Series A Bonds and to pay for the costs of issuance. The ~amdin~ bonds have maturity dates 0f2005 to 2014 with principal payments of $2,390,000 to $6,320,000 and interest rates of 4.00% to 5.00%. Existing sinking funds of $608,983 along with the net proceeds from the bonds of $42,777,182 (after payments and deductions of $655,987 for underwriters disceant and issuance costs and additions of $2,698,169 for reoffering premiums) were placed in an irwvocable trust for fula~re debt service payments of the refunded bonds. These bonds were called for redemption in 2003 and have bee~ r~loved from the water and sewer financial statements. The reacquisifion price exceeded the net ~ amount of the old debt by $2,876,442. This amount is bcmg netted against the new debt and amortized over the life of the new debt which is the same as the refunded debt. The refunding was undertaken to reduce future debt service pa3anmts by $3,677,784 and resulted in an economic gain of $3,342,750. 9O 



In June 2003, the City issued $18,800,000 in Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refunding Series B to advance refund a portion of the City's Water and Sewer Bonds, Series 1994A and to pay for the costs of issuance. The amount refunded was $17,725,000 with maturities from 2005 through 2014. The refunding bonds have maturity dates of 2003 through 2014 with principal payments from $30,000 to $2,165,000 and interest rates of 2.00% to 5.00%. The net proceeds of $19,108,803 (after payments and deductions of $405,491 for underwriters discount and issuance costs and additions of $714,294 for original issue premiums) were placed in an irrevocable trust for future debt service payments of the refunded bonds. These bonds will be called for redemption in 2004 and arc considered to be defeased and have bern removed from the water and sewer financial statements. The rcaequisitiou price exceeded the car~yiag amount of the old debt by $1,547,687. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the life of the new debt which is the same as the refunded debt. The refunding was undertaken to reduce future debt service payments of $883,851 and resulted in an economic gain of $753,651. The principal outstanding at December 21, 2003 on the bonds refunded was $17,725,000. In December 2003, the City issued $12,485,000 in Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refonding Series C to currently refund a portion &the outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A and Series 2002B and to pay for the costs of issuance. The amounts refunded were $12,214,000 of the Series 2002A with malmity dates from 2004 through 2014 and $472,000 of the Series 2002B with a maturity date of 2004. The refunding bonds have maturity dates of 2004 through 2014 with principal paym~ts from $925,000 to $1,380,000 and an interest rate of 4.00%. The net proceeds of $12,706,879 (after payments and deductions of $296,905 for underwriters discount and issuance costs and additions of $518,784 for renffering prenhun~) were used to pay the refunded bt~ds. These bonds have been removed from the water and sewer financial statements. The reacquisifion price exceeded the carrying amount of the old debt by $81,962. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the life of the new debt which is the same as the refimded debt. The refunding was undertaken to reduce future debt service payments by $234,762 and resulted in an economic gain of $199,006. The principal outstanding at December 31, 2003 on the refunded bonds was $12,214,000 on the Series 2002A and $472,000 on the Series 2002B.. The Series 2003A, Series 2003B, and 2003 Refanding Series A, B, and C Bonds together with the Prior Lien Bonds are secured by and payable solely from the income and revenues to be derived from the operation of the System subject to the prior payment of the reasonable and necessary expenses of operation and ~ce of the System. The resolutions applicable to the Departraent of Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds require the 



Restricted assets on the balance sheet of the Department of Water and Sewerage primarily represent amorous which are required to be ~ed pursuant to ordinances relating to bonded indebtedness (construction, debt service, and bond principal and interest sinking funds). A suunnary oflestricted assets by bond issue at Deceraber 31, 2003 follows: Fund 1990A and B Bonds Cunstmctiun Funds 1991A Bond Constmc~on Fund 1993B Bond Constmcfiun Fund Debt Service Reserve Funds Bond and Interest Sinking Funds 1994A Bond Censtructi~ Fund 2000A Bond Construction Fund 2001A Bond Construcfiun Fund 2001B Bond Construction Fund 2001C Bond Cera~mction Fund 2002A and B Bonds Construction Funds Miscellaneous Bond Conslructi~ Fund 

$ 118,991 1,815,072 159,736 7,226,001 1,335,244 2,072,979 4,215,432 6,931,500 59,711 253,921 918 339,1.66 
On March 14, 1995, the Authority issued $4,435,000 in bonds, the 1995 Issue (Multi-Family Refunding), to advance x~md the $4,360,000 1983-B Issue bearing interns( at 6.4% and pay part oftbe issua~e costs of the new bonds. The 1983-B Bonds are considered defensed and have been removed from the Authority's financial statements. At December 31, 2003, the principal outstanding on the refimded bonds was $4,360,000. The 1979 issue bonds are ~~msidered defensed and have been removed from the Authority's financial statements. At December 3 I, 2003, $37,500,000 of bonds in the 1979 issue are slfll outstanding. On August 26, 2003, the Authority issued $7,500,000 in Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds. The bonds are variable rate at LIBOR plus .008% (1.178% at December 31, 2003) and are due February 1, 2007. 
A. Retirement Commitments - Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Defined Contribution Plan The City of Sh~veport administers three defined benefit pension plans: the Fireman's Pension and Relief Fund (FPRF), the Policeme~'s Pea~sien and Rehef Fund (PPRF) and the Employees' Retire~neat System (ERS). These plans do not issue stand-alune financial reports and are not mdeded in the report of a pubfic employee retirement sygem or another entity and are therefore included as combining statcanents under the sections entitled "Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules". 



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of Accouuting - The three City administered pension plans' financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which employees provide services to the emit),. Benefits and refimds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Investmmtts that do not have an e~abli~ed maxket axe reported at estimated fair value. The cash surrender value of life hlsmance policies is recorded as an other asset for the FPRF and PPRF. The policies are valued at their cash value as of the date of the financial statements. The policies provide assets to fund benefits of the plan. 
The FPRF, PPRF and ERS had no investmemts in any one orgamzafian representing 5 % or more of the fund balance reserved for employees' pension benefits except for obligations oftha federal government. There are no investmants in loans to or leases with parties related to the pension plans. 
Plan Descriptions and Contribution Information Membership of each plan consisted of the following at December 3 I, 2003 
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving bonefns Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits Active plan members: Vested Nonvested 
Number of participating employers 

ERS 783 10 630 8..27 2.250 
5 Administrative costs of the ERS are financed through contributions from the employer, members and investment income. Admini~ative costs of the FPRF and PPRF are financed through contributions from the employer and investment income. The FPRF, PPRF and ERS do not have any legally required reserves 

Plan Description - The FPRF is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that temporarily covers firefighters who retire after January 1, 1983 and meet the eligibility requirements of the local mirement plans but not the State plan. Until January 1, 1983, the Fircanen's Pcatsion and Relief Fund provided the primary retirement benefits for two groups of employees. Firefighters hired before July 12, 1977 were covered under an "Old Plan." Firefighters hired on or aRer July 12, 1977 were covered by a "New Plan". Under the Old Plan, a 



fircfightcr was eligible to retire at any age with 20 years of service. Benefits are payable monthly for life equal to 50% oftbe fireman's monthly salary, plus 3 1/3% for each year of service between 20 and 25 years, plus 1 2/3% for each year of service bctwcen 25 and 30 years. Under the New Plan, a firefightor is eligible to retire at age 50 with 20 years of service or age 55 with 12 years of service. Bemfits are 2 1/2% ofthr~-year average pay fimos years of service up to 10, plus 3% of each year of service over 10. The boaofit cannot exc.c~l g5 % of final salary. The City guarmaeos that it will pay the bcaefits under the Old and Now Plans until the member is eligible for a benefit from the Statcwide Fircfightors Rctirernent System. It also guarantees to pay the excess benefit of those plans over the Statowidc Fircfighters ~  System. Disability ~ are payable under the OM Plan on the basis of: (1) tcmporar/total disability in the line of duty, (2) total disability in the li~ of duty, O) occupational disability in the line of duty, or (4) total disability not in the line of duty. Disability Ixmcf-Rs payable arc (1) 66 2/3% of tim monthly salary, payable for no more than one year, (2) 66 2/3% of the salary of aotive members holding the position ~ding to that lmld by the disabled member at the time h~ beeame disabled is payable for the duration of the disability or until the member reaches eligibility for retirement on scaMce basis, except the benefit will end as of the time whca the member would have complected 30.years of service; (3) 50% of salary of active members holding the position correspoctding to that held by the disabled, not to exceed 66 2/3% of first class hoseman's salaly, payable for duration ff disability or until eligible for service retirement: and (4) 25% of salary of active me, abets haldi~ the position corresponding to that held by the disabled member at the rims ha became disabled, plus an additional 2% of such salary for each year of service over 5 years, but not to exceed 50% of a first class hoscman's salary payable for the duration of the disability. Under the Now Plan, the disability benefit is (1) 60% of the fircman's monthly salary or (2) 75 % of the accrued benefit. The City guarantees it will pay any excess of the bonefrts of this plan over the Statewide Firefightors Rctireanent System. Under the Old Plan, death benefits equal to 50% of a bagimfing fircamn's salary am payable to a surviving spouse. The City guarantees that it will pay this benefit for sach fireanan holdiag a guarantee of~ contract. Under the New Plan, there is not an automatic bene.~t provided. Death benefits are based on the option chosca by the member at retimnmt. There was not a vesting provision under the Old Plan. Mcanbers were eligible for benefits only after serving the time reqm~ont for normal retirement. Under the New Plan, members vest after twelve years service and may receive a benefit at age 50 with twenty years service or at age 55 with a minimum of twelve years service. Benefits are established and may be amended by State statutes. The guar~ benefits arc paid to a closed group of firefigh~rs. A significant part of the guaranteed benefits are the tcanpormy benefits payable until ago 50. The value of these teenporary benefits can fluctaat~ widely, since it directly depends upon how many l~ople retire before age 50. Only the employer makes contributions on a pay-as-yon-go basis. The canployer conllibution obligations are established and may be amc~lod by State statutes. Con.'but/ore are made from the General Fund. The City's contribution rate is oun'ently 14.1% of aonual covered payroll. Annual Paasion Cost and Net Pension Obligation - The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligaficaa to FPRF for the entreat year were as follows: 



Annual required contribution ]merest on not pension obligation Adjusunont to annual required contribution Annual pension cost Contributions made Decrease in not pension obligation Not pension obligation beginning of year Not pension obligation cad of year 

$877,210 21,819 (32,381) 866,648 877,210 (10,562) 242.430 $231,868 The net pension obligation is $231,868 at Dece~nber 31, 2003, and it is recorded in the governmental acuvities of the government-wide ~ent of not assets. The annual required centribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. 
Fiscal Year 
12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 

Annual Pcc.sion Cost $724,467 680,210 866,648 
percentage of APC Contributexl 115.8% 100.3 101.2 

Not Pension Obligation $244,782 242,430 231,868 
Plan Description - The PPRF is a singfe-employor defined benefit pension plan that temporarily covers policen~m who retire after January 1, 1983 and meet tlm eligl~oility requirements of the local retirmneut plans but not the state plan. 
Until July 12, 1977, all police officers hired be~me participants in the plan as a ce~dinon of employment. After July 12, 1977, all new policeanon were placed directly into the State's Mumcipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS), Currently only policemen who retire after January 1, ! 983, and who meet the eligibility requirements for a rotixe~nent benefit from the local plan but not the state plan, are being paid from this fund. Under this plan, a policeman hired before 1969 can retire at any age with 20 years of service; policonen hired after 1968 can retire at any age with 25 years of service. Benefits are payable monthly at 66 2/3% of monthly salary, plus an additional 0.833% for each year of service over 20 served after July 12, 1977. An additional 1.66% is paid for each year of service ov~r 25 if the employee was hired after 1968. The benefit cannot exceed 75% of the policeman's monthly salary. The City guarantees that it will pay the benefit under this plan until the member is eligible for the Municipal Police Employee's Retirement System. It guarantees to pay the excess benefits, if any, of this plan over the Municipal Police Employee's Retirement System for the life of the member. Disability benefits are payable on the basis of: ( 1 ) temporary total disability in the line of duty; (2) total and permanent disability in the line of duty; and (3) occupational disability that is total and permanent and received in the line of duty which renders the member unable to function in his police duties. Benefits payable arc: (1) 66 2/3% of monthly salary of active meanber holding a position corresponding to that which had been held by a disabled member at the time he became disabled. Payments will be made for no more than one year or benefits will continue until member becomes eligible for service retirement: or (2) 50% of monthly salary of active member holding a position corresponding to that 



which had been held by a disabled member at the time he bucame disabled. Benefits will continue until member becomes eligible for service rctirerae~lt. The City guarant~es that it will pay any excess of the benefits of this plan over the MPERS. 
A death benefit is payable to a surviving spouse equal to 50% era beginning policeman's salary. The City guaranteos that it will pay this benefit for each policeman holding a guarantcc-of-bmofits only after serving the time requircramt for normal retireanent. Benefits are established and may be amended by State statutes. guaranteed benefits are paid to a closed group of policemon. A significant part of the guaranteed benefits are the temporary benefits payable until age 50. Only the entploycr makes contributions. The employer ~ontn'bution obligations are established and may be ~~d by State statates. The funding approach is to amortize all benefits over 25 years. However, the contribution cannot be loss than the expected benefit payments for the year. Contributions are made from the Genoial Fund. The City's contn~oution rate is enrrergly 181.7% of covored payroll. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset - The City's anwaal pension cost and net peasiou asset to PPRF for the current year were as follows: Annual required contnbutiou Interest on net pension asset Adjustm~ to annual required contribution Aonual pcasion cost Contributions mack Decrease in not pension asset Net pension asset beginning of year Net pension asset end of year 

$804,354 (82,615) 122.606 844,345 804,354 (39,991) 917,939 $877.948 The net pensiou asset is $877,948 at Decombex 31, 2003, and it is rccordal in the govel'mnentai activities of file govemmoR-wid~ statgment of net assets. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the Dectmbcr 31, 2003 aotaaxial valuation using the projected unit credit aetaafial cost method. 
Fiscal Year Endin~ 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 

Annu~ Pension Cog $923,051 770,917 844,345 

Per~xtago of APC Contribged 96.5% 98.8 95.3 

NOt Pcasion Asset $926,845 917,939 877,948 
Plan Desenption - The ElLS is a cost-sharin~ multiple employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all f'ali-ti~ ~lassifi~l employees of the City other than policemen and firemen and is administered by city. 



Non-City employees employed by the following organizations may become members in the system: Caddo Parish Library, Caddo-Shrevelx~ Sales and Use Tax Conanission, Caddo-Bossier Civil Defense Agency, Metropolitan Planning Connnission, and other non-City employees receamnended by the Board of Trustees and approved by the City Council. Appointed officials of the City and the Mayor have the option to join by filing an application within 90 days after taking office. However, by joining the retirement system, they may not participate in the deferred compensation program for appointed employees. Prior to October 1, 1999, to be eligible for regular retirement benefits, members must have 30 years of service regardless of age or be age 65 with 10 years of service, and if hired before January 1, 1979 be 55 years of age with 20 years of service If hired on or after January 1, 1979 members must be 55 years of age with 25 years of service or age 60 with 20 years of service. As of October 1, 1999, eligibility for regular retirement has been extended to any member who has 20 years of service at age 55. The difference before and after a hire of January 1, 1979 has been dimiaated. Members become vested m the system after ten years of creditable service. Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by City ordinance. Benefits available to members hired before January 1, 1996, consist of an annuity, which is the acttarial equivalent of the employee's accumulated contributinns; plus an annual pension, which together with the annuity, provides a total retirement allowance equal to 3% of average compensation limes years of creditable service. Beghming January 1, 1996, the retirement allowance was increased to 3 1/3% of average compenSation times years of creditable service for 1996 and future years of service. An early retiremem provision has been implemented for any member who has at least ten years of service and is within ten years of a meanber's normal retirement age. The benefit is reduced. The plan allows members who have met digibility requirements to defer receipt of benefits until termination. At December 31, 2003, there is $1,204,984 being held for m~abers in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan. Prior to October 1, 1999, plan members were required by City ordinance to eeraribute 9% of compensation to the Plan. The City or other employers were required by the same ordinance To eoutribut~ 9.15% of e~sation. As of October 1, 1999, member contributions were reduced to 5% of cempermation while the City and other employers continued with a 9.15% total rate which is allocated between the Plan and the ERS Employer Contribution Plan which is a savings plan for rnemb~s. Under this new employer allocation, 5.1% is contributed to the retirement plan and up to 4.05 % is contributed to the savings plan based on a matching of member contributions. Any amotmts not matched are eonta'ibuted to the retirement plan. These percentages can vary from year to year based on actuarial evahiatians, but in no case will the employer total rate of 9.15% change. Contn'butiou amounts from plan members, the City and other employers may be amended by City ordinance. Effeetiw October 1, 2002, the City's contributions to the savings plan were temporarily suspended in order to provide additional fimdi~g for the retirement plan. This increases the contribution to the retirement plan back to the full 9.15%. Contributions are made from the fund that the employee is paid from or from the organizations noted above. The conla'ibutien rate is currently 9.4% of armual cov~ed payroll. Effective October 1, 1999, the board of trustees authorized an automatic cost-of-living increase each year provided it ra~s sound actuarial policies and shall be effective January 1. The inerense shall not be in excess of the average ~aorease in the ceamaner price index as of June 30 of the proceeding year. The recipients mast have bean rec~ving benefits for a minimum of 365 days to be eligible for the cost-of- living increase, Aonual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset - The City's annual pension cost and net pension asset to ERS for the current year were as follows: 



Annual required contribution Interest on net pension asset Adjustment to annual required contribution Annual pension cost Contributions made Decrease in net pension asset Net pension asset beginning of year Net pension asset end of year 

$ 8,746,333 ( 814,109) 891 216 8,823,440 3,626,499 (5,196,941) 9,577,756 $ 4,380,815 The net pension asset is $4,380,815 at December 31, 2003 and is recorded in the governmental activities of the govemmmt-wide stat~aent of net assets. The annual required euntributien for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. 
FL~cal Year ena~ 12/31/01 12131/02 12/31/03 ,n 

Annual Pension 
$2,354,218 4,626,951 8,823,440 

Percentage of APC Contributed 
94.1% 55.8 41.1 

Net Pension Asset 
$I 1,623,958 9,577,756 4,380,815 

The ERS Employer Contribution Plan is a defined contribution plan that covers the same group of employees as described under the ERS plan and is administered by the City. A maximum amount of 4.05% of compensation is contn'outed to the plan based on a matching of merabcx contributiens. The match is 50% of eomn~untiom up to 4% of compensatien and 25% of eontributiuns exceeding 4% up to and including 6%. This is a total maximum of 2.5%. In addition, all members receive 1.55% of compensation with no matching requimuems. These percentages can vary from yenr-to-yenr based on actuarial evalaafiom. This plan is established by City ordinance and may be amended. Effective October 1, 2002, the City's match of up to 2.5% and the hen-matching contributions of 1.55% were temporarily sustmeded in order to provide additional funding for the retireenent plan. Plan members are not required to contribute. Employer eontributioas are made from the fund the employee is paid from or from the organization described under fire ERS plan. In 2003, th~ ~raploylng entiti~s made no contributions. 
Plan Deserimion The City of Shreveport euntributes to the Statewide Firefighters' Retirement System Pension Plan, a cost-sharing nmltiple-eanployer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Firefighters' Retirement System. S FRS covers firefighters employed by any rmmieipality, parish, or fire proteefion district of the State of Louisiana under the provisious of Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:2251 through 2269 effective January 1, 1980. Benefits are established mid may be amended by State statutes. The SFRS issues a pubfiely available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees, Firefighters' Retirement System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 210, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70808-4136 orby calling 504-925- 4060. 



Fundin~ Policy The Fircfighters Retixcment System of Louisiana notified the City in the first quarter of 2003 that the employer contribution rate would change effective July l, 2003 from 9% to 25.25%. On June 26, 2003 the Firefighters Retirement System informed the City that House Bill 353 had passed and when signed would result in the employer contribution rate being lowered from 25.25% to approximately 21% effective July 1, 2003. The City joined several other cities in a lawsuit in an attempt to have the State and laossibly the firefighters share in the increased costs, and to look into the operation of the fund and other ma:~ters. On July 23, 2003 the State court issued a temporary order stating that the Firefighters Retirement S.v~em emmet demand employer contributions in excess of 9% until the suit is settled. On November 20, 2003 the State court ruled that the Firefighters Retirement System is permanently enjoined from collecting an mount in excess of the 9% enrployer rate from any employer whose employees are members of the Fitefighters Retirement System. The State of Louisiana and the Firefighters Retirement System have appealed to the State Suptmne Court and the outcome is pending. A tmttafive cotttt date has been set for April 13, 2004. The City continued to contribute 9% to the Firefighters Retirement Syet~m throughout 2003. Plan members are required to contribute 8% of their armual compensation and as described above the City is required to ccax~'bute 9% of mmual compans~co, excluding overtime but including State suppleanantal pay. The cev~dbution requirements ofplan members and the City are established and may be amended by the SFRS Board of Trustees. The City's contributions to SFRS for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $2,163,591, $1,884,744, and $1,705,169, respectively, equal to the required c~aibutiens for each year. The plans pension liability was determined/n accordance with GASB Sta~ent Number 27 and equaled zero before and after the transition. 



C. 

The Shreveport Area Transit Systean (Transit System) is managed and operated for the City by a management ~y pursuant to an agreeane~ which expires October 1, 2004. Based on terms of the agreement, management fees included in operating expenses were $188,797. The City is required to reimburse the manageanent company for the excess of expenses over revenues derived from the operation ofthe Transit System. Pursuant to an agreement between the City of Shreveport and the City of Bossier City, Bossier City will pay the Transit System for the excess of expenses incurred over revenues derived from operations oftransit services in Bossier City. The City reimbursed the Transit System $2,998,180. Bossier City reimbursed the Transit System $321,064. 
In addition to providing pensien benefits, the City provides medical and dental care coverage for any retiree who receives a monthly retiremeaR check frctn one of the City's retirement plmm. Retirees may also continue to cover their depmdents after their retirement. Cm-renfly, there are 1,355 retirees who are eligt~ole to receive benefits. The City's contribution is equal to 50% of the cost of the base plan. Provisions of the plan and obligations to contribute are established in the City Charter. The post-employment medical and dental care benefits are accounted for in the City's Health Care Internal Service Fund along with medical and dental b~efas for active employees. The benefits are recognized as expenses when claims are menrred. At year-end, an estimate is made for incurred but not reported claims. The actual cost of the post-employment benefits is based directly tea the amount of claims actually Incurred. The costs are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. For 2003, the total costs to the City for the t~irees' medioal premium and dental benefits were $2,634,900. 
L~gaion The City is a defendant in various lawsuits in addition to those accrued in the Retained Risk Fund. These lawsuits have not been accrued becansc the amount of the loss curmot be reasonably estimated at this time. It is the City's opinion that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse ~ on the financial condition of the City. Grant Disallowances The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, principal of which are the Workforee lnvestmmt Act, Conununity Development Block Grant, and various constraction grants. These programs are subject to program compliance audits under the Single Audit Act. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. City managemc~ believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be material. 
State and federal hws and regulations require the City to place a fatal cover on its Woolworth Road landfill site whe~ it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years aRer closure. The City has entered into a sanitary landfill services contract with a contractor. The ccaxtractor is respond'hie for the operatico and closure of that portion of the landfill on which it cxmducted operations. The City is responsible for the maintenance and consgntction of all monitoring facilities and the conduct of all monitoring programs. If the contractor defaults on the conUact, the City would be liable for all costs. We have reviewed the financial capability and stability of the contractor to ensure that the contractor will be able to meet the closure obligations when they are due. We believe that the contractor will be able to meet the obligations. 
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Tim City expects to close tim landfdl in the year 2025 which is an estimated remaining life of 22 years. The $2,112,598 reported at December 31, 2003 represents the cumulative costs reported based on 43% of the capacity of the landfill having been used to date+ This amount has been accrued in the government-wide financial statemente within the govennnemal activities and has been reported as a designation of fund balance in the General Fond. The estimated total current cost of post-closure care remaining to be recognized is $2,800,421. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulation. The City is the permit holder fox the landfill, and Louisiana Solid Waste Rules and Regulations require all permit holders to demonstrate financial responsibility by one of a group of financial tests contaiaed within the regulations. The City has demonstrated its financial responsibility by the fact that the tangible net worth of the City is at least $10 million, tim net worth is at least six times the estimate of the closure and post-closure costs, and at least 90% of~e assets are located in the United States. 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters. All self-insurance programs are accounted for within Internal Service Fends. The City has included incurred but not reported claims in determining its claims liability in both self-insurance programs. The Retained Risk Fund is used to account for self-insurance activities involving property damage, workers' compensation and general liability claims. The City is retaining the risk for its automobile and general liability exposures, except for exposures related to Fire Department vehicles. L/ability policies are maintained with third-party insurance carriers for the City's fire vehicles, the drivers, and at/endants. The Municipal and Regional Airports arc insured with a third-pasty cartier with liability limits to $200 million eesubined single limit. The liability for workers' compensation was insured with a third-party insurance carrier with statutory limits in excess of the City's self-insured retention. The City retains $500,000 of liability per oceurrence for Louisiana Workers' Compensation benefits, and for U.S. Longsshoremen and Harbors Workers Act, Jones Act, and other Maritime Act benefits l~r occurrence on its excess workers' cumpe~mation poficy. Property insurance was maintained with a third-party cartier subject to a $50,000 per occurrence of loss deductible. Property coverage was also maintained with third-party carriers on heavy equipment and boilers and machinery. There -were no reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. No property damage claim has exou:ded the City's insurance coverage during the past three fiscal years. Payments to the Retained Risk Fund are accounted for as revenues by the receiving fund and expenditures/expenses by the paying funds. Payments into the fund are available to pay claims and administrative costs of tic program. Payments in excess of actual expenses are recorded as transfers. At December 31, 2003, the total net assets of$10,675,968 were designated for future catastrophic losses. 
Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, mce~t claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic and social factors, including the effects of specific, incremental claim adjustment expenses, salvage and subrogation. No other allocated or unallocated claim adjustment expenses are included. The claims liability of $7,538,744 reported in the fund at December 3 !, 2003 is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the fund's claims liability amount in fiscal years 2002 and 2003 were: 
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2002 2003 
B~nning of Fiscal Year 
$5,283,276 6,713,339 

Curfont Yem" Claims and Changes in Estimates $9,271,456 6,633,160 
Claim Payments $5,283,276 5,807,755 

Balance at Fiscal Year-end $6,713,339 7,538,744 The City also maintains a self-insurance program to cover medical and dental care claims of City employees, retirees, and dependents. This program is accounted for in the Employees Health Care Fund, an Internal Service Fund. Prior to September 1, 2002 the program covered dental care only. As of September 1, 2002, the City elected to self-insure employees and rctirocs' medical care also. The addition of medical care is ~flected in the claims liabilities shown below. Changes in the fund's claims liability amount in fiscal years 2002 and 2003 were: 

2002 2003 
l~of Fiscal Year Liability $ 466,293 4,001,199 

Current Year Claims and Changes in E~imates $ 5,477,725 16,791,215 
Claim Payments $ 1,942,829 16,353,669 

Balance at Fiscal Year-end $4,001,189 4,438,735 
In February 2004, the City issued $16,000,000 of Water and Sewer Revenues Bonds, Series 2004A. The a Loan and Pledge Agreement with the Louisiana Department of is the fourth and final issue of a total of $70,000,000 approved in 2001. 
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CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 (UNAUDITED) The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part &the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 
1!ii:: ~:ii:i: :/ 

Valuation date 12~1~3 12/31/03 12131/03 
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit Projected unit credit Entry age normal cost 
Amortization method Level dollar Level dollar Level dollar 
Remaining amortization 12 years closed 12 years closed 30 years open period 
Asset valuation method Market value Mark~ value Market value 
Actuarial assumptions: Investment rate of 9% 9% 8.5% return* 
Projected salary 3% + age-related merit and increases* 5% 5% seniority increases 
*Includes inflation at 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 
Cost-of-living 1.8% adjustments (all but vested terminations) 
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds Special Revenue Funds Special revenue funds are used for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes. 
Enrichment Fund - This fund is used to account for donations held for the purpose of enrichment and improvement of City facilities and services. 
Riverfront Development Fund - This fund accoums for the collection and disbursement of funds from the riverfront gaming activities. 
Police Grants Fund - This fund accounts for the collection and disbursement of various state and federal grants to the City of Shreveport Police Department. Downtown Entertainment Economic Development Fund - This fund is used to account for incremental sales tax revenues collected from the development area to promote development of the area and associated projects. Redevelopment Fund - This fund is used to acquire and land bank vacant adjudicated property for future redevelopment projects and to acquire other property for current redevelopment projects in redevelopment areas. 
Environmental Grants Fund - This fund accounts for grants received for Brownfields assessment, cleanup loan fund, job training, and economic development. Capital Projects Funds Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds, 
Miscellaneous General Obligation Bond Funds - These funds are used to account for bonds issued for the purpose of constructing and/or improving streets, public safety, drainage systems, waste disposal, parks, an industrial park, and a Sportran maintenance facility. Miscellaneous Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for various projects funded by miscellaneous sources other than general obligation bonds. 
1999 General Obligation Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for bonds issued for the purpose of constructing and/or improving public safety, parks and recreation, streets, the giverfront, and drainage systems. 
2001A General Obligations Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for bonds issued for the purpose of constructing and/or improving public safety, parks and recreation, streets, and drainage systems. 
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e_.~d.md c~b ~pd~d~ Accmm~ re.r~v'~b.~ net Duc ~ co~pmw~ mdl D~ ~m o~ govmmwnb Duc :l~m o~l~r fu~b T~d amvt~ 

CITy OF ~iREV~RT. LOUISIANA COMBINING BALANCE BHEET NOI~[A,IOR OOV]~MF~71"AL FUNDS DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Rlwm*f~rd l~,wdopme~ Poke Grmms 
S 404,480 $ 3,049,065 $ $ 695~t6 5,240,944 - 12 1,124,644 1,231 816,382 

Downtown Entertainment EceaumJc Developmmt Redevelopment 
29~49 $ ~1,480 

$ 1,099,738 $ 9414653 $ 8176|3 $ 81,429 $ LIABI~ITIFA~ AND FIJND BALANCES Liabili*,ie~: payabtc S Duc to othe~ funds lkfened fevemue Total liabilities 
74,$3S 4,336,401 ]3~532 4~430.936 Fund f~l~: KccumF~mc~ 55,577 .A~a~ held for re~talo Umx~:~eA: Designated for- s~mmque~t Unr~e,I, ua~eslgnat~d Tetal fund balance 

126,054 ~r444 
245,798 

751 $ 1,291 
Grants Tolal 
$ 3,484,245 5,988,961 1,125,887 187,216 1,003,598 68~206 ~ 68,206 70248 $ 1871216 $ 11~670~897 

S $ 1,090 $ 162,~47 

1,030,629 4,849,735 372,371 81,429 2,042. |,0-86,206 4,~,717 6~,169 -81.429 70.248 

186,126 ]87,216 
9Z22~ 
4,,~8,5s 
527,582 68,206 6,334,164 (90,183) 6,839,769 Tottlliabilidmmdfundbalanee $ 1.0~8 $~ $ 817161~ $ 81,429 $ 70,248 $ 1~7216 8 11670897 11m a~yia8 notes arc ~ ime~d pm ~the ~ etatgmu~ 
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Mis~gueom ~eral Ob~gatiaa Funds 
$ 3,571,371 $ 6,138,719 25,105 

C~ Projects F~ 
- $ ,191,550 
2,036,870 

936,382 S 1,392,76"/ 

1999 ~mer~ Obflga~oa Bond Fund 
2,184,407 3,754,70~ 73 

GeNrd Obligation Fund Total 
l g,460,246 15,485,385 ITS,037 $ 14,216,024 26,570,359 1|3,142 73 

206,881 S 412,199 S 1,101"316 1,072,677 - 3,471,457 - 52.226 - 1~-279,55g 464,425 4,572,773 
5,996,310 288,072 1,084,506 5o791,671 
L392,82~ ~,t35 1,660,7~0 21,g75,237 13,669,224 19,~,895 

$ 2,656,778 5,936.901 69,137 8.66Z816 
38,598,076 51,~g,635 

Tetal Goverumeutul Fmuds 
S 17,700,269 32,559,320 1,239,029 73 1,003,598 19,521,833 61L2o6 s~ 
g 2,819,325 Io,6o5,482 69,137 13~493,944 
13,688,14! 68,206 44.932.240 (90.183) 58,398,404 $ 3,~:420 q: 234241f~ $ 24,033,66S $ 60,421,451 $ "/2,092,345 
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REVEh'UE5 

CITY OF ~VgPORT, LOUI~Jk/qA COMBINING STATEMEi'CF OF REVENUES, EXFENDIT~ AND CHANG~ IN FUND BALANCE NONMAJOR GO~EITFAL FUNDS FOR M yEAR END~I) DECEMBER 31, 2~ 

Gamm6 hwadmard c~'~inp Mbc.clhuwom F.XPEND~ Current: C~ai b, ovmunent Pub~ ~kure and ~.~.atlm Eemcmk dev~lef~nt Capital entity Bo~ mmm~ cm~l Total c~tm~tltm~ Excets (defi~e~y) of~ 

- $ 14,937 292,766 307,703 

17.h, erfi~ Oevdopmt Pelke Grmnts ~J~:n:ent ~-v~t P.~evdeFmem - S 1,613,243 S S 13,754,595 -- -- 
Eawtrmmenta[ Total 703.~o9 $ 1315,312 |3.754,595 104,678 3,$47 (I,087) 612 121617 85~04 18.~62 [69,506 3,019 - 1~336.7~7 14~71 I.T77 1,635,752 -- 168,419 " 3,631 7ff2,069 17,529,351 

284,893 24,694 -- 3.403,628 
~9,787 3.403,626 

1,814,034 
1,8]-4r034 

2,333 
2~33 o~ (~Ae0 expe~itm~ (2,084) I 1,3~,149 ~|~,2S2) 16S~419 - 1,296 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USF~ Tr tesf~ in - -- Tran~m oct - (14,506,962) Refunding b~ds iasued - - Total oe~ fmanci~ aotw~ aad u~ Fund t~ance,~oeglnal~ Fend balam:~mdin8 S 

49.400 
( 14,506,962~ 49,400 (3.19~,813) (128,882) 

The ~cempanying ~ are an in~,l p~t ~hc ~ial ~ta~ 
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702.069 Z098,927 24,894 4,108,030 7o7~o69 %~].s51 11,29";,~oo 

$ - $ 
49.400 (14,706,962) ~657,$62) 0,360,062) 



 

Geae~ ~d ~mds 26S,089 123,357 469#52 

Cal~t*l Projec*.s Gener'~ Ob}igntm ~d !~md 

295,483 
10,890,879 1,117,447 ],437,863 - 30,300 -- 11fl86~3~- 1e147,747 1z'~,863 

20OlA Geeeral Ob|igallon ]Bond Fend Total 
385,049 385,049 
933,131 $ 981,475 ?~,18S 1,992,794 
295,483 
24,101,700 

Total NonJm~j~ G~evn~tl F~ds 3,248,443 13,7~4,$95 1,104,162 
295,453 2,o9t,92~ 7A, t94 4jos,ooo 24,1Ol,7OO 30,3oo 30300 241427,483 30,659,334 (lOfll7,010__) (365,04'7) (I~082~170) (10,2"/0,462) (22,434,689) . (11,137 189) 
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REVENUES lnvestmen! earnings Gaming Misccllsucous Total revenues 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA RIVER]PRONT DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND AC'I~AL ON BUDGETARY BASIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

$ 25O,OOO 14,750,000 855,000 
Fmal 
250,000 $ 14,750,000 855,000 

104,678 $ 13,754,595 852,504 15,855,000 15,855,000 14,711,777 EXPENDITURES Cut'tent Economic development: Salaries, wages and employee benefas 258,300 258,300 Materials and supplies 3,533 3,533 Contractual services 991,233 991,233 Other charges 2,484j976 2,484,976 Total expenditures 3,738,042 3,738,042 Excess of revenues over expenditares 12,116,958 12,116,958 OTHER FINANCING USES Tramplers old Total other financing uses (13,629,800) (13,629,800) (14,563,500) (14,563,500) Net chansc in fund ~cc (1,512,842) (2,446,542) Fund balances .beginning Fund balances-ending 
Net ehansv in fund balanc~ (Budget bmis) Adjustment: Encumbrances Net change in fend balance (oA~ basis) 

254.~4 1,854 694,967 2,586,245 3,537,610 11,174,167 
(14,506,962) (14,506,962) 0,332,795) 8,182,530 

Variance With Final Budget Pmitive (Negative) 
(145,322) (995,405) (2A96) (1,143,223) 
3356 1,679 296,266 (101,269) 200A32 (942,791) 
56,538 56,538 (886,253) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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$ (3,332,795) 133,982 $ (3,198~813) 



Nonmajor Enterprise Funds Enterprise funds axe used to account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of facilities and services which axe entirely or predominantly self-supported by user charges. The operations of enterprise funds are accounted for in such a manner as to show a profit or loss similar to comparable private enterprises. Shreveport Area Transit System - This fund accounts for the activities necessary to provide bus service for the residents of the City. Golf- This fund is used to account for the operations of the City's three golf courses. The fund's operations are financed by greens fees, golf equipment rentals, merchandise sales, memberships, and concession sales to the public. Downtown Parking Fund - This fund is used to account for parking revenues to promote improved parking facilities in the downtown area. 
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ASSETS Current Assets: Cash and cash equivsicnts Investments Receivables, net Due from other fends Due from other governments Inwntories Prepaid items Total current assets Noncurrent Assets: C apitsl Land Consl~uction in process Buildings Improvements other than bui|dlngs Equipment Less accumulated depreciation Total noncutrent assets Total assets LIABILITIES Current Liabilities: Accounts payable Accrued liabilities Ehle t~ e~mpenetat unit Deferred revenue Compealsated absences Total current liabilities Noncurrent Liabilities: Compensated absences Total nonenrrcnt liabilifi~ Total liabilities 
NET ASSETS Invested i~ eepi~ as~-ts, net of x~lated 6e~ Unlestticted Total Net Assets 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Shreveport Area Transit System 
231,901 45.425 138.446 512,543 522,399 240,317 122,259 1,813,290 
1,940,408 246,058 8,283,209 14,091.736 (10.363,484) 14.197,927 16,011,217 
269,077 595,303 

$ 46,626 $ 73.998 105 
11,865 132,594 
268,840 548,668 393.175 (567,884) 642,799 

Dow]Btown Parldng 
288,300 495.548 

783,848 

10,506 13,636 - 5~199 179~59 12,728 1,044D39 94,069 
1,044,039 
14,|97,92ff 769,251 14,967fl78 The accompanying notes an: an integral part of the fmanoial statements. 
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42~55 42,855 
642,799 (4,3303 S 638,469 

33,334 

566.827 614,971 138.551 512,543 522,399 252,182 122,259 2,729.732 
1,940,408 246,058 8,552,049 548,668 14,484,911 (I 0,931,368) 14,840,726 17,570,458 
279,583 608,939 33~34 57,199 192287 33,334 1,171,442 

33,334 
750,514 $ 750r514 

42~55 42~55 ,214297 
14,~tOf126 1,515~35 



OPERATING P~VENUES Charges for services Miscelhneous 
OPERATING EXPENSES Personal services Contractual services and other expenses Utilities Rep~ and maint~nce Materials and supplies Depreciation 

CITY OF SH~VEPORT, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVEN~S, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS FOR M YEAR ~q)ED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Shreveport Area Transit System 
1,949,362 38,353 1,174,511 23,337 1,987,715 1,197,M8 
5,208,324 1,506,809 112,403 3,187 1,146,300 930,069 

NONOPERATING REVENUIgS tT~XP~NSES) Inves/ment earnings Interest expense In~ovemmental Net increase in fair value of inve~ts Loss on disposal of c~pi~ m~-~ts To~ nonoperatmg revenues (expenses) Income (loss) befo~ cc~tdbutions and transfers Capit~l contributions Tr~sfers m Change m net assets Total net assets-beginning Total net assets-ending 

820,919 248,618 86.298 8,684 189,734 64,783 1.419.036 ., (6,919,377) (221,188) 
2,553,401 f~3) 2,552,678 (4,366,599) 3,241,146 3,566,740 2,441,187 12,525,991 $ 14,967+178 

The acccar~anyi~ notes are an integral ~ of the financial statmmmts. 

(67) 24 (43) (221,231) 10 171,400 (49,821) 688,290 $ 638,469 
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DOWIZtowB Parking 
676,890 

400,008 
400,008 276,882 
9,118 
9,118 286,000 
286D00 464,514 $= 750,514 

Total Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
3,800,763 61.690 3,862,453 
6,029,243 2,155,435 198,701 11,871 1,336,034 994,852 10.726.136 
9,118 (67) 2,553,401 24 (723) 2,561,753 (4,301,930) 3,241,156 3,738,140 2~77,366 13,678,795 $ 16,356,161 
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Internal Service Funds Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, and to other government, on a cost reimbursement basis. Employees Health Care Fund - This fund is used to account for dental care claims by the employees. 
Retained Risk Fund - This fund is used to account for self-insurance activities involving property damage, worker's compensation and general liability claims. Fleet Services Fund - This fund is used to account for maintenance of the City's fleet with the exception of Fire, Sportran, and Airport. 
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ASSETS C'tar~t As~ts; Cash and cash equivalents lnwsUnents Reseivables, net Due from other funds Inv~atories Prepaid items Total cun'ent assets Neneurrvnt Assets: Capital Assets: Land Buildings Equipment Less accmnulated depreeiafitm Total noncarrent assets Total assets LIABILrrl]gS C~'rent Liabilities: Aesounts payable Due to other funds Compensated absences Claims and judgmca~ Total eurteat liabilities Noneurrent Liabilities: C~ted abseaees Total noncmaaat liabilities Total liabilities NET ASSETS Invested in capital agars, net of related debt UtLres~eted (deficit) Totsl net assets 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA COMBINING STA~NT OF NET ASSETS INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Employees Health Care Retained Risk Fleet ~r~ces 
$ 7,179,269 $ 5,455,396 - 9,377,112 1,504,620 -- 3,262,959 - -- 191,283 - 248,807 - 8,683,889 18,344,274 - 191,283 

14 2,083,507 4,438,735 6,522,256 
6,522,256 
2,161,633 $ 2 161 633 Tile accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmeneial statements. 

15,044 (11,708) 3,336 18,347,6!0 
119,640 2,012 7,538,744 7,660,396 11,246 11,246 7,671,642 

62,000 913,088 570,132 _ (927,852) 617,368 808,651 
56,875 225,353 11,932 

Tatal Internal Service Funds 
12,634,665 9,377,112 1,504,620 3,262,959 191,283 248,807 27,219,446 
62,000 9t3,0gg 585,176 (939,560) 620,704 27,840,150 
176,529 2,308,860 13,944 11,977,479 294,160 14,476,812 64,466 64,466 358,626 75.712 75.712 14,552,524 

3,336 617,368 620,704 10~672 632 (]67,343) 12,666,922 $ 1,_0~675,968 $ 450~025 $ 13.287,626 



OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services Missellaneous Total operating revenues 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMBNT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

OPERATING EXPENSES Personal scrxases Contractual sex~ices and other expenses Utilities Repairs and ~ce Materials and supplies Claims D~pr~iation 

Employees Health Care Retained Risk Fleet Services Total Internal Service Funds 
$ 18,128,560 $ 8#98,0"/9 $ 3,198,404 $ 29,425,043 15,519 1,907,472 72,586 1,995,577 18,144,079 
59,532 1,979,649 
4,816 16,791,215 
18,835,212 

220,200 1,235,787 
4,743 6,633,160 158 
1,392,559 139,425 45,601 768,979 973.966 65.091 

31,420,620 
1~72,29! 3,354,861 45,601 768,~9 983,525 23,424,375 65,249 3,385,621 __ 30,314,881 Operating insome (loss) . (691,133) 1,911,503 (114,631) NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Investment earnings Interest exptmse Loss of disposed of capital assets Total nonop~ating revenues (expenses) income Ooss) Capital contributions Change in net assets Total net assets-beginning Total net assets-ending 

9,695 
9,695 (681,438) (681,438) 2,843,071 $ 2 161 633 

191,987 0,710) 188,277 2,099,780 852 2,10~632 8:75,336 $ 10,675,968 The accompanying notes are ~m integral part of the financial statements. 
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(3,791) (612) (4,403) (119,034) 3 (I19,031) 569,056 $ 450+025 

1.105.739 
201,682 (3,791) (4,322) 193,569 1,299,308 855 1,300,163 11,987,463 $ 13~287~626 
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Fiduciary Funds Pension Trust Funds Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund - This fund is used to account for a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that temporarily covers firefighters who retire aRer January 1, 1983 and meet the eligibility requirements of the local retirement plans but not the state plan. Polieemen's Pension and Relief Fund - This fund is used to account for a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that temporarily covers policemen who retire at~er January 1, 1983 and meet the eligibility requirements of the local retirement plans but not the state plan. Employees' Retirement System - This fund is used to account for a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all full-time classified employees of the City and other board recommended organizations other than policemen and firemen. Appointed officials also have the option to join the plan. 
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ADDITIONS Contributions: Employer Plan membe~ 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS FIDUCIARY FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Investment earnings: Net appr~iatinn in fair value of inveslments Interest Dividends 
Less il3W-S~lenl expense Net investment income Miscellaneous Total additions 
DEDUCTIONS Pensions Refund of member contribution Administrative expenses Life insurance 
Change in net assets Net as.sets - beginning Net assets - ending 

Firemen's Pension and Relief policemen*s Pension and Relief Employees' Retirement System 
877,210 $ 804,354 $ 3,626,499 
877,210 
661,221 7,17l 129,375 797,767 13,960 783,807 330,000 

2,522,807 

Total Employee Retirement Funds 
5,3o8,o63 2,522,807 804,354 6,149,3o6 71830,870 

393,131 11,265 76,935 481,331 13,952 467,379 

19,193,637 3,840,352 1~87~16 24,721,805 843,865 23,877,940 127A20 

20,247,989 3.858,788 1,894,126 
26~00#03 871.777 25,129,126 457,420 

1,991,017 1,271,733 30,154,666 33,417,416 
1,133~78 17,648 157.706 1,308~32 682,185 9,364,621 $ lO~O46,8o6 

731,129 17,834 78)01 827,8~ ~3,8~ 
7,240,269 $ 71684,138 

The accompanyin8 hOleS ave an integnd part of the financial statement. 
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10,647,781 1,031,371 138,121 
11,817,273 

12,512,388 1,031071 173,603 236,607 13,953,969 18037,393 19A63A47 154,413,292 171,018,182 



 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS FIDUCIARY FUNDS FOR THE YEAR.ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents $ Receivables: Interest receivable Aeeoamts zeealvabk~ Doe from other funds Prepaid items Investments, at fall value: U.S. 8overxL~ent secur/fics Mutual funds Domestic corporate bonds Domestic common stock Total investments Other assets: Cash surrender value of llf~ insurance policies Total assets 

l~n'$ Pmsioa and Re,of 
13,361 73,101 326.207 
5,910,155 

Pollcemen's Pension and Rel~ef 
302,736 $ 7~54 20,095 67,030 285,586 
20 3~85,110 

5,910,155 3,285,130 
4,169,910 10~91,834 LIABILITIES Accoums payable Due to other funds 445,028 Employees' ~ held in escrow Total liabilities 445,028 

3,716,107 7~84,138 

$ 7~84,138 statements. 
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593,609 5,072 
38,424,808 43~72~54 96,156~15 178,153,977 
178552,658 
1,942 4595,047 1,2o4,984 6,001,973 

$ 

Total Employee Re/iremenl Funds 
302,736 614~24 25,~67 140,131 611,793 
38A24,828 9,195,265 43~72A54 96,156,715 187,349,262 
7,885,117 196,928~30 
5~0D75 6~7~I 

$ 172,750,685 $ 190,481,629 
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Discretely Presented Component Unit This special revenue fund accounts for receipts and disbursements which occur in conjunction with coordinating City planning, preparing and enforcing zoning laws, and keeping City annexation policies current. 
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ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Due fi-om other goverranants Total assets 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION BALANCE SHEET DECEMBER 31, 2003 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES Liabilities: Ac~otmts payable Due to pfimm,y gov~m,~mt Due to other governmeats Total liabilities Fund balanc,~: Reserved for ~atcumbrances Unreserved, undesignated Total fund balance Amounts reported for the Metropolitan Platming Commission in the Statement of Net Assets for component units are different because: 

$ 40 40.000 
$ 412 73 39,555 40~040 
16,019 (16,019) 

Capital assets reported in govcmnmatal activities are not financial assets and, thereft~-e, are not reported in governmeatal funds. 992,105 Net assets 
The accompanying notes are an inte~al part of the financial statcanents. 
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REVENUES Imergoverrffocntal Miseclhneous Total revenues EXPENDITURES General govermnent 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Payment from City of Sla'eveport Net change in fund balance Fund balance - beginning 
Amounts reported for the Metropolitan Planning Commission in the Statement of Activities for component traits arc different because: Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
Depreeiatinn expense 
Change in net assets The acecaaapanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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$ 160,000 112,303 272~303 
1,072,543 1,072,543 (800,240) 
800,240 

(62,938) $ (62,938_) 



 



 

Statistical Section This section, which is composed of accounting and non-accounting data, is presented in order to provide the reader with additional information as an aid to understanding the financial activities of the City. Many of these tables present data from outside the accounting records; therefore, the Statistical Section data has not been subjected to independent audit. 
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Fiscal Year Ended 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 ! 999 2000 2001 2002 2003 (1) (2) (3) (4) 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1) FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 I, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 3 l, 2003 
General Government Public Safety Public Works Health and Welfare Cultural and Recreation 
$27,358,947 $48,624,309 $25,239,599 $403,518 $9,238,424 30,888,942 51,541,031 25,988,243 26,545,711 55,035,600 25,579,678 26,236,171 59,057,314 25,059,130 29,394,166 57,472,321 24,683,745 29,851,439 62,695,370 24,008,583 

359,734 419,927 191,991 390,998 411,809 

1~029,829 1~472,199 9,545,451 9,968,862 10,785,474 31,160,204 (2) 60,899,205 27,090,411 (3) 674,884 10,606,983 26,846,543 24,673,122 63,779,843 27,155,205 68,7.31,189 28,580,522 27,464,094 72,337,147 25,992,785 
493,450 483,659 359,725 

Unaudited - see accompanying mdepcaadent auditor's report. 
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11~75,437 11,350,929 10,780,702 



Community Development and Housing 
$6,297,506 3,598,589 2,226,544 3,285,455 4,483,770 5,549,549 

Economic Development Economic Opportunity _ Capital Outlay Debt Service $1,745,045 $3,674,523 $8,150,156 $20,145,759 $150,877,786 2,267,197 3,366,535 2,295,908 21,350,303 151,686,311 1,488,155 1,744,973 3,83 i,019 4,616,895 
3,131,617 3,149,422 20,403,603 148,452,456 3,269,045 3,361,290 3,773,472 5,460,123 3,328,001 2,220,321 8,883,571 3,558,794 2,749,050 3,851,432 4,703,913 3,481,716 5,141,498 4,770,448 2,940,163 

353,402 361,857 1,907,644 

-~ 

25,752,678 154,495,610 85,487,894 219,435,922 29,892,194 173,492,429 (4) 39,513,016 180,953,148 43,115,634 188,057,527 42,912,202 188,768,684 44,440,597 194,227,159 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 

2003 ~ General Government ~ CultUral and Recreation ~ Econondc Development i Public Safety ~ Community Oevefopmerlt arKI ~ Economic Opportunity lib Publ|c Works Housing IB Debt Service ~ Health and Welfare 
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~scal Ended 
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 l, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 
General Government 
$26,520,075 27,319,896 24,014,575 23,758,250 26,966,957 27,166,380 29,514,391 (1) 24,663,594 22,754,069 25,407,052 (1) Beginning in 2000, to eomponeat units (2) Beginning in 2000, 

Public Safety $48,516,948 53,197,365 53,172,987 56,553,595 53,632,769 60,206,574 59,596,830 61,812,341 67,196,188 70,238,220 

Public Works 
$25,239,599 25,988,243 25,579,678 25,059,130 24,683,745 24,008,583 27,090,41 ] (2) 27,155,205 28,580,522 25,992,785 

Cultural and Recreation Total $9,093,322 9,816,436 10,366,928 9,503,975 9,727,748 10,633,296 10,470,289 i !,026,051 11,242,65 I 10,707,704 

$109,369,944 116,321,940 113,134,168 114,874,950 115,011,219 122,014,833 126,671,921 124,657,191 129,773,430 132,345,761 

Unaudited - see accompanying independeat auditor's report. 
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 

1~ lags IM 2OeO 2e02 1~ 19~ 1999 2001 2003 ~ General Gov~nme~ ~ Public Works ~ Pu~ Safe~ ~ Cultural and Recreation 
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Fisoal Year Ended 1994 1995 1996 
1997 1995 1999 2000 2001 2002 
2003 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 I, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Prop~y Taxes $16,051,393 16,470,366 16,604,762 
17,230,847 

Sales Taxes Franchise Taxes Total $59,074,258 $5,044,039 $80,169~90 62,230,417 5,214.852 83,915,635 
65,023,983 5,460,427 87,089,172 63,815,812 5,860,234 86,906,893 17,828,743 67,778,596 5,868,658 91,475,997 17,832,604 71,113,334 5,854,875 94,800,813 18,195,958 75,548,503 6,570,678 100,315,139 19,572,536 75,481,654 7,086,954 102,141,144 19,305,868 20215,853 (1) h 2003 there was a .25% sales tax rate increase. 
75,971,486 6,351,685 101,629,039 82,343,007 (1) 6,858,781 109,517,641 

Unau~ted-sc~ accompanying ind~n~nt auditor's report 
GENERAL FUND TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 1995 1997 1909 2001 2003 ~ Property Taxes ~ Sales Taxes ~ Franchise Taxes 
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Fiscal Year 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 20O3 Note: 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Assessed Value 736,649,960 763224,730 792,161,740 832,135,880 854,888,230 855,952,380 898~28,580 937,275,970 94~647,780 964,939~80 (1) 

Estimated Actual Value 6,193,177,580 6,430,617,133 6,659,115,987 6,943,578~93 7,12~400,840 7,143,817,833 7,527,501,313 7,888,214,320 8,137,515,920 8,253,848,820 

S~tio Assessed Value to Estimated Actual Value 11.9 11.9 11.9 12.0 12.0 12.0 11.9 11.9 ]1.8 11.7 
Assessed values are established by the Caddo Parish Tax Assessor on January 1 of each year at approximately 10-25% of assumed market value. A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than ever3, 4 years. The last revaluation was completed fortheroll of January 1,2000. Thenext revaluation will be completed as of January 1, 2004 for the 2004 tax roll. (t) Included in the total assessed value of property within the City is $6,727,040 of assessed value which has been adjudicated to Ceddo Parish. Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditor's report. 

ASSESSED &ESTIMATEDACTUALVALUE OFTAXABLE PROPERTY 

~ A~ ~I~ ~ ENW~d ActUal Vai~ 
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CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA SUMMARY OF AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE RATES (TAX RATE PER $1,000 ASSESSED VALUE) FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 Debt Service (I) $30.54 $30.54 $30.54 $30.54 $30.54 $30.54 $30.54 $30.54 $29.67 $29,67 General Alimony (2) 12.13 12.13 12.13 12.13 12.32 12.32 12.32 12.32 12.65 12.65 Police Three-Platoon System (2) 1.73 1.73 1.73 1.73 1.76 1.76 1.76 1.76 1.81 1.81 Police and Fire Unifmms & Eqeipmont (3) ! .31 
1.31 1.99 
i.31 1.31 1.31 1.99 
1.31 1.31 1.31 1.99 
1,31 1.31 1.31 1.99 
1.33 1.33 1.33 2.02 
1.33 1.33 1.33 2.02 
1.33 1.33 1.33 2.02 
1.33 1.33 1.33 2.02 
1.37 1.37 1.37 2.07 
1.37 1.37 1.37 2.07 Parks & Recreational Facilities (3) .98 .98 .98 .98 !.00 !.00 1.00 1.00 1.03 1.03 Total $51.30 .$51.30- $51.30 $51.30 $51.63 $51.63 $51.63 $51.63 $51.34 $51.34 (I) Political subdivisions in Lonisiuna are required to levy taxes witheut limitation at such rates as may be necessm3, to service general obligation bonds. (2) City Council is authorized by Lonisiana Constitution to levy, after publio hearing by a two- thirds afftrmat]ve vote, a millage rate of up to, but not in e~ccess of. (a)12.65 mills for General Alimony (13)1.81 mills for Police Three-Platoon System (3) Speeial millage approved by rr~ferendum and must be r~approved by referendum every 5 yoars. (Last subimtled and alloyed on April 5, 2003). 
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Name 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
1. Southwestern Eleclric Power Company 2. BellSouth 3. Harrah's 4. Hibernia National Bank 5. AMSouth Bank 6. Bank One 7. Wal-Mart 8. Calumet Lubricants 9. Cenlcrpoint Energy Arlda 10. Peamzoil-Quaker States Total amount for ten principal taxpayers Total for remaining taxpayers Total ammmt for all taxpayexs 

$38,965,080 23,907,420 18,942,930 13,846,300 12,278,460 11,369,430 8,030,290 6,754,350 5,346,390 4,856,140 

$1,998,909 1,226,451 971,772 710,315 629,885 583,252 411,954 346,498 274,270 249,120 144,296,790 7,402,426 42,099,027 $964,939,480 $49,501,453 
Unaudited - see accompanying indepeadent auditor's report. 
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Percentage of Assessed Value to Total Assessment 4.0% 

15.0 85.0 IO0.{PA 



Fiscal Year 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Amouat of Installment Assessments Due $41,088 2~o34 20,009 2,800 2,667 2~33 2,133 2~67 6,238 7,732 Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditor's report 
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Total Revenue Collected $75,637 58,564 33,034 19558 7,170 12,167 14,111 32,562 9,236 3,573 

Percentage of Revenue To Assessments Due 184.1% 225.0 165.1 705.6 268.8 480.3 662.6 1~36.3 148.1 46.2 
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Fiscal Year 
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 3 l, 2003 
P~ulgiun 
201,365 195~15 201,270 201,568 201,325 201,500 200,145 201,059 201,100 

Assessed Value Gross Bonded Debt(2) Debt Net Service Bonded Fund Debt 
$736,649,960 $167,982,060 $12,009,477 $155,972,583 763,224,730 158,594,682 15,273,631 143,321,051 792,161,740 164,515,766 20,788,205 143,727,561 832,135,880 175,120,595 22,628,716 152,491,879 854,888,230 242,896,510 23,942,397 218,954,113 855,952,380 898,928,580 937,275,970 946,647,780 

268,296,958 27,428,681 240,868,277 258,856,631 28,977,467 229,879,164 278,641,502 33,982,628 244,658,874 264,673,234 37,297,993 227,375,241 202,096 (1) 964,939,480 (3) 287,762,225 42,480,003 245,282,222 

Ratio of Net Bonded Debt to Assessed Value 
21.2% 18.8 18.1 18.3 25.6 28.1 25.6 26.1 24.0 25.4 Note: (1) Source: Treasurer of the State of Louisiana (2) Includes all general obligation bonds payable from assessed property taxes in their original principal amount outstanding. Included in this aanunnt is $64,148 payable by the Water and Sewerage Fund_ (3) Included in the total assessed value of property within the City is $6,727,040 of assessed value which has been adjudicated to Caddo Parish_ 

NET DEBT PER CAPITA 

1994 1996 "1996 2000 2002 1995 1997 1999 2001 2003 
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Net Debt Per Capita 
$775 732 714 757 1,088 1,195 1,149 1,217 1,131 1,214 



Fiscal Year 
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 l, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 
lme~gtand O~er Costs Total Debt Service 

Total General Goverranental Expcaditurea 
$9,028,328 $11,117,431 $20,145,759 $150,877,786 9,783,852 11,.566,450 21,350,302 151,686,311 9,673,370 10,730,233 20,403,603 148,452,456 11,407,584 14,345,094 25,752,678 154,495,6 i 0 14,175,866 12,101,307 71,312,028 85,487,894 219,435,922 17,790,887 29,892,194 173,492,429 22,581,167 16,931,849 39,513,016 180,953,148 26,360,111 16,755,523 43,115,634 188,057,527 26,100,991 16,811,211 42,9 ] 2,202 188,768,684 28,233,630 16,206,967 44,440,597 194,227,159 Unaud/tcd - see accompanying independent auditor's report 
DEBT SERVICE TO GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES 
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100 

1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 1995 1997 1999 2001 2003 
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Debt Scrwcc asR Percentage of General Expenditures 
! 3.4% 14.1 13.7 16.7 39.0 17.2 21.8 22.9 22.7 22.9 
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F~c~ Year 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 Sour~s: 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 I, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Populatitm 201,365 195,815 201,270 201,568 201,325 201~00 200,145 201,059 201,100 202,096 (1) 

Median Age 33.4 33.3 33.3 34.3 34,3 34.5 34.5 35.4 35.0 34.7 (2) 

School Eorol~3) 49,310 49,139 48,843 48,018 46,832 46,01 ! 45,120 44,943 44,722 44,532 
(1) Treasurer of tim State of Louisiana (2) Ceate~ for Business Economic l~se~mh, Louisiaaa State Unive~ity- Shtev~rt (3) Caddo Parish School Bo~d (4) Louisiana Depamneat of Labor 

Uneraployment Rate(4) 6.7% 5.6 6,3 5.8 4.7 3.6 4.9 7.1 6,6 6,1 



Fiscal Year 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION, AND BANK DEPOSITS FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1994 THROUGH DECEMBER 3 I, 2003 
of Units Value of Units Value 64 79 79 !14 157 168 103 161 87 80 

$28,406,873 33,923,714 43,539,539 ! 19,502,459 114,443,170 147,216,441 72,305,845 57,699,144 100,925,424 125,055,018 

233 249 276 235 258 378 355 374 448 694 

Commercial Residential 
$33,893,896 $3,400,207,880 $2,792,969,700 34,100,257 3,530,817,633 2,899,799,500 37,707,516 3,624,132,887 3,034,983,100 37,121,897 3,848,666,193 3,094,912,500 40,088,629 3,980,958,240 3,145,442,600 50,678,841 3,967,175,833 3,176,642,000 56,689,353 4,124,484,713 3,403,016,600 56,942,287 72,277,725 107,285,644 

4,431,493,320 3,456,721,000 4,605,346,320 3,532,169,600 4,613,848,820 3,639,300,100 Bank doposits are not disclosod. Scvvral banks in the City are part of statewidv banking operations, and they are not able to isolate the deposits within the City of Shreveport. Soutces: (1) Permit and lnspcction's Annual Reports (2) Estimated appraised value from the City of Shrvveport Revenue Division's Tax Summary Unaudited - scc accompanying independent auditor's rvport. 
5 PROPERTY VALUE 

1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 1995 1997 1999 2001 2003 
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Date of settlement Date of incorporation 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Form of government Date established Area-square miles Lane miles of paved meets Police protection: Number of policemen & officers Fire protection: Number of fh-emen & officers Employees: Classified, appointed, elected, and exempt (exclusive of fire and police) Recreation: Parks - Number of acres Number of playgrounds Number of picnic areas Number of municipal golf courses Number of street lights Water storage tanks: Number of storage tanks Total capacity of water storage tanks Municipal water plant: Number of accounts Daily average consumption Miles of water mains ~CWerS: Number of accounts Daily average infiuent flow Miles of sewer mains Miles of drainage ditches Paved Non-paved 
Unaudited. see accompanying independent auditor's report. 
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1835 1839 Mayor-Counfil 1978 120 1,564 Municipal 566 Municipal 536 
1,890 
1,783 46 42 3 30,125 
13 35,500,000 gallons 
66,000 40,000,000 gallons 1,064 
63,000 28,000,000 gallons 1,036 
4O8 930 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Shreveport, Louisiana Compensation Paid to Council Members 

Calvin B. Lester, Jr., District A Richard M. Walford, District B 
Thomas G. Carmody, Jr., District C Michael Gibson, District D 
Jeffery A. Hogan, District E James E. Green, District F Theron J. Jackson, District G 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditor's report. 

Compensations $ 14,500.08 15,697.35 
14,730.08 14,500.08 
14,500.08 
15,472.81 14,500.08 $103,900.56 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA OMB Circular A-133 Reports December 31, 2003 (With Independent Auditors' Reports Thereon) 
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KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statemen~ Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Shreveport, Louisiana: 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Shreveport, Louisiana (City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Tbe results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 03-1. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated March 26, 2004. 



March 26, 2004 



KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Shreveport, Louisiana: 
Compliance We have audited the compliance of the City of Shreveport, Louisiana (City) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 3 l, 2003. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of anditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's memagement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Cireuiar A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements. In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2003. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 03-2 and 03-3. 



The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. We noted certain matters involving internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over compliance that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 03-2 and 03-3. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employeos in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters iu internal control that might be reportahte conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions described above, we consider item 03-3 to be a material weakness. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and City Council members, audit subcommittee, management, the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 26, 2004 
G- LL"P 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Year ended December 31, 2003 
Grant title Federal Transit Administration - Department of Transportation: Direct Programs: Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants: Spom~ 98 Capital Improvements Spozlzan Maintenance Facility SpoRran O0 Capital Improvements Sportran 00 Capital Improvements Sportran OI Capital Improvements Sportren 02 Capital Improvements Sportran 02 Capital Improvements Sportran 03 Capital Improvements Total Federal Transit Administration - Department of Transportation U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Dcveiopment: Direct Programs: Community Development Block Grants/F~titlement Grants: Community Developmeat Block Grant Emergency Shelter Section 108 Loan Guarantees 

HOME Investment in Affordable Housing State FAnergent.-y Shelter Total U.S. Department of Housin8 and Urban Development U.S. Department of IAtbor: Passed through Louisiana Department of Social Services - Office of Family Support- Louisiana LE.T. prognun Passed through Louisiana Department of Labor: World'oren lnvcsiment Act- Adult Workforce Investment Act- Youth Workforee Inv~tanent Act - Dislocated Workers Total U.S. Depamaent of Labor Environmental Protection Agency: Direct Programs: Brownfield Assessment Grant Brownfield Job Training Grant Brownfield Economic Development Initiative Brownfield Greens~_en Grant 

Federal CFDA number 
20.500 20.500 20.500 20.500 20.500 20.500 20.500 20.500 

14.218 14r231 14.248 
4.239 4.231 
17.262 17.258 17.259 17.260 
66.8 66.8 66,8 66.8 

Grant number 
LA-90-O 194/LA-90-2194 LA-90-0207 LA-90-0218 & 2218 LA-03-0088 LA-90-0237 & 2237 LA-90-0240 & 2240 LA-03-0096 LA-90-0252 & 2252 

MC-22-0007 MC-22-0003 3-99-MC-22-0007, 3-99-MC-22-0007/A 
MC-22-0200 06542 

3556138 N/A N/A N/A 
N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Federal expenditures 
$ 9,731 137,678 706,152 303,852 722,035 1,368,319 263,764 1,490t146 

3,174,177 160,385 1~702,508 14,037,070 1,33~534 123,996 
284,710 511,728 1,003,376 726,344 2,526~158 
150,597 90,887 17~071 46,925 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Year ended December 31, 2003 

Environmental Protection Agency (continued): EPA Clean Air Cross Lake Watershed Erosion Control Ozone Flex Grant Vulnerability Assessments and Security Improvements Total Environmcaatal Protection Agency Federal Aviation Administration- Department of Transportation: Direct Programs: Airport Improvement Program: Land Acquisition Security Proposes- Reg FAR Part 150 Property Access Control System Upgrades- Region Regional Airport Master Plan Supplement Downtown Master Plan Supplement Rchabilitatien of Taxiway A, D, and F - Regional Drainage Improvements Safety Area Construct West Parallel Taxiway 4/22 Regional Security Upgrade - Regional Airport Taxiway C and A North Lights- Regional Redesign Taxiway D and Repair Apron - Do Sweeper Acquisition Total Federal Aviation AdmioisU-ation - Department of Transportation U.S. Department of Jualiee: Direct Programs: Edward Bymc Memorial Stale and Local Law Enforcement Assistance DiseretionatV Grants Programs: Weed end Seed Training Weed and Seed Training- Queensborough Wcc4 end Seed Special Emehasis Weed and Seed Public Housing Byru~ Formula Grants: Reduction of Cruck/Dmg Houses l~rect Programs: Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants'. Asset Forfeiture Asset Forfeiture- Quccnsboruugh Drug Abuse Resistance Education A.F.I.S. 2002 A.F.I.S. 2003 

Federal CFDA number 66.811 66.811 66.811 66,476 
20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 20.106 

6.580 6.580 6.580 6.580 

Grant number NIA NIA N/A HS 82998601 
3-22-0048-24 3-22-0048-19,21,22,24,25,26, 28&29 3-22-0048-30 3-22-0048-3 I 3-22-0047-11 3-22-0048-30/31 3-22-0048-3 I 3-22-0048-35 3-22-OO48-31 3-22-0048-24&25 3-22-0047-12 3-22-0048-31 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 
6.579 97-B1-B.07-0025 
16.999999999 N/A 16.999999999 N/A 16.999999999 N/A 16.999999999 NIA 16.999999999 N/A 

Federal expenditures 
2OLA62 2,337 715 89,910 756,904 
243,098 2,201,448 11,614 8,512 77,300 6L131 36~297 482,935 8,923 40,163 54,827 103,560 

134,329 151,585 10g~15 , 96,903 491,032 
50,812 49,826 88,186 162,448 172,797 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Year ended December 31, 2003 
Grant title U.S. Department of Justice (enntinued): Combined Operations Grant Knock and Talk Grant Safe and Sober Grant Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Domestic Violence Assistance Grant High Intensity Drug Trafficing Uniform Crime Reporting Grant Weapons of Mnss Desmlctian 

Federal CFDA number 
16.98-BI-B.07-011 16.999999999 16.999999999 16.999999999 16.588 16.999999999 16.999999999 16.999999999 

Grant number Federal .,, expenditures 
98-B1 -B.07-011 $ 29.145 N/A 26,985 N/A 6,140 N/A 15,193 NIA 3,276 N/A 44,154 N/A 21,956 N/A 190,699 Total U.S. Department of Justice 1,344,853 Federal Emergency Management Agency: Direct Programs: Hazard mitigation 83~544 t269-017S-0 90,171 Total Federal Emergency Management Agency 90,171 U.S. Department of Environmental Quality: Passed through State of Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality -Clean Water Program/Sewage System Program 66.458 N/A U.S. Department of Transportation: Direct Programs: Lakeshore Drive Extension Widening Passed through Louisiana Highway Safety Commission: Shreveport Enforcement Project Total U.S. Department of Transportation Total Federal Financial Assistance 

20.205 20.600 

S~c accompanying notes to schedule of exlgnditures of federal awards. 

FAP No. M-8867 (002) N/A 
21,288,744 
177,917 46,744 224,661 



 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards December 31, 2003 
(1) General The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Shreveport, Louisiana (the City) and is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amountS presented in, or used in, the preparation of the basic financial statements. (2) Subrecipients Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City provided federal awards to subrecipients as follows: 
Community Development Block Grant HOME Investment in Affordable Housing Workforce Investment Act 

Federal CFDA number 14.218 $ 14.239 17.255 
Amount provided to subreeipients 325,118 434,910 558,172 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year ended December 31, 2003 
Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results Financial Statements Type of report issued on the basic financial statements: unqualified opinion Internal control over financial reporting: ~ Material weaknesses identified7 No ~ Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the basic financial statements? None reported Noncompliance which is material to the basic f'manclal statements? No Federal Awards Internal control over major programs: ~ Material weaknesses identified? Yes ~ Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs? Yes Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified opinion Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337 Yes Identification of major programs: 
14.218 Community Development Block Grant 14.248 Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program 14.239 HOME Investment in Affordable Housing 20.106 Federal Aviation Administration 66.458 Department of Environmental Quality- Clean Water Act Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $552,340 Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under section 530 of OMB Circular A-133: No 

9 (Continued) 



CITY OF SIIREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year ended December 31, 2003 
Section 2 - Financial Statement Findings Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards Item: 03-1 Specific Reauirement: R.S. 24:514 requires municipal retirement system funded in whole or part out of public funds shall furnish to the legislative auditor, annually, actuarial valuations. Such valuations shall be submitted to the legislative auditor between the first and one hundred twentieth day following the close oftbe fiscal year of the retirement system. 
Context: The City of Shreveport was not in compliance with the state statute during fiscal 2003 
Effect: The City of Shreveport is not in compliance with the state statute during fiscal 2003 Cause: The timing of receipt of the actuarial valuations was after the 120-day period. Recommendation: The City of Shreveport should take steps to ensure actuarial valuations for the retirement systems are received and submitted to the legislative auditor between the first and one hundred twentieth day following the close of the fiscal year of the retirement systems. Section 3 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs Item: 03-2 Grant: Federal Aviation Administration 

Equipment and Real Property Management Condition: The percentage of federal participation and the condition of the equipment were not included in the property records for the runway sweeper. 
Effect: This results in a lack of information to ensure reimbursement to the FAA for the federal share of sales proceeds when subject equipment is sold and to ensure proper valuation of equipment for reporting, depreciation, replacement, and disposal. (Continued) 



CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year ended December 31, 2003 
Cause: Appropriate procedures are not in place to ensure that the federal participation and equipment condition are documented in the property records. Recommendation: Create appropriate fields in the fixed asset system to record federal participation and the equipment's condition at the time of acquisition. Implement procedures to record information and compute reimbursement as equipment and real estate ate sold. Item: 03-3 Grant: Federal Aviation Administration 
Grant Number: 3-22-0048-19,21,22,25,26,28&29 Real Property Acquisition and Relocation Condition: The City does not have procedures in place to monitor the acquisition and relocation assistance performed by its contracted consultant, W.D. Shock, for compliance with federal requirements. 
Effect: Real property acquisitions may be made and noncompliance with federal regulations would be undetected. Cause: Appropriate procedures are not in place to ensure that acquisitions and relocations made by the contractor on behalf of the City are in compliance with federal regulations. Recommendation: Implement procedures to document review of the consultant to ensure compliance with federal regulations. 



 

City of Shreveport, Louisiana OMB Circular A-133 Reports Corrective Action Pin Year Ended December 31, 2003 
Item 03-1 A) Name of Contact Responsible - Pension Manager B) Corrective Action Planned - Actuarial reports will be filed within 120 days of the fiscal year ending December 31 .with the legislative auditor. C) Completion Date - Effective for the year ending December 31, 2004. Item 03-2 A) B) 
Item 03-3 A) B) 

Name of Contact Responsible - Fixed Asset Accountant Corrective Action Planned - Fields will be implemented in the fixed asset system to note federal participation end equipment condition. Federal property dispositions will be flagged for reimbursements if applicable. Completion Date - September 30, 2004 
Name of Contact Responsible - Manager of Administrative Services Corrective Action Planned - We will ensure that the actual appraisals and review appraisals are reviewed by Shreveport Airport Authority staff for reasonableness and that periodic reviews are made of files maintained at the W. D. Schoek office for compliance. Completion Date - June 30, 2004 



Item: 02-01 

hem:0~02 

Item: 02-03 

Item: 02-04 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 
Status of Prior-Year Single Audit Findings 

Name of Contact Responsible - Purchasing Agent Corrective Action Planned - The Purchasing Agent has advised all department heads that an improvement to a public works project, including the cost of hauling dirt, in excess of $100,000 must be publicly bid. Completion Date - May 30, 2003 All contracts, including those with multiple aspects, are being issued in accordance with applicable Public Bid Law requirements. 
A) Name of Contact Responsible - Pension Manager B) Corrective Action Planned - Actuarial reports will be filed within 120 days of the fiscal year December 31, with the legislative auditor. C) Completion Date - May 20, 2003 D) Reports were filed as soon as received on April 30, 2004. This was the 121*t day of the year. 
A) Name of Contact Responsible - Economic Development Specialist B) Corrective Action Planned - Procedures have been established requiring monitors to monitor each project annually as part of the review process. All reports submitted will be checked for accuracy and applicable verifications. C) Completion Date - May 16, 2003 D) A monitoring visit was done are recertifieations have been completed. However, there is no HUD requirement that this process be completed. 
A) B) 
C) D) 
Name of Contact Responsible - Bureau Chief Corrective Action Planned - Reconciliations are to be performed through a coordinated effort with the Accounting Division. Each grant administrator will meet twice a month with the Bureau Chief to review the reconciliations. Completion Date - May 16, 2003 and retroactive to the beginning of 2003. Reconciliations were performed during 2003 and this information was reviewed by the Accounting Division. Beginning with January 2004, formal reconciliations are prepared and signed by Community Development and Finance. 



KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 
March 26, 2004 
Mr. Theron Jackson, Chairman Audit Subcommittee and Members of the City Council City of Shreveport, Louisiana Ladies and Gentlemen: We have audited the financial statements of the City of Shreveport, Louisiana (the City) for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City, we considered internal control in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. An audit does not include examining the effectiveness of internal control and does not provide assurance on internal control. We have not considered internal control since the date of our report. During our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational matters that are presented for your consideration. These comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of management, are intended to improve internal control or result in other operating efficiencies and are summarized as follows: 
As has been communicated in prior management letters, we noted instances in which revenues of federal cost-reimbursement type grants did not match the expenditures recorded for the same grants. The cause of these differences is not readily determinable, hut could be the result of expenditures being coded to the incorrect grant index code or the result of not timely requesting grant reimbursements. We, again, recommend that a reconciliation process be put in place between the reimbursement requests and the total expenditures per the general ledger documenting any differences. Each grant administrator should he responsible for periodically performing this review to ensure that the amounts reported on the reimbursement requests reflect the amounts which are being reflected in that particular grant's expenditure index codes. Based on these facts, consideration should be given to centralize grant accounting in the Accounting Division. Management's Response - A formal reconciliation is now prepared on a monthly basis and is signed by Community Development and Finance. This became effective with the month of January 2004. 



Mr. Tberon Jackson, Chairman Audit Subcommittee and Members of the City Council March 26, 2004 Page 2 

In today's environment, documentation as evidence of internal control procedures is becoming an increasingly important aspect of the control process. During oar work, we noted instances where stated review procedures were not documented to evidence the review. Specifically: We were not able to verify that the bank reconciliation process was being reviewed by someone other than the preparer. Per discussion with Accounting Department personnel, such a review is often performed, but the reviewer does not document such review. We were not able to verify that the reconciliation of the COSWEB to the general ledger was being reviewed by someone other than the preparer. Per discussion with Accounting Department personnel, such a review is often performed, but the reviewer does not document such review. We recommend that bank reconciliations be reviewed by someone at least one level above the preparer and that the reviewer initial the reconciliation to indicate that such a review has been performed. We also recommend that reconciliations be reviewed by someone at least one level above the preparer and that the reviewer initial the reconciliation to indicate that such a review has been performed. Management's Response - Bank reconciliations - We agree that reviews of some reconciliations were not documented by a signature. All future reconciliations will be reviewed by someone at a higher level and documented that such a review has taken place. Management's Response - COSWEB reconciliations - The Water and Sewer fund accountant will indicate that a review has been performed by signing the reconciliation. 
We noted that an employee in the Data Processing department is the Payroll Application Administrator, has unrestricted privileges to the payroll master account and has access to the personnel action forms when changes are made to payroll data. Also, a daily report of the payroll changes performed is generated by Data Processing but it is not thoroughly reviewed or maintained, and the report produced does not display the name of the user who made the changes. In addition, the list of users selected for testing included one employee who has retired but still has access to update the payroll data. As a result of the above issues, the opportunity exists for unauthorized changes to be made to payroll data not be detected. We recommend the City configure the master account such that the master account user cannot change his/her own information. The daily change report should be thoroughly reviewed so that any unauthorized change activity can be identified, and the report should highlight changes made to fields having monetary values and the name of the user who made the change. We also recommend that the user access list for the payroll be regularly audited to ensure that only authorized and active personnel have access to the system. 



Mr. Tberon Jackson, Chairman Audit Subcommittee and Members of the City Council March 26, 2004 Page 3 

From a sample of five changes performed by Data Processing, one of the change request forms (WBL- 0515) did not have the requesting department bead's signature. It was also noted that the requester and approver for the change were the same person. We recommend the requesting department approve all changes and that the change approver be independent of the requester. We also recommend that the department head of the requesting department and the Systems Project Manager sign all change request forms, and segregation of duties should be implemented to prevent an employee from requesting and approving the same change. Management's Response - We agree that the change request form (WBL-0515) was not properly signed in the request or approval fields. Future request forms will be reviewed for proper documentation. 
Our audit procedures arc designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements, and therefore may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that may exist. We aim, however, to use our knowledge of the company's organization gained during our work to make comments and suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. We would be pleased to discuss these comments and recommendations with you at any time. 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Shreveport, Louisiana: 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Shreveport, Louisiana (City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our testa disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 03-1. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over fmancial reporting, which we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated March 26, 2004. 



March 26, 2004 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge Program and Internal Control Over Compliance and Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Revenues and Disbursements 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Shreveport, Louisiana: 
Compliance We have audited the compliance of the City of Shreveport, Louisiana (City) with the compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (the Guido), issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended December 31, 2003. Compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its passenger facility charge program is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guido. Those standards and the Guido require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements. In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended December 31, 2003. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements that is required to be ~ported in aceordance with the Guide and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 03-2. Internal Control Over Compliance The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws and regulations applicable to the passenger facility charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide. 



Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws and regulations that would be material in relation to the passenger facility charge program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses. Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Revenues and Disbursements We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of passenger facility charges revenues and disbursements is presented for purposes of additional analysis as specified in the Guide and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has b~u subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and City Council members, audit subcommittee, management, the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and the Federal Aviation Administration and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
March 26, 2004 



 



(1) General 

SHREVEPORT REGIONAL AIRPORT Notes to Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Revenues and Disbursements December 3 I, 2003 
The accompanying schedule of passenger facility charges revenues and disbursements is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements. (2) Passenger Facility Charges Matching Funds Effective February 1, 1994, the Airport began assessing passenger facility charges (PFC) of $3.00 per passenger enplanement. A second PFC application was approved on February 6, 1996 to approve the use of PFC revenue for debt service and financing costs of PFC approved projects. Also, the total approved net PFC revenue to be collected was reduced. In accordance with the Records of Decision between the Airport and the Federal Aviation Administration, the Airport has used PFC revenues to fund debt service and financing costs of the Airport's terminal renovation project. The renovated terminal is leased to air carriers based on the amount of occupied square footage and a prescribed rate schedule. 



 

SHREVEPORT REGIONAL AIRPORT Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Program Findings and Questioned Costs Year ended December 31, 2003 
Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results 
Type of report issued on the basic financial statements: unqualified opinion Internal control over financial reporting: ~ Material weaknesses identified? No ~ Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the financial statements? None ranorted Noncompliance which is material to the basic financial statements? N._gq Passenger Facility Charges Type of report issued on the passenger facility charge program: unqualified opinion Internal control over the passenger facility charge program: ~ Material weaknesses identified? N___qo ~ Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs? None reported Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for the passenger facility charge program: unqualified opinion Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration? Yes Quarterly revenue and disbursements reconcile with submitted quarterly reports? Y~ Passenger facility charge program revenue and interest in the general ledger agreed to amounts reported on FAA Form 5100-127? Yes The Public Agency ma/ntains a separate financial accounting record for each application7 Yes Funds disbursed were for passenger facility charge program eligible items as identified in the FAA decision to pay only for the allowable costs of the projects? Ye_~s Monthly carrier receipts reconciled with quarterly carrier reports? Yews Passenger facility charge program revenues were maintained in a separate interest-bearing capital account or commingled only with other interest-bearing airport capital funds? Ye....~s Serving carriers notified of passenger facility charge program actions/changes approved by the FAA? Yes Quarterly reports transmitted (or available via website) to remitting carriers? Ye~s 

7 (Continued) 



 

SHREVEPORT REGIONAL AIRPORT Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Program Findings end Questioned Costs Year ended December 3 t, 2003 
The Public Agency is in compliance with Assurances 5, 6, 7, and 8? Yes Project administration is carried out in accordance with Assurance 10? Ye._...~s For those public agencies with excess revenue, a plan for the use of this revenue has been submitted to the FAA for review and concurrence? N/A 
Section 2 - Financial Statement Findings Reported in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards Item: 03-1 Specific Requirement: R.S. 24:514 requires municipal retirement system funded in whole or part out of public funds shall furnish to the legislative auditor, annually, actuarial valuations. Such valuations shall be submitted to the legislative auditor between the first and one hundred twentieth day following the close of the fiscal year of the retirement system. Condition: The City of Shreveport has three retirement systems funded in whole or part out of public funds. The City of Shreveport did not file the related actuarial valuations with the legislative auditor's office prior to the one hundred twentieth day following the close of the fiscal year of the retirement system. Context: The City of Shreveport was not in compliance with the state statute during fiscal 2003 
Effect: The City of Shreveport is not in compliance with the state statute during fiscal 2003 Cause: The timing of receipt of the actuarial valuations was after the 120-day period Recommendation: The City of Shreveport should take steps to ensure actuarial valuations for the retirement systems are received and submitted to the legislative auditor between the first and one hundred twentieth day following the close of the fiscal year of the retirement systems. 
Section 3 - Passenger Facility Charges Findings and Questioned Costs Item: 03-2 
following the end of each quarter Quarterly reports are to be submitted to the carriers by the end of the month Condition: For the second and third quarters of 2003, the quarterly reports were submitted to the carriers four and five days, respectively, at~er the end of the following month. For the first quarter, copies of cover letters were not retained denoting the date submitted. 

(Continued) 



 

SHREVEPORT REGIONAL AIRPORT Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Program Findings and Questioned Costs Year ended December 31, 2003 
Effect: The Authority was not in compliance with the reporting requirements of the PFC program. Cause: Procedures were not in place to ensure timely reporting. Recommendation: Implement procedures to ensure quarterly reports are submitted by the end of the following month and that all appropriate documentation is retained. 



Item 03-1 A) B) 
Item 03-2 A) B) 

Shreveport Regional Airport Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Program Corrective Action Plan Year Ended December 31, 2003 
Name of Contact Responsible - Pension Manager Corrective Action Planned - Actuarial reports will be filed within 120 days of the fiscal year ending December 31 with the legislative auditor. Completion Date - Effective for the year ending December 3 I, 2004, 
Name of Contact Responsible - Management Assistant Corrective Action Planned - The management assistant will ensure that the PFC quarterly report is forwarded to the carrier on or before the 25~ of the month subsequent to the end of the quarter. Completion Date - The policy will be effective for the June 2004 quarterly report which is due to the carriers by July 3 I, 2004. 


